CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

SoLANA BEACH CiTY COUNCIL, SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY,
PuBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY, & HOUSING AUTHORITY

AGENDA

Joint REGULAR Meeting
Wednesday, August 28, 2019 * 6:00 p.m.

City Hall / Council Chambers, 635 S. Highway 101, Solana Beach, California
»  City Council meetings are video recorded and archived as a permanent record. The video recording captures the
complete proceedings of the meeting and is available for viewing on the City's website.
» Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time prior to meetings for processing new
submittals. Complete records containing meeting handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records
Request.

PuBLIC MEETING ACCESS

The Regular Meetings of the City Council are scheduled for the 2nd and 4th Wednesdays and are broadcast live on
Cox Communications-Channel 19, Spectrum(Time Warner)-Channel 24, and AT&T U-verse Channel 99. The video
taping of meetings are maintained as a permanent record and contain a detailed account of the proceedings.
Council meeting tapings are archived and available for viewing on the City’s Public Meetings webpage.

AGENDA MATERIALS

A full City Council agenda packet including relative supporting documentation is available at City Hall, the Solana
Beach Branch Library (157 Stevens Ave.), La Colonia Community Ctr., and online www.cityofsolanabeach.org.
Agendas are posted at least 72 hours prior to regular meetings and at least 24 hours prior to special meetings.
Writings and documents regarding an agenda of an open session meeting, received after the official posting, and
distributed to the Council for consideration, will be made available for public viewing at the same time. In addition,
items received at least 1 hour 30 minutes prior to the meeting time will be uploaded online with the courtesy agenda
posting. Materials submitted for consideration should be forwarded to the City Clerk’s department 858-720-2400. The
designated location for viewing of hard copies is the City Clerk’s office at City Hall during normal business hours.

SPEAKERS

Please submit a speaker slip to the City Clerk prior to the meeting, or the announcement of the
Section/ltem, to provide public comment. Allotted times for speaking are outlined on the speaker’s slip for
each agenda section: Oral Communications, Consent, Public Hearings and Staff Reports.

SPECIAL ASSISTANCE NEEDED

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, persons with a disability may request an agenda in
appropriate alternative formats as required by Section 202. Any person with a disability who requires a modification
or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting should direct such request to the City Clerk’s office (858) 720-
2400 at least 72 hours prior to the meeting.

As a courtesy to all meeting attendees, please set cellular phones and pagers to silent mode
and engage in conversations outside the Council Chambers.

CITY COUNCILMEMBERS
David A. Zito, Mayor

JetyeHEd snay BreiLoyinddyoember
KHKeti\BEckkrs € dbauifitienmdaber

JoheamipQsmpas
Ciytipeiteerigy

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda August 28, 2019 Page 1 of 9



SPEAKERS:

Please submit your speaker slip to the City Clerk prior to the meeting or the announcement of
the Item. Allotted times for speaking are outlined on the speaker's slip for Oral
Communications, Consent, Public Hearings and Staff Reports.

READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS:

Pursuant to Solana Beach Municipal Code Section 2.04.460, at the time of introduction or adoption of an
ordinance or adoption of a resolution, the same shall not be read in full unless after the reading of the title,
further reading is requested by a member of the Council. If any Councilmember so requests, the ordinance
or resolution shall be read in full. In the absence of such a request, this section shall constitute a waiver by
the council of such reading.

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL:

CLOSED SESSION REPORT: (when applicable)

FLAG SALUTE:

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

PROCLAMATIONS/CERTIFICATES: Ceremonial
None at the posting of this agenda

PRESENTATIONS: Ceremonial items that do not contain in-depth discussion and no action/direction.

KAABOO

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS:

This portion of the agenda provides an opportunity for members of the public to address the City
Council on items relating to City business and not appearing on today’s agenda by submitting a
speaker slip (located on the back table) to the City Clerk. Comments relating to items on this
evening’s agenda are taken at the time the items are heard. Pursuant to the Brown Act, no action
shall be taken by the City Council on public comment items. Council may refer items to the City
Manager for placement on a future agenda. The maximum time allotted for each presentation is
THREE MINUTES (SBMC 2.04.190). Please be aware of the timer light on the Council Dais.

COUNCIL COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS / COMMENTARY:
An opportunity for City Council to make brief announcements or report on their activities. These items are not
agendized for official City business with no action or substantive discussion.

A. CONSENT CALENDAR: (Action Items) (A.1. - A.12))

Items listed on the Consent Calendar are to be acted in a single action of the City Council unless
pulled for discussion. Any member of the public may address the City Council on an item of
concern by submitting to the City Clerk a speaker slip (located on the back table) before the
Consent Calendar is addressed. Those items removed from the Consent Calendar by a member of
the Council will be trailed to the end of the agenda, while Consent Calendar items removed by the
public will be discussed immediately after approval of the Consent Calendar.

A.1. THISITEM HAS BEEN LEFT BLANK

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda August 28, 2019 Page 2 of 9



A.2. Register Of Demands. (File 0300-30)

Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Ratify the list of demands for June 22 — August 9, 2019.
Item A.2. Report (click here)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

A.3. General Fund Adopted Budget for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Changes. (File 0330-30)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Receive the report listing changes made to the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 General
Fund Adopted Budget.

Item A.3. Report (click here)
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

A.4. Community Grant Fiscal Year 2018-19 Expenditure Report. (File 0330-25)

Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Accept and file report.
Item A.4. Report (click here)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

A.5. Emergency Storm Drainpipe Repairs in the Solana Beach Towne Centre
Update No. 7. (File 0850-40)

Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Receive Update No. 7 and provide further direction, if necessary.

Item A.5. Report (click here)
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

A.6. Sales Tax Information and Audit Services. (File 0390-70)

Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Adopt Resolution 2019-104 authorizing the City Manager to approve a
Professional Services Agreement with HDL for five years to provide sales tax
information and audit services for FY 2019/20 through FY 2023/24 for an
amount not to exceed $20,000 per agreement year for a total of $100,000.

Item A.6. Report (click here)
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda August 28, 2019 Page 3 of 9



A.7. Marvista-Canyon-Glenmont Storm Drain Project Notice of Completion. (File 0850-
40)

Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Adopt Resolution 2019-114:
a. Authorizing the City Council to accept as complete the Marvista-Canyon-
Glenmont Storm Drain, Bid 2018-04, performed by Scott Michael, Inc.
b. Authorizing the City Clerk to file a Notice of Completion.

Iltem A.7. Report (click here)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

A.8. LaColonia Skatepark Project Notice of Completion. (File 0720-40)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Adopt Resolution 2019-112:

a. Authorizing the City Council to accept as complete the La Colonia Skate
Park, Bid No. 2018-01, constructed by California Skateparks.

b. Authorizing the City Clerk to file a Notice of Completion.

c. Authorizing the City Manager to sign Change Order No. 3 on behalf of the
City.

d. Authorizing an appropriation of $20,000 into the donation revenue account
and into the La Colonia Skate Park project in the City CIP fund.

e. Appropriating $11,763 from undesignated reserves for Capital Improvement
Program projects into the project account for the La Colonia Skate Park.

f. Authorizing the City Treasurer to amend the FY 2019/2020 Adopted Budget
accordingly.

Iltem A.8. Report (click here)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

A.9. Professional Landscape and Coastal Geotechnical Engineering Contract
Services. (File 0600-05)

Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Adopt Resolution 2019-119 authorizing the City Manager to execute a
Professional Services Agreement with Pamela Elliott Landscape Architect.

2. Adopt Resolution 2019-120 authorizing the City Manager to execute
Professional Services Agreements with GeoPacifica Inc. and CTE Inc.

Iltem A.9. Report (click here)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda August 28, 2019 Page 4 of 9



A.10. City’s Housing and Safety Elements Update Consulting Services. (File 0630-10)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Adopt Resolution 2019-118 authorizing the City Manager to execute a
Professional Services Agreement with Kimley-Horn and Associates Inc. for an
amount not to exceed $79,999.

Iltem A.10. Report (click here)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

A.11. Video Broadcasting Services. (File 0190-70)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Approve Resolution 2019-122:

a. Awarding Bob Hoffman Video and Photography an increased amount not to
exceed $22,240 for FY 2018/19.

b. Awarding Bob Hoffman Video and Photography an increased hourly rate of $84
per person and an amount not to exceed of $23,500 for the FY 2019/20
agreement extension through FY 2020/21.

c. Authorizing the City Manager to amend the FY 2018/19 agreement and the
agreement extensions through FY 2020/21 with Bob Hoffman Video and
Photography.

Iltem A.11. Report (click here)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

A.12. State Homeland Security Program Grant Funds for 800 MHz Replacement
Radios. (File 0260-40)

Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Approve Resolution 2019-121:

a. Accepting $12,136 in federal funds from a 2018 State Homeland Security
Program (SHSP) grant awarded to the City of Solana Beach for the purchase
of 800 MHz radios.

b. Authorizing the Fire Chief, or his designee, to sign and submit the required
California Governor's Office of Emergency Services Fiscal Year (FY) 2018
Grant Assurances.

c. Approving an appropriation of $12,136 to the Federal Grant revenue account
and the Minor Equipment expenditure account for the Fire Department both
in the Public Safety Special Revenue fund.

d. Authorizing the City Treasurer to amend the FY 2019/20 Adopted Budget
accordingly.

Iltem A.12. Report (click here)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda August 28, 2019 Page 5 of 9



NOTE: The City Council shall not begin a new agenda item after 10:30 p.m. unless
approved by a unanimous vote of all members present. (SBMC 2.04.070)

B. PUBLIC HEARINGS: (B.1.-B.2))

This portion of the agenda provides citizens an opportunity to express their views on a specific
issue as required by law after proper noticing by submitting a speaker slip (located on the back
table) to the City Clerk. After considering all of the evidence, including written materials and oral
testimony, the City Council must make a decision supported by findings and the findings must be
supported by substantial evidence in the record. An applicant or designee(s) for a private
development/business project, for which the public hearing is being held, is allotted a total of fifteen
minutes to speak, as per SBMC 2.04.210. A portion of the fifteen minutes may be saved to
respond to those who speak in opposition. All other speakers have three minutes each. Please be
aware of the timer light on the Council Dais.

B.1. Public Hearing: 652 Stevens, Applicant: 652 Stevens LLC, Case 17-17-34.
(File 0600-40)

The proposed project meets the minimum zoning requirements under the SBMC,
may be found to be consistent with the General Plan and may be found, as
conditioned, to meet the discretionary findings required as discussed in this report
to approve a DRP and VAR and administratively issue a SDP. Therefore, Staff
recommends that the City Council:

1. Conduct the Public Hearing: Open the Public Hearing, Report Council
Disclosures, Receive Public Testimony, and Close the Public Hearing.

2. Find the project exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to
Section 15332 of the State CEQA Guidelines; and

3. If the City Council makes the requisite findings and approves the project, adopt
Resolution 2019-116 conditionally approving a DRP, SDP, and VAR to demolish
an existing structure and construct a mixed-use development consisting of a two-
story commercial dentist office and one (1) residential unit located over an on-
grade off-street parking carport at 652 Stevens Avenue, Solana Beach.

Item B.1. Report (click here)
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda August 28, 2019 Page 6 of 9



B.2. Public Hearing: 412 N. Acacia, Applicant: Hemmerich, Case 17-19-05.
(File 0600-40)

The proposed project meets the minimum objective requirements under the SBMC,
may be found to be consistent with the General Plan and may be found, as
conditioned, to meet the discretionary findings required as discussed in this report
to approve a DRP (Development Review Permit) and administratively issue a SDP
(Structure Development Permit). Therefore, Staff recommends that the City Council:

1. Conduct the Public Hearing: Open the Public Hearing, Report Council
Disclosures, Receive Public Testimony, and Close the Public Hearing.

2. Find the project exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to
Section 15303 of the State CEQA Guidelines; and

3. If the City Council makes the requisite findings and approves the project, adopt
Resolution 2019-115 conditionally approving a DRP and an SDP to remodel the
existing single-family residence, construct a first floor addition, and new second
story and perform associated site improvements 412 N Acacia Ave, Solana Beach.

Item B.2. Report (click here)
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

C. STAFF REPORTS: (C.1.-C.3)
Submit speaker slips to the City Clerk.

C.1. View Assessment Ordinance Discussion. (File 0600-45)
Recommendation: That the City Council
1. Provide direction to Staff.

Item C.1. Report (click here)
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

C.2. Introduce (1%t Reading) Ordinance 504 - Regulation of Food Service Ware,
Polystyrene and Plastic Bottles in Furtherance of Protecting the Environment
and Reducing Single-Use Plastics and Waste. (File 0230-55)

Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Discuss and consider Introduction of Ordinance 504 amending SBMC Title 5 to
expand the ban on polystyrene products to address single-use plastics and
plastic bottles on City property.

Iltem C.2. Report (click here)
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda August 28, 2019 Page 7 of 9



C.3. Introduce (1% Reading) Ordinance 505 — Safe Storage of Firearms. (File 0250-70)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Introduce Ordinance 505 amending SBMC Chapter 7.20 to add a new section
7.20.030, relating to the safe storage of firearms.

Item C.3. Report (click here)
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

WORK PLAN COMMENTS:
Adopted June 12, 2019

COMPENSATION & REIMBURSEMENT DISCLOSURE:

GC: Article 2.3. Compensation: 53232.3. (a) Reimbursable expenses shall include, but not be
limited to, meals, lodging, and travel. 53232.3 (d) Members of a legislative body shall provide brief
reports on meetings attended at the expense of the local agency “City” at the next regular meeting
of the legislative body.

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS: Council Committees
ReGIONAL COMMITTEES: (outside agencies, appointed by this Council)

a. City Selection Committee (meets twice a year) Primary-Edson, Alternate-Zito

b. County Service Area 17: Primary- Harless, Alternate-Edson

c. Escondido Creek Watershed Authority: Becker /Staff (no alternate).

d. League of Ca. Cities’ San Diego County Executive Committee: Primary-Becker, Alternate-
Harless and any subcommittees.

e. League of Ca. Cities’ Local Legislative Committee: Primary-Harless, Alternate-Becker

f. League of Ca. Cities’ Coastal Cities Issues Group (CCIG): Primary-Becker, Alternate-Harless

g. North County Dispatch JPA: Primary-Harless, Alternate-Becker

h. North County Transit District: Primary-Edson, Alternate-Becker

i. Regional Solid Waste Association (RSWA): Primary-Hegenauer, Alternate-Becker

j. SANDAG: Primary-Zito, 15t Alternate-Edson, 2"? Alternate-Becker, and any subcommittees.

k. SANDAG Shoreline Preservation Committee: Primary-Hegenauer, Alternate-Zito

[.  San Dieguito River Valley JPA: Primary-Hegenauer, Alternate-Zito

m. San Elijo JPA: Primary-Zito, Primary-Becker, Alternate-City Manager

n. 22" Agricultural District Association Community Relations Committee: Primary-Edson,

Primary-Harless
STANDING CoMMITTEES:_(All Primary Members) (Permanent Committees)

a. Business Liaison Committee — Zito, Edson.

b. Fire Dept. Management Governance & Organizational Evaluation — Harless, Hegenauer
c. Highway 101 / Cedros Ave. Development Committee — Edson, Becker

d. Parks and Recreation Committee — Zito, Harless

e. Public Arts Committee — Edson, Hegenauer

f. School Relations Committee — Hegenauer, Harless

g. Solana Beach-Del Mar Relations Committee — Zito, Edson

ADJOURN:

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda August 28, 2019 Page 8 of 9



Next Regularly Scheduled Meeting is September 11, 2019
Always refer the City’s website Event Calendar for updated schedule or contact City Hall.
www.cityofsolanabeach.org  858-720-2400

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING
STATE OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO }
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

I, Angela lvey, City Clerk of the City of Solana Beach, do hereby certify that this Agenda for the August 28,
2019 Council Meeting was called by City Council, Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency, Public
Financing Authority, and the Housing Authority of the City of Solana Beach, California, was provided and
posted on August 22, 2019 at _: _ p.m. on the City Bulletin Board at the entrance to the City Council
Chambers. Said meeting is held at 6:00 p.m., August 28, 2019, in the Council Chambers, at City Hall, 635 S.
Highway 101, Solana Beach, California.

Angela Ivey, City Clerk

City of Solana Beach, CA

UPCOMING CITIZEN CITY COMMISSION AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS:
Regularly Scheduled, or Special Meetings that have been announced, as of this Agenda Posting. Dates, times,
locations are all subject to change. See the Citizen Commission’s Agenda webpages or the City’'s Events
Calendar for updates.
O Budget & Finance Commission
Thursday, September 19, 2019, 5:30 p.m. (City Hall)
0 Climate Action Commission
Wednesday, September 18, 2019, 5:30 p.m. (City Hall)
0 Parks & Recreation Commission
Thursday, September 12, 2019, 4:00 p.m. (Fletcher Cove Community Center)
0 Public Arts Commission
Tuesday, August 27, 2019, 5:30 p.m. (City Hall)
0 View Assessment Commission
Tuesday, September 17, 2019, 6:00 p.m. (Council Chambers)

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda August 28, 2019 Page 9 of 9



MEETING DATE:
ORIGINATING DEPT:
SUBJECT:

STAFF REPORT
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

Honorable Mayor and City Councilmembers
Gregory Wade, City Manager

August 28, 2019

Finance

Register of Demands

BACKGROUND:

Section 3.04.020 of the Solana Beach Municipal Code requires that the City Council ratify a
register of demands which represents all financial demands made upon the City for the

applicable period.

Register of Demands- 06/22/19 through 08/09/19

Check Register-Disbursement Fund (Attachment 1) $ 3,608,041.70
Net Payroll June 28, 2019 219,951.13
Federal & State Taxes June 28, 2019 55,766.15
PERS Retirement (EFT) June 28, 2019 42,939.51
Council Payroll July 11, 2019 4.300.81
Federal & State Taxes July 11, 2019 440.27
PERS Retirement (EFT) July 11, 2019 487 .43
Net Payroll July 12, 2019 228,382.69
Federal & State Taxes July 12, 2019 58,687.24
PERS Retirement (EFT) July 12, 2019 42,939.51
Retirement Payroll June 20, 2019 9,732.00
Net Payroll July 26, 2019 201,746.00
Federal & State Taxes July 26, 2019 51,837.84
PERS Retirement (EFT) July 26, 2019 46,532.20
Net Payroll July 25, 2019 3,568.11
Federal & State Taxes July 25, 2019 1,525.81
PERS Retirement (EFT) July 25, 2019 188.66
Net Payroll August 1, 2019 1,905.72
Council Payroll August 8, 2019 4,001.45
Federal & State Taxes August 8, 2019 414.99
PERS Retirement (EFT) August 8, 2019 508.94
Net Payroll August 9, 2019 234,961.01
Federal & State Taxes August 9, 2019 61,034.46
PERS Retirement (EFT) August 9, 2019 46,866.59
TOTAL $ 4,926,760.22

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:

AGENDA ITEM A.2. |



August 28, 2019
Register of Demands
Page 2 of 2

DISCUSSION:

Staff certifies that the register of demands has been reviewed for accuracy, that funds are
available to pay the above demands, and that the demands comply with the adopted budget.

CEQA COMPLIANCE STATEMENT:

Not a project as defined by CEQA.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The register of demands for June 22, 2019 through August 9, 2019 reflects total expenditures
of $4,926,760.22 from various City funding sources.

WORK PLAN:

N/A
OPTIONS:

e Ratify the register of demands.
e Do not ratify and provide direction.

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the City Council ratify the above register of demands.

CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Department Recommendation.

Atftachments:

1. Check Register — Disbursement Fund



| INJWHOV.LLY

PENTAMATION

DATE: 08/12/2019

TIME: 09:34:

SELECTION CRITERIA:
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:

34

transact.gl _cash='1011"

2/20

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO

1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011

1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011

1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011

95233
95234
95235
95236
95237

95238
95238
95238
95238

95239

95240
95240
95240

95245
95245
95245
95245
95245
95245
95245
95245
95245
95245
95245
95245
95245
95245
95245
95245
95245
95245
95245
95245
95245
95245
95245
95245
95245
95245
95245
95245
95245

ISSUE DT VENDOR

06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19

06/27/19

06/27/19

06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19

06/27/19

06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19

06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19

2379
2159
1135
2137
1122

4832
4832
4832
4832

5029

3480
3480
3480

1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA

CHECK REGISTER - DISBURSEMENT FUND

NAME
AA FARNSWORTH'S BACKFLOW
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES,
AFFORDABLE PIPELINE SERV
AFLAC

APPLE ONE, INC

AT&T CALNET 3
AT&T CALNET 3
AT&T CALNET 3
AT&T CALNET 3

BILL SMITH FOREIGN CAR S

BUSINESS PRINTING COMPAN
BUSINESS PRINTING COMPAN
BUSINESS PRINTING COMPAN

US BANK
US BANK
US BANK
US BANK
US BANK
US BANK
US BANK
US BANK
US BANK
US BANK
US BANK

and transact.ck_date between

BUDGET UNIT

00165006560

00170007100

50900007700
001
00150005150

00150005450
00150005450
00150005450
00150005450

00160006140

00150005350
00150005350
00150005300

00170007110
00170007110
00150005150
00150005450
00160006120
00150005200
00150005250
00150005200
00150005250
00150005150
00150005150
00150005150
00150005150
00160006170
00160006120
00150005150
00160006140
00160006170
00165006510
00150005150
00150005150
00150005150
00150005150
00150005200
00150005150
00160006170
00160006170
00160006120
00165006520

120190622 00:00:00.000’ and

BACKFLOW ANNUAL TEST
DIAL-A-RIDE-05/20/19
I-SEWER CLEANING
JUNE 19

TEMP HELP PE 06/15

9391053641 04/24-5/23
9391012278 4/24-5/23
9391012282 4/24-5/23
9391062899 4/24-5/23

RNGR- OIL/BRK PADS

LETTERHEAD
OVR PMNT/LETTERHEAD
BUS' CARD~THAYER/SITHE

SKT PRK OPN VENDOR
SKT PRK OPN-BOW
BATTERIES

HOSTING DOMAINS-APR
PRIME MEMBERSHIP
CLOSED SESSION-05/08
CLOSED SESSION-05/08
CLOSED SESSION-04/24
CLOSED SESSION-04/24
DOT LABELS

DOT LABELS

DRY ERASE LABELS
STAMP

CPR CERT-1 LG
CONNCTR/TAPE

DOT LABELS

TONER

BUOY HARDWARE
UNDERWATER LGT-GOPRO
ORGANIZER

ERGO SUPPORT

ERGO SUPPORT

DOT LABELS

LA TIMES-Q4

ATNI FATIGUE MAT
SHADES

MED RESPNSE TRN BOOKS
CAL CHIEFS-FORD~5/14
STORM DRAIN SUPPLIES

SALES TAX

0.

0.

(]

o [N NN o Re] fel

OO0

COO0OO0OOCOOOOOULLLOOCOOOODOOOCOOOOOO

00
00

.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00

.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

PAGE NUMBER:

*20190809 00:00:00.000"

AMOUNT

40.

33

425

895.
256.

164.
2,338.
.42
.69
2,686,

19
164

846.

852.
-134.
155.
874.

305.

14.
14.
15.
16.
16.
16.
17.
17.
i8.
21.
26.
26.
31.

36.
37.
37.
39.
44.
51.
51.
538.
617.
647.
818.

00

.60
.00

40
52
69
16
96
22



PENTAMATION
DATE: 08/12/2019
TIME: 09:34:34

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, Ca
CHECK REGISTER - DISBURSEMENT FUND

PAGE NUMBER:
ACCTPA21

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.gl_cash='1011’ and transact.ck_date between ’'20190622 00:00:00.000’ and ‘20190809 00:00:00.000"

ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 2/20

FUND -~ 001 - GENERAL FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO ISSUE DT VENDOR NAME BUDGET UNIT = ---——-— DESCRIPTION-—-=~~
1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 001 APWA~GOLDBERG-09/08
1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00160006120 HEDGE SHEERS/POLE
1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00150005100 CLOSED SESSION-05/08
1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00165006530 TIRES

1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00165006560 TIRES

1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00150005100 CLOSED SESSION-04/24
1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00160006170 ANIMAL CATCH POLE
1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00150005150 AGENDA BINDERS/TSSUE
1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 001 CCMA CONF-KING-05/02
1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00160006170 CPR CERT-MS EMTS

1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00150005400 FILES

1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00160006170 KEYS

1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00160006150 CERT-CANOPY

1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00150005150 HOLE PUNCHES

1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00150005150 DIAS LASER PEN

1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 001 CCAC REG-ARMBRUST
1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00170007110 SKT PRK OPN-CAKE

1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 001 ENGY SYMP-BECKR-6/21
1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 001 ENGY SYMP-~HEGNR-6/21
1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00170007110 SKT PRK OPN-SERVNGWRE
1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00150005450 DOMAIN RENEWAL-06/21
1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00150005150 LBLS/BNDR/WHTOUT/ERGO
1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00160006140 CACEO-BRYANT-5/13
1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00150005150 STICKERS

1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00165006530 DISTILLED WATER-STI
1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00160006120 TAPE

1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00165006530 PWI WATER

1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00165006570 WATER DISPENSER

1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00150005150 DRY ERASE MARKERS
1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00160006170 EPIPEN TRAINER

1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00165006530 PWI WATER

1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00165006530 PWI WATER

1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00170007110 SKT PRK OPN SUPPLIES
1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00160006170 PADS/TAPE/PSR/DRY ERS
1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00170007110 SKT PRK OPN-SKT DECK
1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00160006170 WINDSHIELD WIPERS
1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00170007110 SKT PRK OPN SUPPLIES
1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00160006170 TONER

1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00150005150 FLAGS/STICKERS

1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00150005450 CONSTANT CONTACT--MAY
1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00160006170 CLEANING NOZZLE

1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00150005150 DOT LABELS

1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00165006530 FIESTA DEL SOL TOW
1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00150005150 BBL MAILR/MOV TP/FLDR
1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00160006120 TRASH CAN

1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 001 CCMA CONF-WADE-05/02
1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 25560006180 UHAUL FOR JG SUPPLIES
1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00150005100 ADMIN DAY BFAST

1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00150005150 ERGO SUPPORTS/FILES
1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00160006120 TOWING-2 CARS

1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00160006120 TSSUE/TWLS/BAGS/DTRGT
1011 95245 06/27/19 1914 US BANK 00170007110 SKT PRK OPN-EQUIPMENT

SALES TAX

[ojololaslolsNeloollolojlooeolaleleNeReloleNeRoRelofololofolololoRoleleleReReleRoloNolololoRelololoNo el

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

AMOUNT

829.
87.
92.
95.
95.

105.

107.

119.

i24.

126.

127.

128.

139.

160.

160.

175.

179.

185.

185.

203.

204.

212.

-525.

56.
60.
60.
70.
70.
73.
75.
76.
79.
80.
82.
87.
248,
265.
313.
349.
350.
373.
395.

WOEEIIJaw

2



PENTAMATION
DATE:
TIME:

SELECTION CRITERIA:
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:

08/12/2019
09:34:

34

transact.gl_cash='1011"

2/20

FUND - 001 -~ GENERAL FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO

1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK
1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK
1011
1011
1011

1011

95245
95245
95245
95245

95246
95246
95247
95248
95249
95250
95251
95252
95253
95254
95254
95255
95256
95256
95256
95256

95256
95256

95257
95257
95257
95257
95258
95259
95260

95261

ISSUE DT
06/27/19
06/27/19

06/27/19
06/27/19

06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19

06/27/19
06/27/19

06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19

06/27/19

VENDOR
1914
1914

1914
1914

5051
5051
1295
1041
4482
5171
3967
338
2165
218
218
739
134
134
134
134

134
134

4481
4481
4481
4481
5726
825

223

5480

NAME

US BANK
US BANK
US BANK
US BANK

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA

CHECK REGISTER - DISBURSEMENT FUND

and transact.ck_date between

CINTAS CORPORATION NO.
CINTAS CORPORATION NO.

CITY OF

CITY OF

CONNECTIVITY LLC/MAKAI S

CORELOGIC SOLUTIONS, LLC

DEL MAR

ESCONDIDO

COREY ANDREWS

COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO, DEH

CULLIGAN OF SAN DIEGO

DATATIC
DATATIC

KET INC.
KET INC.

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

DIXIELI
DIXIELI
DIXIELTI
DIXIELT
DIXIELI
DIXIELI

DRAVES
DRAVES
DRAVES
DRAVES

EDWARD

EMERGENCY MEDICAL PRODUC

FEDEX

FISHER

NE LUMBER CO
NE LUMBER CO
NE LUMBER CO
NE LUMBER CO
NE LUMBER CO
NE LUMBER CO

PIPELINE INC
PIPELINE INC
PIPELINE INC
PIPELINE INC

WEDBUSH

INTEGRATED,

INC
INC
INC
INC
INC
INC

INC.

BUDGET UNIT
00170007110
00160006170

00170007110
00160006140

00165006570
00165006570
00150005450
00165006520
00160006170
00155005550
00155005550
00160006120
00160006170
00160006140
00160006140
00150005400
00160006120
00165006570
00165006530
00165006560

00165006570
00165006560

001
001
001
001
001
25560006180
00150005150

00150005450

'20190622 00:00:00.000"

SKT PRK OPN~SKT DECKS
SCUBA GEAR SERVICE
SKT PRK OPN VENDOR
CACEO~BRYANT-5/13

FRST AID SUPPLY-CH/LC
FIRST AID SUPPLIES-PW
IT MAINT SUPPORT-MAY
BIGHT MONTRNG-2018
RESCUE BOARD

PROPRTY PRO DATA-JUN
MILEAGE~JAN-JUN 19
FACILTY PRMT-FD7/2020
DRNKNG WTR SVC-JUN
PRKNG TCKT ADMIN-MAY
PRKNG TCKT ADMIN-MAY
FINGERPRINT APP-MAY
SCREWS/HOSE ATTCH
SQUEEGEE/CLEANER/BOLT
BOLTS/O-RINGS

PVC/PVC COVER/ADAPTER

SPEAKER WIRE
SAFETY GLASSES

RFND-EP#4070/421 N GR
RFND-EP#4071/426 N GR
RFND-EP#4147/421 N GR
RFND-EP#4133/425 S RI
RFND-SB~0636143

FIRST AID SUPPLIES-MS
SHIPPING~-06/10/19

COUNCIL WEB STRM-MAY

SALES TAX

OO

OO

0.00
0.00
0.
0
0

00

.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00

0.00

[}

COO0OQOOO

COOOO

)

.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00

PAGE NUMBER:
ACCTPA21

and ‘20190809 00:00:00.000"

AMOUNT

457
481
495
525
12,055

460.
50.

511

1,800.

920.

645

96.

147

484.

45

250.
.45
1,692,

1,442

608.

22,
55.

17.
24.
133.

611.
611.
755.
755.
2,732.

332.
721.

25

800.

.94
.68
.00
.00
.94

85
87

.72

00
00

.00

83

.67

00

.56

00
45

00

.74

00



PENTAMATION
DATE:
TIME:

SELECTION CRITERIA:
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:

08/12/2019
09:34:

34

transact.gl_cash='1011"

2/20

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO

1011

1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
1011

1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011

1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK
1011
1011
1011

1011
1011

95262
95263
95263
95264
95265
95266
95267
95267
95268
95269
95269
95269

95269
95269

95270
95270
95271
95272
95272
95272
95272
95272
95273
95274
95274
95275
95276
95277

95278
95278

ISSUE DT VENDOR

06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19

06/27/19
06/27/19

06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19

06/27/19
06/27/19

5262
1011
1011
11

3859
5724
5098
5098
2102
4738
4738
4738

4738
4738

2106
2106

5407

111
111
111
111
111
4708
2019
2019
5252
50
1531

5361
5361

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA

CHECK REGISTER - DISBURSEMENT FUND

NAME

GEORGE HILLS

HDL-HINDERLI

HDL~HINDERLI

ICMA RETIREM

ICMA RETIREM

and transact.ck_date between

COMPANY, 1IN
TER, DE LLAM
TER, DE LLAM
ENT TRUST-45

ENT TRUST-RH

JOHANNA AFSHANI-AFRA

JOSE GARCIA
JOSE GARCIA

LEGAL SHIELD

MEDICAL EYE
MEDICAL EYE
MEDICAL EYE
MEDICAL EYE
MEDICAL EYE

CORP

SERVICES
SERVICES
SERVICES
SERVICES
SERVICES

MIKHAIL OGAWA ENGINEERIN
MIKHAIL OGAWA ENGINEERIN

PJ CASTORENA

. MISSION LINEN &
MISSION LINEN &
MISSION LINEN & UNIFORM
MISSION LINEN &
MISSION LINEN &

MUNICIPAL EM

NORTH COUNTY

NORTH COUNTY

NOSSAMAN LLP

OFFICE DEPOT

PARROTT SCRE

, INC.

UNIFORM
UNIFORM

UNIFORM
UNIFORM
ERGENCY SERV

EVS, INC
EVS, INC

INC

EN PRINTG &

HABITAT PROTECTION, INC
HABITAT PROTECTION, INC

BUDGET UNIT
12050005460
00150005300
00150005300
001
001
001
00165006530
00165006560
001
001
001
001

001
00150005400

00165006520
00165006520
55000007750
21100007600
50900007700
00165006520
00165006560
00165006530
00160006120
00160006120
00160006120
00150005250
00150005300
25570007110

00165006570
00165006570

©20190622 00:00:00.000°

PROF SRVC~MAY

Q2 CY19 STAX-CONTRACT
Q4 CY1l8 STAX AUDIT
ICMA PD 06/28/19

ICMA PD 06/28/19
RFND-FCCC-6/8/19
MILEAGE-6/16 & 6/18
MILEAGE~6/16 & 6/18

PPD LEGAL-JUN 19

EE# JUNE 19
EE# JUNE 19
EE JUNE 19

VISION JUNE 19
ROUNDING JUNE 19

JURMP~MAY

JURMP~MAY

CCA WKLY ENRLMNTO06/10
LAUNDRY-PUB WORKS
LAUNDRY-PUB WORKS
LAUNDRY-PUB WORKS
LAUNDRY-PUB WORKS
LAUNDRY-PUB WORKS
HEAD PHONE AMPLFRS
ON CALL REPAIR-04/08
ON CALL REPAIR~04/08
PROF SVC-MAY
BINDERS/DIVIDERS
STAFF & CAMP SHIRTS

PEST CONTROL~LC
PEST CONTROL-MS

SALES TAX

[eReRw]

o OO0 (=} OO0 OCOOOOO [ [eNeNe]

QOO

.00

.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00

.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00

PAGE NUMBER:
ACCTPA21

and ‘20190809 00:00:00.000"

AMOUNT

43

1,050.

682
1,732

10,357

2,005.

500.

37
37
74

64.

11
29

172

261.

10

1,087

3,000.
10,417.
.44

13,417

45.

66

655

30.
30.

.00

00

.11
L11

.03

18

00

.12
.12
.24

75

.29
.14
33.
464.
-0.
538.

87
16
24
22

.25
10,908.
11,080.

29
54

81

.29
.18
10.

32

.32
i8.
50.

35
46

.35

00
44

00

.12

.36

00
00



PENTAMATION

DATE: 08/12/2019

TIME:

SELECTION CRITERIA:
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:

09:34:

34

transact.gl_cash='1011"

2/20

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO

1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011

1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK
1011
1011
1011
1011

1011
1011

95278
95278
95278
95278
95278
95278

95279
95279
95279

95280

95281
95281
95281
95281
95281
95281

95282
95283
95284
95285
95286
95286
95286
95286

95286
95286

95287
95287
95288
95289
95290
95291

95291
95291

ISSUE DT

06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19

06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19

06/27/19

06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19

06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19

06/27/19
06/27/19

06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19

06/27/19
06/27/19

VENDOR

5361
5361
5361
5361
5361
5361

1087
1087
1087

1008

257
257
257
257
257
257

5722
5723
5437
3915
4465
4465
4465
4465

4465
4465

5258
5258
5704
3980
5037
2097

2097
2097

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA

CHECK REGISTER - DISBURSEMENT FUND

NAME

HABITAT PROTECTION, INC
HABITAT PROTECTION, INC
HABITAT PROTECTION, INC
HABITAT PROTECTION, INC
HABITAT PROTECTION, INC
HABITAT PROTECTION, INC

PREFERRED BENEFIT INS AD
PREFERRED BENEFIT INS AD
PREFERRED BENEFIT INS AD

PSC, LLC

SAN DIEGO COUNTY SHERIFF
SAN DIEGO COUNTY SHERIFF
SAN DIEGO COUNTY SHERIFF
SAN DIEGO COUNTY SHERIFF
SAN DIEGO COUNTY SHERIFF
SAN DIEGO COUNTY SHERIFF

SEAN NICHOLAS

SHANE DALEY

STEVENS STREET, LLC
STRUCTURAL ENGINEERING &
SUN LIFE FINANCIAL

SUN LIFE FINANCIAL

SUN LIFE FINANCIAL

SUN LIFE FINANCIAL

SUN LIFE FINANCIAL
SUN LIFE FINANCIAL

SUPERION LLC

SUPERION LLC

THE HOME DEPOT PRO
TURNOUT MAINTENANCE COMP
US BANK PARS ACCOUNT #67
UT SAN DIEGO - NRTH COUN

UT SAN DIEGO - NRTH COUN
UT SAN DIEGO - NRTH COUN

and transact.ck_date between

BUDGET UNIT

00165006570
00165006570
00165006570
00165006570
00165006570
00165006570

001
00150005400
001

00165006520

00160006110
21960006110
00160006110
21960006110
00160006110
001

00150005400
00150005400
00150005300
45994506510
001
001
001
001

001
001

00155005550
00155005550
00165006560
00160006120
660

00150005150

00155005550
00150005150

£20190622 00:00:00.000"

and

PEST CONTROL-FC
PEST CONTROL-PW
PEST CONTROL-FS
PEST CONTROL-CH
AS NEEDED PST CNTL~SC
AS NEEDED PST CNTL-FC

EE | TIMING JUNE 19
ADMIN FEE JUNE 19
DENTAL JUNE 19

HHW-MAY

OFFCR VACNCY CREDIT
OFFCR VACNCY CREDIT
LAW ENFORCEMENT-APR
LAW ENFORCEMENT-APR
LAW ENFRCMNT-EASTER
CR TOW FEE-APR

S. NICHOLAS-LIVESCAN

S. DALEY-LIVESCAN

700 STVN CLSNG-PRP TX
9450.10 PROF SVC

MAY 19 LIFE & ADD INS
JUNE 19 LIFE&ADD INS

MAY 19 LTD

JUNE 19 LTD

MAY 19 SUPP LIFE INS
JUNE 19 SUPP LIFE INS

FY19 TRAKIT MAINT
FY19 MY COMMUNITY APP
MARK REMOVER

TRNT COAT ALTR-SPANN
FY19 OPEB OBLIGATION
ORD 502~INTRO

PUB HRNG-~1718.23 DRP
ORD 503-INTRO

SALES TAX

COOOOOO

COoOOO

DOOCODOOO o < CODOOOO o

[wRw R )

OO

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00

.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00

PAGE NUMBER:
ACCTPA21

©20190809 00:00:00.000"

AMOUNT

775

-4,669.
.30

-95

340,522,
7,720.
613.
-820.
343,271.

20.

27

7,897

2,040.

1,123

1,502

1.,507.
.30
.30
.83

297
297
5,856

34,162
7,271
41,433

191.

132

157,099.

58.
344.
94.

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.90
.50
230
.90

.90

70

59
41
91
65
26

00

.00
.06

.79
1,128.
.16

85

.01
.25
.26

31

.33

00

74
03
93



PENTAMATION
DATE:
TIME:

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.gl_cash='1011°
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:

08/12/2019
09:34:

34

2/20

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO

1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011

1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011

1011
TOTAL CHECK

95291
95291
95291

95292
95292
95292
95292

95293
95293

95294
95294
95294
95294
95294

95295

95296
95296
95296
95296
95296
95296
95296
95296
95296
95296

95297
95297
95298
95299
95300
95301

95302
95302

ISSUE DT

06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19

06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19
06/27/19

06/27/19
06/27/19

07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19

07/11/19

07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19

07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19

07/11/19
07/11/19

VENDOR

2097
2097
2097

5594
5594

1135
1135
1135
1135
1135

1122

3704
3704
3704
3704
3704
3704
3704
3704
3704
3704

4832
4832
4919
3069
3480
2631

3902
35902

NAME

UT SAN DIEG
UT SAN DIEG
UT SAN DIEG

VERIZON WIR
VERIZON WIR
VERIZON WIR
VERIZON WIR

WEX K BANK
WEX BANK

AFFORDABLE
AFFORDABLE
AFFORDABLE
AFFORDABLE
AFFORDABLE

APPLE ONE,

ARCO GASPRO
ARCO GASPRO
ARCO GASPRO
ARCO GASPRO
ARCO GASPRO
ARCO GASPRO
ARCO GASPRO
ARCO GASPRO
ARCO GASPRO
ARCO GASPRO

AT&T CALNET
AT&T CALNET

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA

CHECK REGISTER ~ DISBURSEMENT FUND

O - NRTH
O - NRTH
O - NRTH

ELESS~SD
ELESS-SD
ELESS~SD
ELESS~S5D

PIPELINE
PIPELINE
PIPELINE
PIPELINE
PIPELINE

3

KATHLEEN BENSON

JOSHUA BLEA

and transact.ck_date between

COUN
COUN
COUN

BUSINESS PRINTING COMPAN

CLEAN STREE

T

BUDGET UNIT

00150005150
00150005150
00155005550

00160006140
27060006120
00160006120
00160006120

00160006120
00160006120

50900007700
50900007700
50900007700
50900007700
00165006520

00150005150

00160006120
00165006570
00165006510
50900007700
00170007110
00160006140
00165006530
00165006520
00160006170
00165006560

00165006540
50900007700
001550055590
00165006560
00165006510
00165006550

CORODATA RECORDS MANAGEM 00150005150
CORODATA RECORDS MANAGEM 00150005150

120190622 00:00:00.000"

RESO 2019-64
RES0O-2019-062
PUB HRNG-1718.28 CUP

CODE CELL 11/24-12/23
CSAl7 IPAD 4/29-5/28
FIRE CELL 4/29-5/28
BC CELL 4/29-5/28

AUTO FUEL~MAY
CR EXEMPT TAX

I-SEWER CLEANING
C-SEWR CLEAN-3,688
B-SEWR CLEAN-10,569.4
D-SEWER CLEAN-7,673
H~STORM DRAIN MAINT

TEMP HELP PE06/29

AUTO FUEL 06/03-07/02
AUTO FUEL 06/03-07/02
AUTO FUEL 06/03-07/02
AUTO FUEL 06/03~07/02
AUTO FUEL 06/03-07/02
AUTO FUEL 06/03-07/02
AUTO FUEL 06/03-07/02
AUTO FUEL 06/03-07/02
AUTO FUEL 06/03-07/02
AUTO FUEL 06/03-07/02

9391012279 5/24-6/23
9391012277 5/24-6/23
MILEAGE-1/01-6/30/19
MILEAGE~06/23/19

BUS CARD~WRIGHT
STREET SWP-JUN

RECORDS STRG-JUN
RECORDS DESTRY-6/27

SALES TAX

OO O DOOOQO QOO

COOOOO

o

[=N =]

OCOCOOODOOOOO

OO

.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00

.00
.00
.00

.00
.00

PAGE NUMBER:
ACCTPA21

and ‘20190809 00:00:00.000"

AMOUNT

458.
.27

270.
1,690.

463

107.
.03
206.

114

62
489

1,129
-65

425,
1,844.
7,081.

11,662,
1.,140.
.46

22,153
256

343
126

151

303

75
2,663

43
i3

18.

29.

75

3,299.

722

812

74

76
47

02

48

.42
.95

.25
.24
1,064.

01

00
00
50
96
00

.52

.72
.53
139.

19

.84
114.

24

.62
366.
404.
636.

95
90
27

.92
.18

.30
.33
56.

63
69

00

.81

92

.53
90.
.78

25



PENTAMATION

DATE: 08/12/2019

TIME: 09:34:

34,

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA

CHECK REGISTER - DISBURSEMENT FUND

PAGE NUMBER:
ACCTPA21

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.gl_cash='1011’ and transact.ck_date between ’20190622 00:00:00.000’ and '20190809 00:00:00.000"

ACCOUNTING PERIOD:

2/20

FUND - 001 -~ GENERAL FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO

1011

1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011

1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011

1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
1011

1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

95303

95304
95304
95304
95304
95304

95305

95306
95306

95307

95308
95308
95308
95308
95308

95309
95310
95311

95312
95312
95312
95312
95312
95312
95312
95312
95312
95312
95312
95312
95312
95312
95312
95312
95312

95313
95313

ISSUE DT VENDOR

07/11/19

07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19

07/11/19

07/11/19
07/11/19

07/11/19

07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19

07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19

07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19

07/11/19
07/11/19

127

5635
5635
5635
5635
5635

108

5210
5210

4684

134
134
134
134
134

5543
269
2462

94
94
94
94
94
94
94
94
94
94
94
94
94
94
94
94
94

11
11

NAME
COX COMMUNICATIONS INC

CREST EQUIPMENT, INC.
CREST EQUIPMENT, INC.
CREST EQUIPMENT, INC.
CREST EQUIPMENT, INC.
CREST EQUIPMENT, INC.

DEL MAR BLUE PRINT COMPA

COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO

DIVISION OF THE STATE AR

DIXTIELINE LUMBER CO INC
DIXIELINE LUMBER CO INC
DIXIELINE LUMBER CO INC
DIXIELINE LUMBER CO INC
DIXIELINE LUMBER CO INC

DOMUSSTUDIO ARCHITECTURE

DUDEK & ASSOCIATES INC.

EMBROIDERY IMAGE

ESGIL CORPORATION
ESGIL CORPORATION
ESGIL CORPORATION
ESGIL CORPORATION
ESGIL CORPORATION
ESGIL CORPORATION
ESGIL CORPORATION
ESGIL CORPORATION
ESGIL CORPORATION
ESGIL CORPORATION
ESGIL CORPORATION
ESGIL CORPORATION
ESGIL CORPORATION
ESGIL CORPORATION
ESGIL CORPORATION
ESGIL CORPORATION
ESGIL CORPORATION

BUDGET UNIT
00150005450

45994506510
45994506510
45994506510
45994506510
50994506510

22893206510

00160006140
00160006140

001

00165006530
00165006560
00165006570
00165006530
00165006530

45094496510
50998336510
00150005400

00155005560
00160006120
00155005560
00155005560
00155005560
00160006120
00160006120
00160006120
00160006120
00160006120
00160006120
00160006120
00155005560
00155005560
00155005560
00155005560
00155005560

ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST-45 001
ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST-45 001

CTYINTRNT 06/19-07/18

9450.10 EMRG DRN RPR
9450.10 EMRG DRN RPR
9450.10 EMRG DRN RPR
9450.10 EMRG DRN RPR
9450.10 EMRG DRN RPR

9320.01 GLNCST DR PRJ

PRKNG CITE ADMIN-MAY
PRKNG CITE ADMIN-APR

DAE FEES~APR-JUN 19

BLACK TOP PATCH
BOLT/NUT

ANCHOR KIT/LEVLNG HNG
CONCRETE MIX

GLOVES/ WASH

9449.01 MS CNTR~MAY
9833 PUMP STN-APR-MAY
SB EMPLOYEE POLOS

BLDG PRMT 06/24-06/28
FIRE PRMT 06/24-06/28
BLDG PRMT 04/01-04/05
BLDG PRMT 05/06-05/10
BLDG PRMT 04/29-05/02
FIRE PRMT 05/28~05/31
FIRE PRMT 04/01-04/05
FIRE PRMT 06/03~06/07
FIRE PRMT 05/20-05/24
FIRE PRMT 04/29-05/02
FIRE PRMT 06/10-06/14
FIRE PRMT 05/06-05/10
BLDG PRMT 05/06-05/10
BLDG PRMT 05/28-~05/31
BLDG PRMT 06/03-06/07
BLDG PRMT 05/20-05/24
BLDG PRMT 06/10-06/14

ICMA PD 07/11/19
ICMA PD 07/12/19

SALES TAX

0.

cooOoOOoOO

<

00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00

0.00

[ I = N w]

QOO OOO

o o O

COOCOOOOOOODOOOOOOOO

[eNe]

.00
.00

.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00

0.00

AMOUNT

582
47,305

54,169
54,451

244,427

26.

2,687

82.

86.
.08
.68
.63

18.
128.

10

6,185.

3,781

2,389.

6,498.
528.

3,823

11,181,
.02
300.

13,629
345
1,092

1,102
1,102

11,619
31,260

7,559.
.48
.69

11,161
18,720

.14

.94
.70
.48
73,736.
14,763.
.16

08
96

30

.25
3,096.
5,783.

67
92

80

09

89
37

00

.55

99

17
75

.56

19
00

.71
678.
.61
.50
.50
2,306.
4,544.
5,148.
9,868.
.62
.89
105,031.

75

44
65
37
73

46

21



PENTAMATION
DATE:
TIME:

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.gl_cash='1011"
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:

08/12/2019
09:34:

34

2/20

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO

1011
1011

1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011

1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011

1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011

1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011

95314
95315

95316
95316

95317
95318

95319
95319
95319
95319
95319
95319
95319
95319
95319
95319

95320

95321
95321

95322

95323
95323
95323
95323
95323
95323
95323
95323
95323
95323

95324
95324
95324
95324
95324
95324
95324

ISSUE DT VENDOR

07/11/19
07/11/19

07/11/19
07/11/19

07/11/19
07/11/19

07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19

07/11/19

07/11/19
07/11/19

07/11/19

07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19

07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19

3859
1075

4165
4165

4572
5731

1130
1130
1130
1130
1130
1130
1130
1130
1130
1130

5508

5549
5549

5407

111
111
111
111
111
111
111
111
111
111

4522
4522
4522
4522
4522
4522
4522

NAME

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA

CHECK REGISTER - DISBURSEMENT FUND

and transact.ck_date between

ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST~RH

IRON MOUNTAIN

KANE BALLMER & BERKMAN
KANE BALLMER & BERKMAN

KING OF THE PAINTERS CO

LINDA CO

MCDOUGAL
MCDOUGAL
MCDOUGAL,
MCDOUGAL
MCDOUGAL
MCDOUGAL
MCDOUGAL
MCDOUGAL
MCDOUGAL
MCDOUGAL

RSETTI

LOVE ECKIS
LOVE ECKIS
LOVE ECKIS
LOVE ECKIS
LOVE ECKIS
LOVE ECKIS
LOVE ECKIS
LOVE ECKIS
LOVE ECKIS
LOVE ECKIS

SMIT
SMIT
SMIT
SMIT
SMIT
SMIT
SMIT
SMIT
SMIT
SMIT

MERCHANTS BUILDING MAINT

MICHAEL BAKER INTERNATIO
MICHAEL BAKER INTERNATIO

PJ CASTO!

MISSION
MISSION
MISSION
MISSION
MISSION
MISSION
MISSION
MISSION
MISSTON
MISSION

NISSHO O
NISSHO O
NISSHO O
NISSHO O
NISSHO O
NISSHO O
NISSHO O

RENA, INC.
LINEN & UNIF
LINEN & UNIF
LINEN & UNIF
LINEN &
LINEN & UNIF
LINEN & UNIFORM
LINEN &
LINEN &
LINEN &
LINEN &

F CALIFORNIA
F CALIFORNIA
F CALIFORNIA
F CALIFORNIA
F CALIFORNIA
F CALIFORNIA
F CALIFORNIA

ORM
ORM
ORM

UNIFORM

ORM

UNIFORM
UNIFORM
UNIFORM
UNIFORM

BUDGET UNIT

001
00150005150

00150005250
00150005250

001
001

00150005250
00150005250
12050005460
00150005250
00150005250
00150005250
00150005250
00150005250
00150005250
00150005250

00165006570

22093826510
22093826510

55000007750

50900007700
50900007700
00165006520
00165006560
00165006520
00165006560
00165006530
00165006530
21100007600
21100007600

00165006560
00165006530
00165006560
00165006570
20375007510
20875007580
00165006560

r20190622 00:00:00.000"

and

ICMA PD 07/12/19
RECORDS STRG~JUN

NTCD PROF SVC PE 5/31
NTCD PROF SVC PE 5/31

RFND-BC OVRPYMNT-9115
RFNDSBGR 359/781 S SO

PROF SERV PE 05/31/19
PROF SERV PE 05/31/19
CLM.1903 PE 05/31/19
05/31/19
05/31/19
05/31/19
PROF SERV PE 05/31/19
PROF SERV PE 05/31/19
PROF SERV PE 05/31/19
PROF SERV PE 05/31/19

JANITORIAL SVC-JUNE

9382.03 LSF CORR-III
9382.03 LSF CORR-III

CCA MAILR~6/10 & 6/17

LAUNDRY~PUB WORKS
LAUNDRY~PUB WORKS
LAUNDRY-PUB WORKS
LAUNDRY-PUB WORKS
LAUNDRY-PUB WORKS
LAUNDRY-PUB WORKS
LAUNDRY-PUB WORKS
LAUNDRY~PUB WORKS
LAUNDRY-PUB WORKS
LAUNDRY-PUB WORKS

POC-SOLENOID RPLCED
STREET LNDSCP SVC-JAN
PRKS LNDSCP SVC-JAN
PUBFAC LNDSCP SVC-JAN
MID#33 LNDSCP SVC-JAN
CRT LNDSCP SVC~JAN
RPLC PRSSRE REGLTR~LC

PAGE NUMBER:
ACCTPA21

©20190809 00:00:00.000"

< OO0

OO o OO0 OOOTOCO o

[l

COODO0OO0OOOLOOCOO

COOOOCO

SALES TAX

.00
.00

.00
.00
.00

.00

.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00

.00
.00
.00

.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

AMOUNT

2,024

604 .

2,989
2,992

6
30,620

17
52

9,463

4,581

31,290.
.20
.34

66,253
97,543

94.

(clNeRosoo)

17
17

97

235.
L1
17,648.

4,007.
.32
3,300.
2,758.

3,013

2,793

.29

38

.63
.87
.50

.00
.00

.50
.50
116.
122.
315.
646.
1,382.
5,500.
.12
12,500.
30,116.

78
50
00
10
50

23
23

.35

14

56

.17
.86
.90
.90
10.
10.
.59
.78
.21
.23
.26

01
01

70

38
89

68
72



PENTAMATION
DATE:
TIME:

08/12/2019
09:34:

34

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.gl_cash='1011"

ACCOUNTING PERIOD:

2/20

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO

TOTAL CHECK
1011

1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011

95325

95326
95326
95326
95326
95326
95326
95326
95326

95327
95327
95327
95327
95327
95327
95327
95327

95328
95328
95328
95328
95328
95328
95328
95328
95328
95328
95328
95328
95328
95328

95329
95329

95330
95331

95331

95332

ISSUE DT VENDOR

07/11/19

07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19

07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19

07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19

07/11/19
07/11/19

07/11/19
07/11/19

07/11/19

07/11/19

5146

50
50
50
50
50
50
50
50

5608
5608
5608
5608
5608
5608
5608
5608

4797
4797
4797
4797
4797
4797
4797
4797
4797
4797
4797
4797
4797
4797

4767
4767

5361
5354

5354

113

NAME

REGINA

OFFICE
OFFICE
OFFICE
OFFICE
OFFICE
OFFICE
OFFICE
OFFICE

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA

CHECK REGISTER - DISBURSEMENT FUND

OCHOA

and transact.ck_date between

DEPOT INC
DEPOT INC
DEPOT INC
DEPOT INC
DEPOT INC
DEPOT INC
DEPOT INC
DEPOT INC

PALOMAR MTN PREMIUM SPRI
PALOMAR MTN PREMIUM SPRI
PALOMAR MTN PREMIUM SPRI
PALOMAR MTN PREMIUM SPRI
PALOMAR MTN PREMIUM SPRI
PALOMAR MTN PREMIUM SPRI
PALOMAR MTN PREMIUM SPRI
MTN PREMIUM SPRI

PALOMAR

PAMELA
PAMELA
PAMELA
PAMELA
PAMELA
PAMELA
PAMELA
PAMELA
PAMELA
PAMELA
PAMELA
PAMELA
PAMELA
PAMELA

ELLIOTT
ELLIOTT
ELLIOTT
ELLIOTT
ELLIOTT
ELLIOTT
ELLIOTT
ELLIOTT
ELLIOTT
ELLIOTT
ELLIOTT
ELLIOTT
ELLIOTT
ELLIOTT

LANDSCAPE
LANDSCAPE
LANDSCAPE
LANDSCAPE
LANDSCAPE
LANDSCAPE
LANDSCAPE
LANDSCAPE
LANDSCAPE
LANDSCAPE
LANDSCAPE
LANDSCAPE
LANDSCAPE
LANDSCAPE

PARTNERSHIPS WITH INDUST
PARTNERSHIPS WITH INDUST

HABITAT PROTECTION,

INC

PILLSBURY WINTHROP SHAW
PILLSBURY WINTHROP SHAW

PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL FINA

BUDGET UNIT

00150005400

00155005550
00155005550
00150005300
00150005300
00150005300
00150005300
00150005350
00150005350

00170007110
00170007110
00165006570
00165006570
00165006570
00150005350
00150005350
00150005350

21355005550
21355005550
21355005550
21355005550
21355005550
21355005550
21355005550
21355005550
21355005550
21355005550
21355005550
21355005550
21355005550
21355005550

00165006550
00165006570

00165006570
00150005250

00150005250

00150005150

©20190622 00:00:00.000"

CEQA PRJCT MNGT-OCHOA

PENS
PENS/FOLDERS/TISSUE
WALL FILE
ORGANIZER

DESK TOP ORGANIZER
REFND~ORGANIZER
PAPER

PAPER

DRINKING WATER-LC
DRINKING WATER-LC
DRINKING WATER~PW
DRINKING WATER-PW
DRINKING WATER-PW
DRINKING WATER-CH
DRINKING WATER-CH
DRINKING WATER-CH

1716.29/635 N GRANADO
1716.29/635 N GRANADO
1718.22/424 PACIFIC
1719.07/336 S
1717.25/781 E
1717.25/781 E
1714.22/412 E CLIFF
1713.24/421 N
1719.05/412 N
1718.17/475 MARVIEW
1715.39/310 S RIOS
1716.44/1058 SOLANA
1718.06/346 GLENMONT
1719.03/640 VIA DE LA

TRASH ABTMNT PE 06/15
TRASH ABTMNT PE 06/15

AS NEEDED PST CNTL-PW
PROF SVC-MAR

PROF SVC~MAR

POSTAGE MTR-4/30-7/29

SALES TAX

0

(=)

OCOOOOOOOOQ

[=ReReReleNwNeNoNo]

OO0 OOCODODOOOOOOOQ

o OO0

oo

.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00

PAGE NUMBER:
ACCTPA21

and ‘20190809 00:00:00.000"

AMOUNT

33,757.
525.

26.
58.
17.
20.
22.
-20.
944.
314.
1,383.

15.
23.

63.
69.
72.
24.
281.

250.
250.
250.
250.
250.
250.
250.
250.
250.
250.
375.
375.
375.
500.
4,125,

724.
724.
1,449.
25.
1,031.
5,563.
6,594.

704.

80

50
00
50

94



PENTAMATION
DATE:
TIME:

08/12/2019
09:34:

34

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.gl_cash='1011"

ACCOUNTING PERIOD:

2/20

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO

1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011

1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
1011

95333
95333

95334
95334

95335

95337
95337
95337
95337
95337
95337
95337
95337
95337
95337
95337
95337
95337
95337
95337
95337
95337
95337
95337
95337
95337
95337
95337
95337
95337
95337

95338
95338
95338
95338
95338
95338
95338
95338
95338

95339
95339
95339

ISSUE DT

07/11/19
07/11/19

07/11/19
07/11/19

07/11/19

07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19

07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19

07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19

VENDOR

1112
1112

4080
4080

5730

141
141
141
141
141
141
141
141
141
141
141
141
141
141
141
141
141
141
141
141
141
141
141
141
141
141

169
169
169
169
169
169
169
169
169

1073
1073
1073

NAME

and transact.ck_date between

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA

CHECK REGISTER - DISBURSEMENT FUND

RANCHO SANTA FE SECURITY
RANCHO SANTA FE SECURITY

JENNIFER REED
JENNIFER REED

RUTH VOORHIES

SANTA
SANTA
SANTA
SANTA
SANTA
SANTA

IRRIGATION
IRRIGATION
IRRIGATION
IRRIGATION
IRRIGATION
IRRIGATION
IRRIGATION
IRRIGATION
IRRIGATION
IRRIGATION
IRRIGATION
IRRIGATION
IRRIGATION
IRRIGATION
IRRIGATION
IRRIGATION
IRRIGATION
IRRIGATION
IRRIGATION
IRRIGATION
IRRIGATION
IRRIGATION
IRRIGATION
IRRIGATION
IRRIGATION
IRRIGATION

BUDGET UNIT

00165006560
00165006560

00150005350
00170007100

001

20475007520
00165006560
00165006560
20875007580
00165006520
50900007700
00165006530
00165006550
00165006560
00165006560
00165006560
00165006560
00165006560
20875007580
00165006560
00165006560
00165006560
00165006560
00165006570
00165006560
00165006560
00165006560
00165006560
00165006560
20375007510
00165006560

00165006530
00165006540
00165006530
00165006540
00165006570
20375007510
00165006570
21100007600
55000007750

SEASIDE HEATING & AIR CO 00165006570
SEASIDE HEATING & AIR CO 00165006570
SEASIDE HEATING & AIR CO 00165006570

©20190622 00:00:00.000°

RESTRM LCK/UNLOCK-JUN
ALARM MONITORING-JUN

ADMIN SVC-JUN
SHORELINE-01/01-05/31

RFND-SBGR352/732 CAST

GRP 6-01 06/01-07/01

005506018 0601~070119
005506019 0601-070119
005506020 0601-070119
005506014 06/01~07/01
005506014 06/01-07/01
011695000 06/01-07/01
011695000 06/01-07/01
012448001 05/02-07/01
012448000 05/02-07/01
005506000 0502-070119
005506001 0502-070119
005506002 0502-070119
005506003 0502-070119
005506004 0502~-070119
005506005 0502~070119
005506006 0502-070119
005506007 0502-070119
005506008 0502-070119
005506009 0502-070119
005506010 0502-070119
005506011 0502-070119
005506012 0502-070119
005506013 0502-070119
005979000 0502~-070119
005979001 0502-070119

UTILITIES-04/30~06/07
UTILITIES-04/30~-06/07
UTILITIES~05/06-06/07
UTILITIES-05/06-06/07
UTILITIES~04/30-06/07
UTILITIES-05/06-06/07
UTILITIES-05/06~06/07
UTILITIES~04/30-06/07
SEA CCA SVC-MAY

HEAT/HVAC UNIT RPLC
HVAC MAINT-MAY-CH
HEAT/HVAC UNIT RPLC

SALES TAX

oo

0.00
0.
0.00

00

.00
.00

0.00

o

DO0OOQOLOOOOTOOOOODOOOCOLLOCOOO

COOOODODOOQ

OO

.00

PAGE NUMBER:
ACCTPA21

and ‘20190809 00:00:00.000"

10

AMOUNT

529
205
734

198.

1,336

23,389.

6,360.
210.
1,169.
.21
174.
.28
.88
.63
.08
.32
.68
.08
388.
136.
85.
199.
136.
108.
388.
.08
.04
296.
1,400.

1,372

523
31
95
85

136

137
85

85
122

112

401
433
723
772
1,486

4,414

19,097

3,825
157

.42
.09
.51

00

.50
1,534.

50
20

52
31
41

42

57
32
08
44
32
18
57

17
35

.80
714.
181.

14,736.

92
11
77

.28
.74
.54
.97
.67
2,111,
.38
6,454,
2,299.
.35

08

19
50

.00
.50
5,538.

00



PENTAMATION
DATE:
TIME:

SELECTION CRITERIA:
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:

08/12/2019
09:34:

34

transact.gl_cash='1011"

2/20

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO

TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK
1011
1011
1011
1011

1011
TOTAL CHECK

95340
95340
95340
95340

95341
95341
95341
95341
95341
95341
95341

95342

95342
95342
95343
95344
95345
95346
95346
95346
95347
95348
95349
95350
95350
95350
95351
95352
95353

95353
95353

ISSUE DT VENDOR

07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19

07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19

07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19
07/11/19

07/11/19
07/11/19

4281
4281
4281
4281

1231
1231
1231
1231
1231
1231
1231

4840
4840
4840
3915
3066
5427
1458
1458
1458
2097
5509
3242
30

30

30

3723
4844
2189

2189
2189

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA

CHECK REGISTER - DISBURSEMENT FUND

NAME

SIEMENS INDUSTRY, INC
SIEMENS INDUSTRY, INC
SIEMENS INDUSTRY, INC
SIEMENS INDUSTRY, INC
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME
STC TRAFFIC, INC

STC TRAFFIC, INC

STC TRAFFIC, INC

STRUCTURAL ENGINEERING &
SUMMIT ENVIRONMENTAL GRO
TOSDAL LAW FIRM

THE UNIFORM SPECIALIST
THE UNIFORM SPECIALIST
THE UNIFORM SPECIALIST
UT SAN DIEGO -~ NRTH. COUN
VALLEY CONSTRUCTON MANAG
VAN DYKE LANDSCAPE ARCHI
VERIZON WIRELESS-SD
VERIZON WIRELESS-SD
VERIZON WIRELESS-SD
WAGEWORKS

WARWICK GROUP CONSULTANT
WILLDAN

WILLDAN
WILLDAN

and transact.ck_date between

BUDGET UNIT

00165006540
00165006540
21100007600
00165006540

00150005400
00150005350
00165006510
00165006510
00150005350
00165006520
00155005560

00165006540
00165006540
00165006540
45994506510
45099266190
55000007750
00160006120
00160006120
00160006120
00155005550
50998336510
45994386510
00160006140
00160006140
00150005450
00150005400
45099266190
67385008530

67285008520
67185008510

©20190622 00:00:00.000"

TRAFFIC SGNL MNT-MAY
TRAFFIC CALL OUT-MAY
ST LIGHT REPAIR-MAY

TRAFFIC CALLOUT-10/30

PRINTER INK
FOLDERS/CRD STK/FILES
EXPANDABLE FOLDERS
EXPNDR FILE/INK/CLROX
FLAGS

EXPNDR FILE/INK/CLROX
POCKET FILES

ONCALL
ONCALL
ONCALL

TRFFC-JAN
TRFFC~FEB/MAR
TRFFC-JAN
9450.10 PROF SVC

9926 PROF SVC SND-JUN
SEA PROF SVC-APR
POLOS/EMB~HANSEN
SHIRTS/PANTS-SAMPLE
BOOTS-MORGAN

PUB HRNG-1717.47 SUB
9833PMP STN MNGMT-MAY
9438.10 SKT PRK-MAY
CODES CELL 5/24-6/23
CODES IPAD 5/24-6/23
IT CELL 05/24-06/23
FSA ADMIN-JUN

9926.19 PROF SVC~JUN
MARSOLAN APR~-JUN

PACIFIC APR-JUN
BARB/GRAN APR~-JUN

SALES TAX

0.

OO OO ool oNael

o o OO0 (e (=] oo Q [ o OO0

OO0

00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00

PAGE NUMBER: -
ACCTPA21

and ‘20190809 00:00:00.000"

11

AMOUNT

9,520.

993.
.24
.21
1,860.
.37

536
1,872

5,262

117
159

158

5,385

2,932,
5,515.
.50

13,832

3,930.

1,430.

35

108.
359.
194,
.38

662

339.

23,231

3,163

145.
1,205.
.04
.79

152
1,502

128.

5,375

254
255

777

50
92

00

.44
.14
74.
.64
4.
158.
434.
1,107.

32

19
64
72
09

.00

50
00

00

00

.15

23
31
84

89

.25

.05

01
74

75

.00

.16
.30
267.

98

.44



PENTAMATION
DATE: 08/12/2019
TIME: 09:34:34

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA
CHECK REGISTER -~ DISBURSEMENT FUND

SELECTION CRITERIA:
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:

transact.gl_cash='1011’ and transact.ck_date between ‘20190622 00:00:00.000"

2/20

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO

ISSUE DT VENDOR

NAME

BUDGET UNIT

1011 95354 07/11/19 1497 ZUMAR INDUSTRIES INC 00165006530 CITY LOGO ST SIGNS
1011 95355 07/18/19 4711 ABEL PEREZ 00165006560 MILEAGE-06/30/19

1011 95355 07/18/19 4711 ABEL PEREZ 00165006530 MILEAGE~06/30/19
TOTAL CHECK

1011 95356 07/18/19 5137 ABLE PATROL & GUARD, INC 00170007110 FCCC SECURITY-MAY
1011 95356 07/18/19 5137 ABLE PATROL & GUARD, INC 00170007110 FCCC SECURITY-JUNE
TOTAL CHECK

1011 95357 07/18/19 1135 AFFORDABLE PIPELINE SERV 50994506510 O-SEWER CONTAINMENT
1011 95358 07/18/19 834 ALLSTAR FIRE EQUIPMENT, 00160006120 COAT/PATCHES-MEAD
1011 95359 07/18/19 174 AMERICAN PUBLIC WORKS AS 50900007700 19/20 MEMBR-4 ENG/PW
1011 95359 07/18/19 174 AMERICAN PUBLIC WORKS AS 00165006510 19/20 MEMBR-4 ENG/PW
1011 95359 07/18/19 174 AMERICAN PUBLIC WORKS AS 00165006520 19/20 MEMBR-4 ENG/PW
TOTAL CHECK

1011 95360 07/18/19 4794 AMR 27060006120 CSA.17 MED SUPPLIES
1011 95361 07/18/19 4832 AT&T CALNET 3 00150005450 9391012278 5/24-06/23
1011 95361 07/18/19 4832 AT&T CALNET 3 00150005450 9391012282 5/24-06/23
1011 95361 07/18/19 4832 AT&T CALNET 3 00150005450 9391053641 5/24-06/23
1011 95361 07/18/19 4832 AT&T CALNET 3 00150005450 9391062899 5/24-06/23
TOTAL CHECK

1011 95362 07/18/19 5739 BDS ENGINEERING INC 001 RFND-BC#9098

1011 95363 07/18/19 5029 BILL SMITH FOREIGN CAR S 00165006530 F150-~A/C RESET

1011 95363 07/18/19 5029 BILL SMITH FOREIGN CAR S 00165006560 F~250-BRAKE PADS

1011 95363 07/18/19 5029 BILL SMITH FOREIGN CAR S 50900007700 F-250-BRAKE PADS
TOTAL CHECK

1011 95364 07/18/19 3480 BUSINESS PRINTING COMPAN 00150005350 NON WNDW ENVELOPES
1011 95364 07/18/19 3480 BUSINESS PRINTING COMPAN 00150005350 WINDOW ENVELOPES

1011 95364 07/18/19 3480 BUSINESS PRINTING COMPAN 00150005300 BUS CARD-KOSZEWNIK
1011 95364 07/18/19 3480 BUSINESS PRINTING COMPAN 00160006120 BUS CARD-FIRE PREVNTN
TOTAL CHECK

1011 95365 07/18/19 5334 CALIFORNIA BUILDING STAN 001 Q4 BLDG STNDRDS SURCH
1011 95365 07/18/19 5334 CALIFORNIA BUILDING STAN 001 ADJ FOR FY19 YEAR END
1011 95365 07/18/19 5334 CALIFORNIA BUILDING STAN 001 Q4 BLDG STNDRDS SURCH
1011 95365 07/18/19 5334 CALIFORNIA BUILDING STAN 001 ADJ FOR FY19 YEAR END
TOTAL CHECK

1011 95366 07/18/19 3551 CITY NATIONAL BANK 32000007220 FIRE TRK:15-010-07/03
1011 95366 07/18/19 3551 CITY NATIONAL BANK 32000007220 FIRE TRK:15-010-07/03
TOTAL CHECK

1011 95367 07/18/19 318 COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO ASSE 00155005550 MAP FEE 06/27/19

SALES TAX

DOOO o COOOO o OO0 o [w] [=ReR ol [Nl

OO0

COoOOoCOoQO

OO0

.00

.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00

.00

.00

.00
.00
.00
.00

.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00

.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00

.00

PAGE NUMBER:
ACCTPA21

and ‘20190809 00:00:00.000°

12

AMOUNT

614

125.

675

1,140.

2,411

180.
300.
300.
780.

154

2,340.
.42
.69

164.
2,689.

19
164

6.

131
312
312
757

275.
718.
75.
75.
.37

1,145

208.
.00
.00
-12.
188.

12
~-20

6,112

2

.23

.12
.12
16.

24

00

.00
800.

00

00

.45

00
00

00

.74

86

69
66

00

.46
.86
.86
.18

54
21
81
81

00

00
00

.41
125,831.
131,944.

90
31

.00



PENTAMATION
DATE: 08/12/2019
TIME: 09:34:34

PAGE NUMBER: 13
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA ACCTPA21

CHECK REGISTER -~ DISBURSEMENT FUND

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.gl_cash='1011’ and transact.ck_date between ‘20190622 00:00:00.000’ and ‘20190809 00:00:00.000"
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 2/20

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO ISSUE DT VENDOR NAME BUDGET UNIT -—--- DESCRIPTION-~~——— SALES TAX AMOUNT
1011 95368 07/18/19 2629 D & D DISPOSAL INC 00160006130 ANIMAL DISPOSAL~JUN 0.00 395.00
1011 95369 07/18/19 38 DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATI 001 SMIP FEES-APR-JUN 19 0.00 800.90
1011 95369 07/18/19 38 DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATI 001 ADJ FOR FY19 YEAR END 0.00 39.00
1011 95369 07/18/19 38 DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATI 001 SMIP FEES-APR-JUN 19 0.00 -40.05
1011 95369 07/18/19 38 DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATI 001 ADJ FOR FY19 YEAR END 0.00 -39.00
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 760.85
1011 95370 07/18/19 134 DIXIELINE LUMBER CO INC 00165006570 CUT KEY 0.00 6.66
1011 © 95370 07/18/19 134 DIXIELINE LUMBER CO INC 00165006570 BRACE/WASHER/NUT 0.00 16.28
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 22.94
1011 95371 07/18/19 2127 ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVIC 001 . Q4 SPEC EVENT INSUR 0.00 2,418.01
1011 95372 07/18/19 4989 DRO MANAGEMENT CONSULTAN 00150005200 PROF SVC-MAY-JUN 0.00 937.50
1011 95372 07/18/19 4989 DRO MANAGEMENT CONSULTAN 00150005200 PROF SVC-MAR-APR 0.00 2,375.00
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 3,312.50
1011 95373 07/18/19 223 FEDEX 00150005150 SHIPPING-06/27/19 0.00 26.11
1011 95374 07/18/19 5480 FISHER INTEGRATED, INC. 00150005450 COUNCIL WEB STRM-SEP 0.00 ~800.00
1011 95374 07/18/19 5480 FISHER INTEGRATED, INC. 00150005450 COUNCIL WEB STRM-SEP 0.00 800.00
1011 95374 07/18/19 5480 FISHER INTEGRATED, INC. 00150005450 COUNCIL WEB STRM~JUN 0.00 800.00
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 800.00
1011 95375 07/18/19 321 GOLDEN TELECOM, INC. 00160006170 MS HANDSET MAINT 0.00 78.69
1011 95376 07/18/19 5717 GOVOFFICE LLC 00150005450 EXTND STRG ANL FEE 19 0.00 250.00
1011 95376 07/18/19 5717 GOVOFFICE LLC 00150005450 EXTND STRG-ADDTNL 4GB 0.00 125.00
1011 95376 07/18/19 5717 GOVOFFICE LLC 00150005450 HOSTING ANNUAL FEE 19 0.00 1,050.00
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 1,425.00
1011 95377 07/18/19 3299 HELIX ENVIRONMENTAL 21355005550 1716.18/1036 SOLANA DR 0.00 1,686.25
1011 95378 07/18/19 87 ISLA VERDE HOA 20575007530 LNDSCAPE MAINT-JUN 0.00 425.00
1011 95379 07/18/19 5455 JPW COMMUNICATIONS, LLC 55000007750 SEA POSTCARDS 0.00 311.18
1011 95380 07/18/19 1565 LOCAL GOVERNMENT PUBLICA 00150005250 CA LAND USE-2019 UPDT 0.00 143.56
1011 95381 07/18/19 5729 LUDWIG MASONRY 001 RFND-BC CERT #9102 0.00 6.00
1011 95382 07/18/19 5735 NATALIE FICARRA 25055005570 CONCERT-07/18/19 0.00 500.00
1011 95383 07/18/19 4807 PCMG, INC 13550005450 HP SERVER 0.00 2,455.62
1011 95384 07/18/19 5738 PORTILLO CONCRETE INC 001 RFND-BC#9094 0.00 6.00
1011 95385 07/18/19 416 REGIONAL COMMS SYS, MS 0 00160006120 CAP CODE~-JUN 0.00 32.50
1011 95386 07/18/19 5737 ROBIN ADAMS 001 RFND-BC#8771 0.00 17.00



PENTAMATION
DATE: 08/12/2019
TIME: 09:34:34

PAGE NUMBER: 14
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA ACCTPA21L

CHECK REGISTER - DISBURSEMENT FUND

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.gl_cash='1011’ and transact.ck_date between ‘20190622 00:00:00.000’ and '20190809 00:00:00.000"
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 2/20

FUND ~ 001 - GENERAL FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO ISSUE DT VENDOR NAME BUDGET UNIT = —----- DESCRIPTION-——~~- SALES TAX AMOUNT
1011 95387 07/18/19 86 SAN ELIJO HILLS II HOA 20775007550 LNDSCAPE MAINT-JUN 0.00 6,550.00
1011 95388 07/18/19 88 SANTA FE HILLS HOA 20475007520 LNDSCAPE MAINT-JUN 0.00 12,250.00
1011 95389 07/18/19 141 SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00160006120 005512000 01/03-03/01 0.00 -527.17
1011 95389 07/18/19 141 SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00160006120 005512000 01/03-03/01 0.00 527.17
1011 95389 07/18/19 141 SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00160006120 005512000 05/02-07/01 0.00 568.75
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 568.75
1011 95390 07/18/19 156 SHARP REES-STEALY MEDICA 00150005400 PRE-EMPLOUMENT SCREEN 0.00 3,900.50
1011 95391 07/18/19 5427 TOSDAL LAW FIRM 55000007750 SEA PROF SVC-MAY 0.00 5,038.00
1011 95392 07/18/19 40 UNDERGROUND SVC ALERT OF 00165006510 DIG ALERT-JUNE 0.00 62.80
1011 95393 07/18/19 2097 UT SAN DIEGO - NRTH COUN 00150005150 ORD 502 AMND 0.00 57.23
1011 95393 07/18/19 2097 UT SAN DIEGO - NRTH COUN 00150005150 ORD 503-~AMND 0.00 91.92
1011 95393 07/18/19 2097 UT SAN DIEGO - NRTH COUN 00150005200 PUB HRNG-WASTE/RCYCL 0.00 167.33
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 316.48
1011 95394 07/18/19 30 VERIZON WIRELESS-SD 27060006120 CSA17 IPAD 05/29-6/28 0.00 114.03
1011 95394 07/18/19 30 VERIZON WIRELESS-SD 00160006120 FIRE CELL 05/29-06/28 0.00 247.18
1011 95394 07/18/19 30 VERIZON WIRELESS-SD 00160006120 BC CELL 05/29-06/28 0.00 65.94
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 427.15
1011 95395 07/18/19 5736 VINCENT PHILLIP WILLIAMS 001 REISSUE-V#235149 0.00 84.49
1011 95396 07/18/19 37 XEROX CORPORATION 00150005350 W7830PT UPSTRS~JUN 0.00 199.60
1011 95396 07/18/19 37 XEROX CORPORATION 00150005350 EXCESS BLK-05/21-6/21 0.00 97.74
1011 95396 07/18/19 37 XEROX CORPORATION 00150005350 EXCESS CLR-05/21-6/21 0.00 349.17
1011 95396 07/18/19 37 XEROX CORPORATION 00150005350 DI5CP PLNG LEASE-JUN 0.00 555.18
1011 95396 07/18/19 37 XEROX CORPORATION 00150005350 EXCSS COPIES5/25-6/30 0.00 96.77
1011 95396 07/18/19 37 XEROX CORPORATION 00150005350 W7830PT CLRKS-JUN 0.00 218.99
1011 95396 07/18/19 37 XEROX CORPORATION 00150005350 EXCESS BLK-05/21-6/21 0.00 32.18
1011 95396 07/18/19 37 XEROX CORPORATION 00150005350 EXCESS CLR-05/21-6/21 0.00 182.86
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 1,732.49
1011 95397 07/25/19 4711 ABEL PEREZ 00165006530 MILEAGE-07/13-07/14 0.00 16.24
1011 95398 07/25/19 4800 ASSISTANCE LEAG RNCHO SA 00150005100 COMM GRANT FY 19/20 0.00 3,000.00
1011 95399 07/25/19 4832 AT&T CALNET 3 00160006120 9391012280 5/24-6/23 0.00 376.25
1011 95399 07/25/19 4832 AT&T CALNET 3 00160006120 9391012280 5/24-6/23 0.00 37.97
1011 95399 07/25/19 4832 AT&T CALNET 3 00160006120 9391012280 4/24-5/23 0.00 414.30
1011 95399 - 07/25/19 4832 AT&T CALNET 3 00160006120 9391059865 4/01-4/30 0.00 388.02
1011 95399 07/25/19 4832 AT&T CALNET 3 00160006120 9391059865 5/01-5/31 0.00 388.02
1011 95399 07/25/19 4832 AT&T CALNET 3 00160006120 9391059865 6/01-6/30 0.00 388.02
1011 95399 07/25/19 4832 AT&T CALNET 3 00160006170 9391053651 4/25~5/24 0.00 219.49
1011 95399 07/25/19 4832 AT&T CALNET 3 00160006170 9391053651 05/25-6/24 0.00 220.14
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 2,432.21



PENTAMATION PAGE NUMBER: 15
DATE: 08/12/2019 CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA ACCTPA21
TIME: 09:34:34 CHECK REGISTER - DISBURSEMENT FUND

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.gl_cash='1011"
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 2/20

and transact.ck_date between ‘20190622 00:00:00.000’ and ‘20190809 00:00:00.000"

FUND -~ 001 - GENERAL FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO ISSUE DT VENDOR NAME BUDGET UNIT ~  ==——— DESCRIPTION~~———— SALES TAX AMOUNT
1011 95400 07/25/19 4919 KATHLEEN BENSON 00150005450 TRAKIT MOUSES 0.00 129.24
1011 95401 07/25/19 5524 BIRD RIDES INC. 001 REISSUE-CHK#93619 0.00 110.00
1011 95402 07/25/19 3716 BOYS & GIRLS CLUB 00150005100 COMM GRANT FY 19/20 0.00 4,570.00
1011 95403 07/25/19 3480 BUSINESS PRINTING COMPAN 00150005300 BUS CARD-WONG/BERKUTI 0.00 155.77
1011 95403 07/25/19 3480 BUSINESS PRINTING COMPAN 00150005300 BUS CARD-WONG/BERKUTI 0.00 -155.77
1011 95403 07/25/19 3480 BUSINESS PRINTING COMPAN 00150005300 BUS CARD-WONG/BERKUTI 0.00 155.77
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 155.77
1011 95404 07/25/19 5521 CA DEPARTMENT OF TAX AND 550 Q4 ENERGY SRCHRG RTN 0.00 4,197 .43
1011 95405 07/25/19 2853 CASA DE AMISTAD 00150005100 COMM GRANT FY 19/20 0.00 4,570.00
1011 95406 07/25/19 310 CITY OF ENCINITAS 00160006120 PRVNTN TRVL PNL-1/17 0.00 64.69
1011 95406 07/25/19 310 CITY OF ENCINITAS 00160006120 FIRE OPS TRAINNG BOOK 0.00 86.28
1011 95406 07/25/19 310 CITY OF ENCINITAS 00160006120 TELESTAFF SFTWR UPDT 0.00 124.11
1011 95406 07/25/19 310 CITY OF ENCINITAS 00160006120 VHF RADIO CARD SETS 0.00 126.81
1011 95406 07/25/19 310 CITY OF ENCINITAS 00160006120 FRST WTCH SUPPT MAINT 0.00 149.12
1011 95406 07/25/19 310 CITY OF ENCINITAS 00160006120 FRST WICH SUPPT MAINT 0.00 -149.12
1011 95406 07/25/19 310 CITY OF ENCINITAS 00160006120 VHF RADIO CARD SETS 0.00 ~126.81
1011 95406 07/25/19 310 CITY OF ENCINITAS 00160006120 TELESTAFF SFTWR UPDT 0.00 -124.11
1011 95406 07/25/19 310 CITY OF ENCINITAS 00160006120 FIRE OPS TRAINNG BOOK 0.00 -86.28
1011 95406 07/25/19 310 CITY OF ENCINITAS 00160006120 PRVNTN TRVL PNL-~1/17 0.00 -64.69
1011 95406 07/25/19 310 CITY OF ENCINITAS 00160006120 PRVNTN TRVL PNL-1/17 0.00 64.69
1011 95406 07/25/19 310 CITY OF ENCINITAS 00160006120 FIRE OPS TRAINNG BOOK 0.00 86.28
1011 95406 07/25/19 310 CITY OF ENCINITAS 00160006120 FIRE OT FY19 2/16&6/5 0.00 4,568.08
1011 95406 07/25/19 310 CITY OF ENCINITAS 00160006120 FIRE PREVENTION 0.00 282.84
1011 95406 07/25/19 310 CITY OF ENCINITAS 00160006120 FIRE MGMNT FY19 Q3&Q4 0.00 150,547.00
1011 95406 07/25/19 310 CITY OF ENCINITAS 00160006120 TELESTAFF SFTWR UPDT 0.00 124.11
1011 95406 07/25/19 310 CITY OF ENCINITAS 00160006120 VHF RADIO CARD SETS 0.00 126.81
1011 95406 07/25/19 310 CITY OF ENCINITAS 00160006120 FRST WTCH SUPPT MAINT 0.00 149.12
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 155,948.93
1011 95407 07/25/19 2854 COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTE 00150005100 COMM GRANT FY 19/20 0.00 4,570.00
1011 95408 07/25/19 4482 CONNECTIVITY LLC/MAKAI S 25560006180 3 SURFBOARDS-SURF CMP 0.00 903.00
1011 95408 07/25/19 4482 CONNECTIVITY LLC/MAKAI S 25560006180 3 SURFBOARDS~SURF CMP 0.00 -903.00
1011 . 95408 07/25/19 4482 CONNECTIVITY LLC/MAKAI S 25560006180 3 SURFBOARDS-SURF CMP 0.00 903.00
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 903.00
1011 95409 07/25/19 1964 CSAC EXCESS INSURANCE AU 12050005460 EVAL CERTS-4/01-06/30 0.00 487 .50
1011 95409 07/25/19 1964 CSAC EXCESS INSURANCE AU 12050005460 EVAL CERTS-4/01-06/30 0.00 ~487.50
1011 95409 07/25/19 1964 CSAC EXCESS INSURANCE AU 12050005460 EVAL CERTS-4/01-06/30 0.00 487.50
1011 95409 07/25/19 1964 CSAC EXCESS INSURANCE AU 12050005460 FY20 GEN LIABILITY 0.00 111,488.00
1011 95409 07/25/19 1964 CSAC EXCESS INSURANCE AU 12050005460 FY20 EXCESS LIAB 0.00 20,278.00
1011 95409 07/25/19 1964 CSAC EXCESS INSURANCE AU 12550005465 FY20 EXCESS WKRS COMP 0.00 150,571.00
1011 95409 07/25/19 1964 CSAC EXCESS INSURANCE AU 12050005460 FY20 CYBER INSURANCE 0.00 4,180.00
1011 95409 07/25/19 1964 CSAC EXCESS INSURANCE AU 12050005460 FY20 PROPERTY PROG 0.00 77,973.00
1011 95409 07/25/19 1964 CSAC EXCESS INSURANCE AU 12050005460 FY20 MASTER CRIME PROG 0.00 1,963.00
1011 95409 07/25/19 1964 CSAC EXCESS INSURANCE AU 12550005465 FY20 POLLUTION 0.00 1,309.00



PENTAMATION
DATE:
TIME:

SELECTION CRITERIA:
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:

08/12/2019
09:34:

34

transact.gl_cash='1011"

2/20

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO

TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
- TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK
1011
1011
1011

1011
TOTAL CHECK

95410
95410

95411
95411
95411
95412
95413
95414
95415
95416
95416
95417
95418
95418
95419
95420
95421
95422
95422
95422
95422
95422
95422
95422
95423
95424

95425
95425

ISSUE DT VENDOR

07/25/19
07/25/19

07/25/19
07/25/19
07/25/19
07/25/19
07/25/19
07/25/19
07/25/19
07/25/19
07/25/19
07/25/19
07/25/19
07/25/19
07/25/19
07/25/19
07/25/19
07/25/19
07/25/19
07/25/19
07/25/19
07/25/19
07/25/19
07/25/19
07/25/19
07/25/19

07/25/19
07/25/19

218
218

739
739
739
5210
5460
134
3331
94
94
2805
i1
11
3859
5741
5733
2287
2287
2287
2287
2287
2287
2287
5740
5200

5407
5407

NAME

DATATICKET
DATATICKET

DEPARTMENT
DEPARTMENT
DEPARTMENT

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA

CHECK REGISTER - DISBURSEMENT FUND

INC.
INC.

OF JUSTICE
OF JUSTICE
OF JUSTICE

COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO

DISCONNECT

DIXIELINE LUMBER CO INC

NATE DONNIS

COLLECTIVE,

ESGIL CORPORATION
ESGIL CORPORATION

HEIDI HYDO

and transact.ck_date between

I

ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST-45
ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST-45

ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST-RH

JALISCIENCE FOLKLORIC AC

KATARINA SVINTERUD

KOPPEL & GRUBER PUBLIC
KOPPEL & GRUBER PUBLIC
KOPPEL & GRUBER PUBLIC
KOPPEL & GRUBER PUBLIC
KOPPEL & GRUBER PUBLIC
KOPPEL & GRUBER PUBLIC
KOPPEL & GRUBER PUBLIC

LA COLONIA COMMUNITY FOU

CHARLES MEAD

PJ CASTORENA,
PJ CASTORENA,

INC.
INC.

BUDGET UNIT

00160006140
00160006140

00150005400
00150005400
00150005400
00160006140
00150005100
00165006560
25055005570
00160006120
00155005560
001

001

001

001

00150005100
00170007110
20375007510
67685008560
00150005300
20475007520
20775007550
20575007530
20375007510
00150005100
00150005400

55000007750
55000007750

20190622 00:00:00.000°

PRKNG TCKT ADMIN-JUN
PRKNG TCKT ADMIN-JUN

FINGERPRINT APP~JUN
FINGERPRINT APP-JUN
FINGERPRINT APP~JUN
PRKNG CITE ADMIN-JUN
COMM GRANT FY 19/20
PROPANE EXCHANGE
CONCERT COVE-07/25/19
FIRE PRMT 06/17-06/21
BLDG PRMT 06/17-06/21
REISSUE CK#95199

ICMA PD 07/26/19

ICMA PD 07/25/19

ICMA PD 07/26/19

COMM GRANT FY 19/20
REMB~CPR CERT CLASS
EXPENSES APR-JUN

S0 SOL SWR APR-JUN
FIRE BENEFIT APR~JUN
SNTA FE HILLS APR~JUN
SAN ELJO HLLS APR-JUN
ISLA VERDE APR-JUN
OLD HGHWY 101 APR-JUN
COMM GRANT FY 19/20
MEAD-FR PREV/CRIT THN

CCA 2018 JRC MLR
CCA MAILR-6/24 & 7/01

SALES TAX

SO0

OO O

[

SO0 OOO

o O

OO

.00

.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00

PAGE NUMBER:
ACCTPA21

and ‘20190809 00:00:00.000"

16

AMOUNT

368,249

5
1,117
1,122

-384.
384.

384
384

2,619

4,570

21.
300.
600.

2,720.
3,320.

500.

10,810

11,021

2,067,
4,570.

49.

45
405

23
1,721

4,570

1,350.

3,097

3,185

.50

.00
.40
.40

00
00

.00
.00

.00

.00

54
00
00
72
72

00

.21
211.

50

.71

90
00
99

.44
.15
520.
45.
24.

00
52
72

.42
656.
.00

75

.00

00

.23
.96
.18



PENTAMATION
DATE: 08/12/2019
TIME: 09:34:34

PAGE NUMBER: 17
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA ACCTPAZ1

CHECK REGISTER - DISBURSEMENT FUND

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.gl_cash='1011’' and transact.ck_date between ‘20190622 00:00:00.000' and '20190809 00:00:00.000"
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 2/20

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO ISSUE DT VENDOR NAME BUDGET UNIT =  -—-—--- DESCRIPTION— === SALES TAX AMOUNT
1011 95426 07/25/19 5215 N. C. IMMIGRATION & CITI 00150005100 COMM GRANT FY 19/20 0.00 3,940.00
1011 95427 07/25/19 5734 NATIONWIDE MEDICAL SURGI 27060006120 CSA17.19 FENTANYL 0.00 94.99
1011 95427 07/25/19 5734 NATIONWIDE MEDICAL SURGI 27060006120 CSA17.19 FENTANYL 0.00 94.99
1011 95427 07/25/19 5734 NATIONWIDE MEDICAL SURGI 27060006120 CSA17.19 FENTANYL 0.00 -94.99
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 94.99
1011 95428 07/25/19 2163 NORTH COAST REPERTORY TH 00150005100 COMM GRANT FY 19/20 0.00 4,570.00
1011 95429 07/25/19 50 OFFICE DEPOT INC 00150005300 CORDLESS HAND VAC 0.00 65.93
1011 95429 07/25/19 50 OFFICE DEPOT INC 00155005550 WASTE BASKETS 0.00 16.71
1011 95429 07/25/19 50 OFFICE DEPOT INC 00155005550 FOLDERS 0.00 56.44
1011 95429 07/25/19 50 OFFICE DEPOT INC 00150005300 CORDLESS HAND VAC 0.00 -65.93
1011 95429 07/25/19 50 OFFICE DEPOT INC 00155005550 FOLDERS 0.00 -56.44
1011 95429 07/25/19 50 OFFICE DEPOT INC 00155005550 WASTE BASKETS 0.00 -16.71
1011 95429 07/25/19 50 OFFICE DEPOT INC 00150005300 CORDLESS HAND VAC 0.00 65.93
1011 95429 07/25/19 50 OFFICE DEPOT INC 00155005550 FOLDERS 0.00 56.44
1011 95429 07/25/19 50 OFFICE DEPOT INC 00155005550 WASTE BASKETS 0.00 16.71
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 139.08
1011 95430 07/25/19 54 "1 STOP TONER & INKJET, L 00155005550 COLOR TONER-PL 0.00 86.88
1011 95431 07/25/19 257 SAN DIEGO COUNTY SHERIFF 001 CR TOW FEE-MAY 0.00 -328.26
1011 95431 07/25/19 257 SAN DIEGO COUNTY SHERIFF 001 CR TOW FEE-MAY 0.00 -328.26
1011 95431 07/25/19 257 SAN DIEGO COUNTY SHERIFF 001 CR TOW FEE-~MAY 0.00 328.26
1011 95431 07/25/19 257 SAN DIEGO COUNTY SHERIFF 00160006110 LAW ENFORCEMENT-MAY 0.00 340,522.59
1011 95431 07/25/19 257 SAN DIEGO COUNTY SHERIFF 21960006110 LAW ENFORCEMENT-MAY 0.00 7,720.41
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 347,914.74
1011 95432 07/25/19 187 SAN DIEGUITO TROPHY 25560006180 RIBBONS-1ST-10TH PLC 0.00 -380.14
1011 95432 07/25/19 187 SAN DIEGUITO TROPHY 25560006180 RIBBONS-18T-10TH PLC 0.00 380.14
1011 95432 07/25/19 187 SAN DIEGUITO TROPHY 25560006180 RIBBONS-18T-10TH PLC 0.00 380.14
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 380.14
1011 95433 07/25/19 141 SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560 005506015 0516-071519 0.00 136.32
1011 95433 07/25/19 141 SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560 005506016 0516-071519 0.00 299.38
1011 95433 07/25/19 141 SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560 005979003 0516-071519 0.00 269.09
1011 95433 07/25/19 141 SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 20375007510 005979004 0516~071519 0.00 472.96
1011 95433 07/25/19 141 SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 20375007510 007732000 0516-071519 0.00 182.52
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 1,360.27
1011 95434 07/25/19 520 SOLANA BEACH CIVIC & HIS 00150005100 COMM GRANT FY 19/20 0.00 4,570.00
1011 95435 07/25/19 1231 STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME 00150005350 TAB DIVIDERS 0.00 ~24.99
1011 95435 07/25/19 1231 STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME 00150005350 TAB DIVIDERS 0.00 24.99
1011 95435 07/25/19 1231 STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME 00150005350 TAB DIVIDERS 0.00 24.99
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 24.99
1011 95436 07/25/19 5511 STRIDES PHYSICAL THERAPY 001 REISSUE-CK#93605 0.00 83.00
1011 95437 07/25/19 5172 JULIETTE THAYER 25055005570 REIMBURSE~CNCRT 07/11 0.00 309.00



PENTAMATION
DATE:
TIME:

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.gl_cash='1011"
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:

08/12/2019
09:34:

34

2/20

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO

1011
1011
1011
1011
1011

1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011

1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011

1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011

95438
95439
95440
95441

95442

95443
95443
95443

95444
95445

95446
95446

95447
95447

95448
95448

95449
95450

95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456

ISSUE DT
07/25/19
07/25/19
07/25/19
07/25/19
07/25/19

07/25/19
07/25/19
07/25/19

08/01/19
08/01/19

08/01/19
08/01/19

08/01/19
08/01/19

08/01/19
08/01/19

08/01/19
08/01/19

08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08701719
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19

VENDOR
283

51

40
1458
3242

3769
3769
3769

2137
5317

4452
4452

5742
5742

1122
1122

4832
2424

1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA

CHECK REGISTER ~ DISBURSEMENT FUND

NAME

THE SAN DIEGUITO RIVER V
TRAUMA INTERVENTION PROG
UNDERGROUND SVC ALERT OF
THE UNIFORM SPECIALIST
VAN DYKE LANDSCAPE ARCHI
RIMGA VISKANTA

RIMGA VISKANTA

RIMGA VISKANTA

AFLAC

AGIT GLOBAL NORTH AMERIC
ALL THE KING’S FLAGS

ALL THE KING'S FLAGS

AMANDA MARKS
AMANDA MARKS

APPLE ONE,
APPLE ONE,

INC
INC

AT&T CALNET 3

BJ’S RENTALS

US BANK
US BANK
US BANK
US BANK
US BANK
US BANK
US BANK
US BANK

and transact.ck _date between

BUDGET UNIT
00150005100
00160006120
00165006510
00160006120
45994386510

00150005200
00150005200
00150005200

001
25560006180

00165006530
00165006570

001
001

00150005150
00150005150

00160006150
00165006560

001

00150005150
00150005150
00150005150
00150005150
00150005150
00160006120
00160006120
00160006170
00160006170
25560006180
00165006570
00165006530
00150005450
25560006180
00150005250
00150005200

720190622 00:00:00.000°

COMM GRANT FY 19/20
FY 20 24HR VLNTR SVC
CA ST REGLTRY-JULY
POLOS-

REISSUE CHK#95097

MILEAGE-04/15-06/06
MILEAGE-04/15-06/06
MILEAGE~04/15-06/06

JULY 19
12-JR GRD BODYBOARD

POW/MIA/US/CSB FLAGS
POW/MIA/US/CSB FLAGS

RFND-FCCC 02/15/20
RFND-FCCC 02/15/20

TEMP HELP PEQ7/06/19
TEMP HELP PE07/13/19

9391012275 5/24-6/23
TILLER

ENRGY SYMP~WADE-6/21
BACH SUPPORT

ERGO SEAT CUSHION
FILES

BACK SUPPORT
PACKING TAPE

HOSE COUPLER

DRILL BITS

BRUSHES

FOLDERS

CORD PLUGS

CH WATER COOLER

PWI WATER

HOSTING DOMAINS-MAY
HARDWARE /BUCKET
CLOSED SESSION-5/22
CLOSED SESSION-6/12

SALES TAX

0.
0.

[eNeNe] [N R [eReNo] (o] OCOOO [wd

(=R ]

DOCOOCOQOOODODOODOO0OOOO

00

00

.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00

.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00

.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

PAGE NUMBER:

ACCTPA21

and ‘20190809 00:00:00.000"

18

AMOUNT

1,500.
2,018.
46.
108.
3,670.

71
~71
71.
71.

895
271

265
265
530.

1,344
156
1,500

216.
256.
472

164.
89

-185.
-95.
-60.
-45
~-40.
~29.

-7

Woo~I~~3~3 b

10.

11.

00
00
16
23
00

.11
.11

11
11

.40
.28

.22
.23

45

.20
.39
.59

24
52

.76

.81

00
55
49

.24

72
08

.32
.44
.51
.53
.95
.98
.38
.95

21

.50

00



PENTAMATION
DATE: 08/12/2019
TIME: 09:34:34

PAGE NUMBER: 19
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA ACCTPA21

CHECK REGISTER - DISBURSEMENT FUND

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.gl_cash='1011’ and transact.ck_date between 20190622 00:00:00.000’ and ‘20190809 00:00:00.000"
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 2/20

FUND - 001 -~ GENERAL FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO ISSUE DT VENDOR NAME BUDGET UNIT  — ——=—m DESCRIPTION-———-— SALES TAX AMOUNT
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00150005250 CLOSED SESSION-6/12 0.00 12.00
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 25560006180 INSULATED MUG FOR ICE 0.00 12.95
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00150005200 CLOSED SESSION-5/22 0.00 12.99
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00160006120 PRIME MEMBERSHIP 0.00 14.00
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00160006120 2 HOSE COUPLERS 0.00 14.85
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00150005150 BATTERIES 0.00 15.34
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00150005400 IT PANEL COFFEE 0.00 15.50
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00160006120 HINGES/BOLTS/WSHRS 0.00 16.02
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00160006170 LIGHT BULBS 0.00 17.13
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00150005400 IT PANEL SNACKS 0.00 17.65
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00150005100 SCHL REL MTG-COFFEE 0.00 17.95
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00160006170 TONER 0.00 18.99
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 25560006180 ROPE/STORAGE BIN/WSHR 0.00 19.29
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00165006510 APWA LNCH~GOLDBRG-6/7 0.00 20.00
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00160006120 CNNCTR/SEALR/BLADES 0.00 23.03
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00160006140 NOV NOTICE CERT MAIL 0.00 23.07
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00160006120 CLR REMOVER 0.00 24.65
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00160006170 OIL 0.00 25.59
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00170007110 ART CRMNY REFRESHMNTS 0.00 25.85
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00170007110 MEMORY CARD 0.00 26.93
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00170007110 MEM DAY REFRESHMNTS 0.00 27.88
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 001 REIMBURS CHRG-PQOUNEH 0.00 32.47
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00165006570 LIGHT WALL MOUNT-CH 0.00 32.76
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00165006510 ENG LCH-GLDBG/MO-6/12 0.00 33.08
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00165006560 SEASCAPE STRS LIGHT 0.00 34.36
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00150005150 TABLE MAT 0.00 37.96
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00150005150 ERGO SEAT CUSHION 0.00 38.99
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 001 ENGY SYMP~BEC/HEG6/21 0.00 40.40
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00160006170 BATTERIES 0.00 40.88
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 25560006180 JG PATCHES 0.00 41.94
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00160006170 CABL TIES/TPE/HOOK 0.00 42.92
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00160006120 ODOR ELIMINATOR 0.00 43.09
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00160006120 CORD/PINS 0.00 43.77
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 25560006180 7 STORAGE BINS 0.00 44.06
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00150005150 FOLDERS 0.00 44 .80
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00160006140 ESCAPE-OIL/FILTER 0.00 45.37
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00150005150 TAPE/DIVIDERS/BINDERS 0.00 46.94
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00170007110 MEM DAY DECORATIONS 0.00 47.32
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00150005150 COLOR PAPER 0.00 47.58
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00160006170 NOZZLE/HOSE 0.00 48.00
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00160006170 TRAILER PARTS 0.00 50.56
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00155005550 2019 CEQA BOOKS 0.00 51.10
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00150005150 PENS/POSTIT/MAGNIF 0.00 53.20
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00150005300 CSFMO-WONG/THAYR-6/17 0.00 60.00
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00160006140 DOOR HANGERS 0.00 60.56
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00160006120 CAR WASH/TUMBLERS 0.00 63.49
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00160006170 DRY ERASE/SHARPIE 0.00 63.64
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00150005450 SMRT CTY-RIMGA-6/11 0.00 65.00
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00150005300 SCANNER CLEANER 0.00 67.63
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00150005150 ERGO SEAT CUSHION 0.00 69.98
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 25560006180 TENT CHANGING RMS (3) 0.00 71.07
1011 95456 08/01/19 1914 US BANK 00160006170 3 BROOMS 0.00 74.32



PENTAMATION
DATE:
TIME:

SELECTION CRITERIA:
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:

08/12/2019
09:34:

34

transact.gl_cash='1011"

2/20

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO

1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
- 1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK
1011

1011

95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456
95456

95457
95457

95458

95459

ISSUE DT

08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19

08/01/19
08/01/19

08/01/19

08/01/19

VENDOR

1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914
1914

5051
5051

1295

5336

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA

CHECK REGISTER - DISBURSEMENT FUND

NAME
US BANK

US BANK

US BANK

CINTAS CORPORATION NO.
CINTAS CORPORATION NO.

CITY OF DEL MAR

COLANTUONO, HIGHSMITH,

and transact.ck_date between

BUDGET UNIT

00150005450
00170007110
00150005100
00150005400
00150005150
00150005400
00150005150
00150005150
00150005150
25560006180
00150005100
00160006170
00160006170
25560006180
00160006170
25560006180
00155005550
00165006560
00160006170
25560006180
25560006180
25560006180
00160006170
25560006180
00160006170
00170007110
00160006170
00150005150
00160006170
00160006170
001

00160006120
00160006170
00160006170
00160006170
00150005150
00150005150
001

001

00160006120
00160006120
00165006560

00165006570
00165006570

00150005450

& 65278007820

720190622 00:00:00.000"

CONSTANT CONTACT-JUN
LG CEREMONY SCISSORS
CLOSED SESSION-5/22
FLOWERS-STOEFFEN
COUNCIL MTG SUPPLIES
IT PANEL LUNCH
ORGANIZERS/BRUSH
BATTERIES/FOLDRS/PADS
WATER COOLER CUPS
PIZZAS-JG TRAINING
CLOSED SESSION-6/12
BROOM/BLTS/HOOK /WSHR
TONER
TONER/PENS/CLIPBRDS
MEETING REFRESHMNTS
TOTE/25 STORAGE BINS
ENVIR PROF~TWADE-DUES
FCP BINOCULARS MAINT
DIRECTOR CHAIRS

JG BQT 1-CHAIRS/TABLE
JG BQT 2-CHAIRS/TABLE
2 TENTS

SURF HELMET
BALLS/SUNSCRN/LADDER
JET SKI SUPPLIES

MEM DAY REFRESHMNTS
12 MS HATS

DIVIDERS

UNIFORM EMBROIDERY

2 BINOCULAR REPAIR
FNT DSK-EGGM/WDE-9/11
BAGS/CLNR/DTRGNT/TWLS
BINOCULAR-NEW

F~150 REKEY

23 MS HATS

TRN MMBRSHP-IVEY

TRN MMBRSHP~BAVIN
LCC-WADE~10/16
LCC-BECKER~10/16

66 TSHIRTS

FIRE CODE BOOKS

2 BINOCULARS W/ STNDS

FIRST AID SUPPLY-PW
FIRST AID SUPPLY-~CH

IT MAINT SUPPORT-JUN

SDCOE CONSORTIUM-JAN

SALES TAX

CO0OCOOOOCLLOOOLCOLOLOLOOCLOOOOOCOOOODLOOOOODOOOCO

joReRel

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

PAGE NUMBER:
ACCTPAZ1

and 20190809 00:00:00.000"

20

AMOUNT

75
75

82
82
82
84

85

155

185
185
193

221
222
247

259

495
499
499

550
743

14,568

51.
89.
140.

2,175,

12

.00
.29
80.
80.
81.
.44
.50
.59
.26
85.
.21

88.
106.
111.
141,
142.
150.
.00
157.
.00
.00
.93
220.
.27
.66
.98
258.
.61
264.
271.
298.
341.
397.
450.

55
79
54

21

10
77
56
14
06
00

83

62

47

00
62
00
45
60
00

.40
.00
.00
550.
.00
.00
1,317.
2,389.
.94

00

54
00

07
89
96

00

.75



PENTAMATION

DATE: 08/12/2019

TIME: 09:34:

34

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA

CHECK REGISTER - DISBURSEMENT FUND

PAGE NUMBER:

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.gl_cash='1011’ and transact.ck_date between ‘20190622 00:00:00.000’' and ’20190809 00:00:00.000"

ACCOUNTING PERIOD:

2/20

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO

1011

1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011

1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011

1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011

1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011

1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

95460

95461
95461

95462
95462
95462
95462
95462
95462

95463
95464

95465
95465
95465

95466

95467
95467

95468
95469

95470
95470
95470

95471
95472

95473
95473
95473
95473
95473
95473
95473
95473

ISSUE DT VENDOR

08/01/19

08/01/19
08/01/19

08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19

08/01/19
08/01/19

08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19

08/01/19

08/01/19
08/01/19

08/01/19
08/01/19

08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19

08/01/19
08/01/19

08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19

5483
213
213

134
134
134
134
134
134

5543
5610
1985
1985
1985
4601
2873
2873
1075
4165
2287

2287
2287

2102

902

4738
4738
4738
4738
4738
4738
4738
4738

NAME

CRUST SB LLC

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTA
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTA

DIXIELINE LUMBER CO
DIXIELINE LUMBER CO
DIXIELINE LUMBER CO
DIXIELINE LUMBER CO
DIXIELINE LUMBER CO
DIXIELINE LUMBER CO

DOMUSSTUDIO ARCHITECTURE

ERGOSTOP INC

W

INC
INC
INC
INC
INC
INC

EXTERTOR PRODUCTS INC
EXTERIOR PRODUCTS INC
EXTERIOR PRODUCTS INC
FIREWATCH
GEOPACIFICA, INC
GEOPACIFICA, INC

IRON MOUNTAIN

KANE BALLMER & BERKMAN

KOPPEL & GRUBER PUBLIC F
KOPPEL & GRUBER PUBLIC F
KOPPEL & GRUBER PUBLIC F

LEGAL SHIELD CORP

LORMAN EDUCATION SERVICE

MEDICAL EYE SERVICES
MEDICAL EYE SERVICES
MEDICAL EYE SERVICES
MEDICAL EYE SERVICES
MEDICAL EYE SERVICES
MEDICAL EYE SERVICES
MEDICAL EYE SERVICES
MEDICAL EYE SERVICES

BUDGET UNIT
25560006180

00165006540
00165006540

00165006560
00165006570
00165006570
00165006570
00165006570
00165006560

45094496510
12050005460

00170007100
00170007100
00170007100

00165006570

45994506510
45994506510

00150005150
00150005250

20875007580
20875007580
21100007600

001
00150005300

00150005400
001
001
001
00150005400
00150005400
001
001

JR GUARD BANQUET #1

MAINT 04/19-06/19
ELECT 04/19-06/19

OUTLT CVR/COUPLING
QUAD WINDOW

FLEXALL PATCH

POWER STRIP/DUCT TAPE
TRANSFORMER W/TIMER
URINAL KIT

9449.01 MS CNTR-JUN
DEPT-FIN STND DESKS

60 HORSE RACE BANNER
45 REPLCMNT BRKTS
TAX

INSPCT SPRNKLR-LC

9450.10 STRMDRN-03-04
9450.10 STRM DRN-6/30

RECORDS STRG-JUL
NTCD PROF SVC PE 6/30

CRT FEE ASSESSMENT
CRT FEE ASSESSMENT
ST LGHT FEE ASSESSMNT

PPD LEGAL-JULY 19
IRS 1099 RPRT-THAYER

ROUNDING~JULY 19
EE -JuLy 19
EE -JULY 19
VISION JULY 19
ROUNDING JUNE 19
ROUNDING JUNE 19
ROUNDING JUNE 19
ROUNDING JUNE 19

SALES TAX

0.

o cooo o [N o] o DO OO o o OO OOOO [N el

o

COOOOOOOQ

00

.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00

.00

.00
.00
.00

.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

21

AMOUNT

1,900.

729
525

12
27

9,445

1,139

3,000.
.60

169.
5,350.

2,181

155

2,885

608.
1,740.

2,300.
.02
.52
3,278.

346
632

64

205.

-0

00

.58
.29
1,254.

87

.17
.59
.40
.99

44.

79.
179.

60
16
51

.00

.91

00

07
67

L1t

.00
3,894.
6,779.

60
60

22
00

00

54

.75

75

.24
11.
29.

443 .
~0.
-0.

.20

.38

484.

29
14
83
38
20

02



PENTAMATION
DATE:
TIME:

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.gl_cash='1011"
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:

08/12/2019
09:34:

34

2/20

FUND -~ 001 - GENERAL FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO

1011
1011
1011

1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011

1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011

1011

1011

1011

1011 -

1011

TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK
1011
1011

1011

95474
95475
95476

95477
95477

95478
95478
95478
95478
95478
95478
95478
95478
95478
95478
95478
95478
95478
95478

95479
95480
95481

95481

95482
95482
95482
95482
95482
95482

95483
95483
95484
95485

95486

ISSUE DT VENDOR
08/01/19 5549

08/01/19 2106
08/01/19 5732

i91
191

08/01/19
08/01/19

4522
4522
4522
4522
4522
4522
4522
4522
4522
4522
4522
4522
4522
4522

08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19

08/01/19 5146
08/01/19 50

08/01/19
08/01/19

4767
4767

08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19

5560
5560
5560
5560
5560
5560

08/01/19
08/01/19

1087
1087

08/01/19 1008

08/01/19 2260

08/01/19 5744

NAME

MICHAEL BAKER INTERNATIO

MIKHAIL OGAWA ENGINEERIN

NAPA AUTO
NAPA AUTO

NISSHO OF
NISSHO OF
NISSHO OF
NISSHO OF
NISSHO OF
NISSHO OF
NISSHO OF
NISSHO OF
NISSHO OF
NISSHO OF
NISSHO OF
NISSHO OF
NISSHO OF
NISSHO OF

REGINA OCH

OFFICE DEP

PARTNERSHIPS WITH INDUST
PARTNERSHIPS WITH INDUST

JOSEPH
JOSEPH
JOSEPH

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA

CHECK REGISTER -~ DISBURSEMENT FUND

and transact.ck_date between

MONIQUE MAGDALENO
PARTS INC
PARTS INC

CALIFORNIA
CALIFORNIA
CALIFORNIA
CALIFORNIA
CALIFORNIA
CALIFORNIA
CALIFORNIA
CALIFORNIA
CALIFORNIA
CALIFORNIA
CALIFORNIA
CALIFORNIA
CALIFORNIA
CALIFORNIA

OA

OT INC

PENNELL
PENNELL
PENNELL

JOSEPH PENNELL
JOSEPH PENNELL

JOSEPH

PREFERRED BENEFIT INS AD
PREFERRED BENEFIT INS AD

PSC, LLC

REDFLEX TRAFFIC SYSTEMS,

ROLF OLSEN

PENNELL

BUDGET UNIT
22893826510
00165006520
001

00165006530
00165006530

00165006560
00165006560
00165006560
00165006560
00165006530
00165006530
00165006560
00165006560
00165006570
20375007510
20875007580
20875007580
00165006570
20375007510

12050005460
00150005350
00165006550

00165006570

001
001
25560006180
00160006170
25560006180
001

001

00150005400
00165006520
00165006540

25055005570

©20190622 00:00:00.000"

9382.03 LSF CORR-~III
JURMP-JUN
RFND~-FCCC 6/29/19

WW SOLV
BATTERY

REPLACED SPRINKLERS
SOLENOID REPLACED

POC REPAIRS

LC PARK REPAIRS
STREET LNDSCP SVC~FEB
STREET LNDSCP SVC-APR
PRKS LNDSCP SVC-FEB
PRKS LNDSCP SVC-APR
PUBFAC LNDSCP SVC-FEB
MID#33 LNDSCP SVC-FEB
CRT LNDSCP SVC-FEB
CRT LNDSCP SVC-APR
PUBFAC LNDSCP SVC~APR
MID#33 LNDSCP SVC-APR

2019 GYM REIMB
LABLS/HANG FLDRS/CLPS
TRASH ABTMNT PE 06/30

TRASH ABTMNT PE 06/30

DVE SKILLS-PENNELL
DVE SKILLS-PENNELL
MED DIVE-PENNELL
DIVE RESCUE-PENNELL
DVE SKILLS-PENNELL
DVE RSCUE-PENNELL

DENTAL-JULY 19
ADMIN FEE-~JULY 19
HHW-JUN

RED LIGHT CAMERA-JUN

CNCRT COVE-08/01/19

SALES TAX

0.

0.

OO OOOLOO OO0

(=)

o

00

00

.00

.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00

.00

0.00

COOOOOO oo o]

[ R Raw]

.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00

PAGE NUMBER:
ACCTPA21

and ‘20190809 00:00:00.000"

22

AMOUNT

13,569.

6,804

500.

4.
159.
164.

171

3,013
3,013

24,710
3,705
2,373

13,035

81,323

280.

55

706.
706.

1,412

-365

-375

2,453

1,385.
7,158.

300.

59

.39

00

29
92
21

.23
251.
916.

1,021.

.10

L11

16,646.

.14

.02

.75

2,499,

.84

4,051.

5,914.

.75

46
84
05

14

49

86

72

00

.02

22
22

.44

.00
-350.
350.
375.
403.

00
00
00
86

.00
38.

86

.30
.50
2,457.

80
20
00

00



PENTAMATION
DATE:
TIME:

08/12/2019
09:34:

34

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA

CHECK REGISTER - DISBURSEMENT FUND

PAGE NUMBER:
ACCTPA21

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.gl_cash='1011‘ and transact.ck_date between ‘20190622 00:00:00.000’ and 120190809 00:00:00.000°

ACCOUNTING PERIOD:

2/20

FUND -~ 001 - GENERAL FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO

1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK
1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK
1011

1011

1011

1011

1011

1011

1011

1011

TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011

1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK
1011

1011

TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011

1011

95487
95487
95487

95488
95488
95488
95488

95489
95489
95489
95489
95489
95489
95489
95489

95490
95490
95490

95491
95492

95493
95493
95493
95493

95494
95494

95495
95495
95495
95495
95495
95495
95495

95496

95497

ISSUE DT

08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19

08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19

08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19

08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19

08/01/19
08/01/19

08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19

08/01/19
08/01/19

08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19
08/01/19

08/01/19

08/01/19

VENDOR

257
257
257

3804
3804
3804
3804

169
169
169
169
169
169
169
169

4281
4281
4281

5743
4840

5704
5704
5704
5704

4534
4534

30
30
30
30
30
30
30

2823

4503

NAME

SAN DIEGO COUNTY SHERIFF
SAN DIEGO COUNTY SHERIFF
SAN DIEGO COUNTY SHERIFF

SCOTT MICHAEL INC
SCOTT MICHAEL INC
SCOTT MICHAEL INC
SCOTT MICHAEL INC

SDG&E CO
SDG&E CO
SDG&E CO
SDG&E CO
SDG&E CO
SDG&E CO
SDG&E CO
SDG&E CO

SIEMENS INDUSTRY,
SIEMENS INDUSTRY,
SIEMENS INDUSTRY,

INC
INC
INC

STANDARD PLUMBING SUPPLY

STC TRAFFIC, INC

THE HOME DEPOT PRO
THE HOME DEPOT PRO
THE HOME DEPOT PRO

THE HOME DEPOT PRO

TRAFFIC
TRAFFIC

SUPPLY,
SUPPLY,

INC
INC

VERIZON
VERTIZON
VERIZON
VERIZON
VERIZON
VERIZON
VERIZON

WIRELESS-SD
WIRELESS-SD
WIRELESS~SD
WIRELESS~S5D
WIRELESS-SD
WIRELESS-SD
WIRELESS-SD

WELLS FARGO BANK

BUDGET UNIT

001
00160006110
21960006110

45994506510
45994506510
22894506510
459

00165006570
20375007510
00165006570
21100007600
00165006540
00165006530
00165006530
00165006540

00165006540
00165006540
21100007600

00165006570
00165006540

00165006570
00165006570
00165006570
00165006560

00165006540
00165006540

00165006520
21100007600
50900007700
00165006510
00165006540
00165006560
00165006530

67385008530

WESS TRANSPORTATION SERV 25570007110

CR TOW FEE-JUNE 19
LAW ENFORCEMENT-JUN
LAW ENFORCEMENT-JUN

9450.09 STRMDRN-05/31
9450. 09STMDNRTN-05/31
9450.09 STRMDRN~05/31
9450.09STMDNRTN-05/31

UTILITIES-05/31~07/09
UTILITES-06/05-~07/09
UTILITES-06/05~07/09
UTILITIES-05/31~07/09
UTILITIES-05/31-07/09
UTILITIES~05/31-07/09
UTILITES~06/05-07/09
UTILITES-06/05-07/09

TRAFFIC SGNL MNT-JUN
TRAFFIC CALL OUT-JUN
ST LIGHT REPAIR-JUN

GARBAGE DISPOSER-CH

ONCALL TRFFC-~JUN

TOILET PAPER
PAPER TOWELS
TOILET PAPER
PAPER TOWELS

STOP/SLOW PADDLE

NO PARKING/RED PAINT

ADMIN FEE 07/19~07/20

06/02~07/01
06/02-07/01
06/02-07/01
06/02-07/01
06/02-07/01
06/02-07/01
06/02~07/01

CAMP FLD TRP-07/09

SALES TAX

.00
.00
.00
.00

COOQ

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

OO0

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

COCOOOOOO

.00
.00
.00
.00

OO0

()

.00

Lol

.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

[N eleReRel

0.00
.00
.00

[ aw]

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

QOO OOOO

o

.00

0.00

23

AMOUNT

~-492
340,522

347,750

72
2,052
38,920
-2,052
38,992

2,395
2,545

5,908.
.68
.28
505.
810.
891.
20,116.

6,594
465

993.
236.
2,588.
3,818.

203

1,465

~126.
87.
144.
.03
250.

145

186
793
979

5.
.31
.31
10.
10.
10.
.92
.67

5
5

15
63

450.

440

.39
.58
7,720.
.61

42

.28
.22
.00
.22
.28

.63
.29

72

11
48
39
58

92
11
75
78

.65

.00

90
92
92

97

.06
.92
.98

31

60
61
61

00

.94



PENTAMATION
DATE:
TIME:

SELECTION CRITERIA:
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:

08/12/2019
09:34:

34

transact.gl_cash='1011"

2/20

FUND - 001 -~ GENERAL FUND

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA

CHECK REGISTER -~ DISBURSEMENT FUND

and transact.ck_date between

'20190622 00:00:00.000°

CASH ACCT CHECK NO ISSUE DT VENDOR NAME BUDGET UNIT =  ——==- DESCRIPTION--—---~
1011 95498 08/01/19 5594 WEX BANK 00160006120 AUTO FUEL-JUNE

1011 95498 08/01/19 5594 WEX BANK 00160006120 CR EXEMPT TAX

TOTAL CHECK

1011 95499 08/01/19 2189 WILLDAN 67385008530 MAR UG DEMAND LTR
1011 95499 08/01/19 2189 WILLDAN 67185008510 BRB/GRN DEMAND LTR
1011 95499 08/01/19 2189 WILLDAN 67285008520 PAC UG DEMAND LTR
TOTAL CHECK

1011 95500 08/08/19 2906 ACE UNIFORMS & ACCESSORI 25560006180 SEWINGS (20)

1011 95501 08/08/19 5317 AGIT GLOBAL NORTH AMERIC 25560006180 SURF FIN (4)

1011 95502 08/08/19 1694 ALERT-ALL CORP 00160006120 FIRE HATS

1011 95503 08/08/19 4832 AT&T CALNET 3 00160006170 9391019469 REFND ADJ
1011 95503 08/08/19 4832 AT&T CALNET 3 00160006170 9391019469 5/20-6/19
1011 95503 08/08/19 4832 AT&T CALNET 3 00160006170 9391019469 4/20-05/19
1011 95503 08/08/19 4832 AT&T CALNET 3 00160006170 9391019469 7/20-8/19
TOTAL CHECK

1011 95504 08/08/19 5320 BAYSHORE CONSULTING GROU 55000007750 CCA PROF SVC-JUN
1011 95505 08/08/19 5029 BILL SMITH FOREIGN CAR S 25560006180 TOCOMA-OIL/FILTER
1011 95506 08/08/19 3069 JOSHUA BLEA 00165006530 MILEAGE~07/20-07/21
1011 95506 08/08/19 3069 JOSHUA BLEA 00165006560 MILEAGE~07/20-07/21
1011 95506 08/08/19 3069 JOSHUA BLEA 00165006570 MILEAGE~07/20-07/21
TOTAL CHECK

1011 95507 08/08/19 263 BOOT WORLD, INC. 00165006530 BOOTS-PUBLIC WORKS
1011 95507 08/08/19 263 BOOT WORLD, INC. 00165006560 BOOTS-PUBLIC WORKS
TOTAL CHECK

1011 95508 08/08/19 3480 BUSINESS PRINTING COMPAN 00160006120 BUS CARD-R. FORD
1011 95509 08/08/19 101 CAMEO PAPER & JANITORIAL 00160006170 TOWELS/TISSUE

1011 95509 08/08/19 101 CAMEO PAPER & JANITORIAL 00160006170 LINERS

TOTAL CHECK

1011 95510 08/08/19 5635 CREST EQUIPMENT, INC. 45994506510 9450.10 EMRG DRN RPR
1011 95510 08/08/19 5635 CREST EQUIPMENT, INC. 45994506510 9450.10 EMRG DRN RPR
TOTAL CHECK

1011 95511 08/08/19 4898 STEVEN DENYES 25055005570 CONCERT-08/08

1011 95512 08/08/19 134 DIXIELINE LUMBER CO INC 00165006570 SAW BLADES

1011 95512 08/08/19 134 DIXIELINE LUMBER CO INC 00165006570 SCREW/BIT

1011 95512 08/08/19 134 DIXIELINE LUMBER CO INC 00165006570 TOILET REPAIR KIT
1011 95512 08/08/19 134 DIXIELINE LUMBER CO INC 00165006570 BOLTS/BOWL WAX

1011 95512 08/08/19 134 DIXIELINE LUMBER CO INC 00165006560 FLEX COUPLING/CEMENT

SALES TAX

OO0 [=Reyel

(]

COoOOOO

o o

o OO [=N =] [N el QOO

OO

.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00

.00

.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00

.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

PAGE NUMBER:
ACCTPA21

and 20190809 00:00:00.000°

270.

=175

21

4,251.
50.

29
29

150.
150.
300.

109

117

1,280.
71,491,
.32

72,772

400.

12
13
21
23

24

.98
.40
.58

.55
.65
.10
.30
.25

.00

31

.39
21.
.30
146.

13.

16

88
95

29

97

.00
.00
29.
87.

00
00

00
00
00

.44

.61
42.
160.

62
23

82
50

00

L11
.85
.91
.62
26.

70



PENTAMATION PAGE NUMBER: 25
DATE: 08/12/2019 CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA ACCTPA21
TIME: 09:34:34 CHECK REGISTER -~ DISBURSEMENT FUND

SELECTION CRITERIA:
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:

transact.gl_cash='1011' and transact.ck_date between ‘20190622 00:00:00.000' and ’20190809 00:00:00.000"
2/20

FUND -~ 001 - GENERAL FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO

1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
1011
1011
1011

1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
1011

1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK

1011
1011
1011
TOTAL CHECK
1011
1011

1011
1011

95512
95512
95512

95513
95513
95514
95515
95516
95517
95518
95519
95519
95520
95521
95522
95523
95523
95523
95523
95523
95523
95523
95523

95523
95523

95524
95524
95524
95525
95526

95527
95527

ISSUE DT

08/08/19
08/08/19
08/08/19

08/08/19
08/08/19
08/08/19
08/08/19
08/08/19
08/08/19
08/08/19
08/08/19
08/08/19
08/08/19
08/08/19
08/08/19
08/08/19
08/08/19
08/08/19
08/08/19
08/08/19
08/08/19
08/08/19
08/08/19

08/08/19
08/08/19

08/08/19
08/08/19
08/08/19
08/08/19
08/08/19

08/08/19
08/08/19

VENDOR
134

134
134

2127
2127
269
5748
321
391
3109
11
11
3859
5098
172
1130
1130
1130
1130
1130
1130
1130
1130

1130
1130

5508
5508
5508
5407
4486

4797
4797

NAME
DIXIELINE LUMBER CO INC

DIXIELINE LUMBER CO INC
DIXIELINE LUMBER CO INC

ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVIC
ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVIC
DUDEK & ASSOCIATES INC.
ERIKA REINERS

GOLDEN TELECOM, INC.
REGIONAL TRAINING CENTER
GRANT FLETCHER

ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST-45
ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST-45
ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST-RH
JOSE GARCIA

LEE’'S LOCK & SAFE INC
MCDOUGAL LOVE ECKIS SMIT
MCDOUGAL LOVE ECKIS SMIT
MCDOUGAL LOVE ECKIS SMIT
MCDOUGAL LOVE ECKIS SMIT
MCDOUGAL LOVE ECKIS SMIT
MCDOUGAL LOVE ECKIS SMIT
MCDOUGAL LOVE ECKIS SMIT
MCDOUGAL LOVE ECKIS SMIT

MCDOUGAL LOVE ECKIS SMIT
MCDOUGAL LOVE ECKIS SMIT

MERCHANTS BUILDING MAINT
MERCHANTS BUILDING MAINT
MERCHANTS BUILDING MAINT
PJ CASTORENA, INC.
ORIGINAL WATERMEN, INC

PAMELA ELLIOTT LANDSCAPE
PAMELA ELLIOTT LANDSCAPE

BUDGET UNIT
00165006570

00165006570
00165006570

12050005460
001

50998336510
00150005400
00160006170
00150005400
001

001

001

001

00165006560
00165006570
00150005250
12050005460
00150005250
00150005250
55000007750
00150005250
00150005250
00150005250

00150005250
00150005250

00170007110
00170007110
00170007110
55000007750
25560006180

21355005550
21355005550

BATTERIES/OIL/BLR DRN
RACHET/SOCKET
LUMBER/SCREWS

IRON MIKE - COSB

IRON MIKE - SBLG

9833 PUMP STN-PE06/28
LIVESCAN-REINERS

MS PHONE SYS MAINT
FY20 EE RLTNS CNSRTM
RFND: FCCC 07/28

ICMA 08/08/19

ICMA PD 08/09/19

ICMA PD 08/09/19
MILEAGE~07/28/19

6 PADLOCKS/CYLINDERS
PROF SERV PE 06/30/19
CLM.1903 PROF SVC-JUN
REDSTRCT PE 06/30/19
PROF SERV PE 06/30/19
PROF SERV PE 06/30/19
PROF SERV PE 06/30/19
PROF SERV PE 06/30/19
PROF SERV PE 06/30/19

PROF SERV PE 06/30/19
PROF SERV PE 06/30/19

JANTRIL SVC-03/15/19FC
JANTRIL. SVC-05/24/19FC
JANTRL SVC-6/8&6/9FC
CCA WKLY ENRL7/8&7/15
26 JG BOARDSHORTS

1717.37/607 N. CEDROS
1719.01/4250 NORTH LN

SALES TAX

OO0

DO O

DOO0OOOOOOOOO o

OO

(=)

.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00

AMOUNT

37.
45.
411.
592.
286.
286.
572.
3,972.
25.
375.
705.
500.
7,559.

.37
.58

11,363
18,922

2,077

37

121.

35.
.50
.00
140.
262.
770.
1,127.
3,493.
5,500.
9,407.
20,858.

52
70

75
75

98.

784

250.
250.

21

.31

.12

00

00
50
00
00
56
00
82
38

.00
.00
150.
300.

00
00

42

.42

00
00



PENTAMATION
DATE: 08/12/2019
TIME: 09:34:34

PAGE NUMBER: 26
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA ACCTPAZ]

CHECK REGISTER - DISBURSEMENT FUND

SELECTION CRITERIA:
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:

transact.gl _cash='1011"' and transact.ck_date between ‘20190622 00:00:00.000' and 20190809 00:00:00.000"
2/20

FUND ~ 001 - GENERAL FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO ISSUE DT VENDOR NAME BUDGET UNIT -———- DESCRIPTION--——-~ SALES TAX AMOUNT
1011 95527 08/08/19 4797 PAMELA ELLIOTT LANDSCAPE 21355005550 1718.29/710 SOLANA 0.00 250.00
1011 95527 08/08/19 4797 PAMELA ELLIOTT LANDSCAPE 21355005550 1714.22/412 E. CLIFF 0.00 250.00
1011 95527 08/08/19 4797 PAMELA ELLIOTT LANDSCAPE 21355005550 1715.39/310 S. RIOS 0.00 250.00
1011 95527 08/08/19 4797 PAMELA ELLIOTT LANDSCAPE 21355005550 1716.10/216 OCEAN ST 0.00 250.00
1011 95527 08/08/19 4797 PAMELA ELLIOTT LANDSCAPE 21355005550 1717.05/425 S. RIOS 0.00 250.00
1011 95527 08/08/19 4797 PAMELA ELLIOTT LANDSCAPE 21355005550 1719.13/514 CANYON DR 0.00 375.00
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 2,125.00
1011 95528 08/08/19 5547 PRIMO INVESTIGATIONS 00150005400 BCKGRND CK-IT&FF/PM 0.00 1,400.00
1011 95529 08/08/19 187 SAN DIEGUITO TROPHY 00160006120 APPRECIATION PLAQUE 0.00 92.67
1011 95530 08/08/19 4230 SEBASTIANPHOTO.NET 00160006170 FY20 MS GRP PHOTO 0.00 150.00
1011 95531 08/08/19 1231 STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME 00150005300 MINI FILES 0.00 19.49
1011 95531 08/08/19 1231 STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME 00150005350 PENS 0.00 21.55
1011 95531 08/08/19 1231 STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME 00150005300 SCOTCH TAPE 0.00 32.08
1011 95531 08/08/19 1231 STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME 00150005300 DESK ORGANIZER 0.00 39.01
1011 95531 08/08/19 1231 STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME 00150005350 LAMINATED PAPER 0.00 50.36
1011 95531 08/08/19 1231 STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME 00155005550 BINDERS 0.00 67.65
1011 95531 08/08/19 1231 STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME 00150005300 AVERY TABS 0.00 97.21
1011 95531 08/08/19 1231 STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME 00150005400 COLOR TONER 0.00 148.12
1011 95531 08/08/19 1231 STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME 00150005300 PAPER CLIPS/BINDERS 0.00 402.57
1011 95531 08/08/19 1231 STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME 00150005350 FILE FOLDERS/PAPER 0.00 1,212.12
1011 95531 08/08/19 1231 STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME 00150005300 SCOTCH TAPE 0.00 ~24.55
1011 95531 08/08/19 1231 STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME 00150005300 MOUSE PAD 0.00 8.19
1011 95531 08/08/19 1231 STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME 00160006120 PUSH PINS/CLEANER 0.00 14.31
1011 95531 08/08/19 1231 STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME 00150005300 ADDING MACHINE TAPE 0.00 15.41
1011 95531 08/08/19 1231 STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME 00160006120 WET ERASER 0.00 18.30
1011 95531 08/08/19 1231 STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME 00150005300 DRUM UNIT 0.00 45.78
1011 95531 08/08/19 1231 STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME 00150005300 TONER 0.00 184.23
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 2,351.83
1011 95532 08/08/19 2759 TRISTAR RISK MANAGEMENT 12550005465 FY19 CLAIMS SRVC-Q4 0.00 6,437.50
1011 95533 08/08/19 2097 UT SAN DIEGO - NRTH COUN 20293626510 9362.20-BID#2019-04 0.00 269.06
1011 v900038 06/27/19 13 SOLANA BEACH FIREFIGHTER 001 FD DUES PD 06/28/19 0.00 863.50
1011 v900039 07/11/19 4697 CATHERINE WONG 00150005400 0.00 775.00
1011 v900040 07/11/19 5527 PCL CONSTRUCTION INC. 509 9833 PMP STN RTN-JUN 0.00 ~8,700.00
1011 v900040 07/11/19 5527 PCL CONSTRUCTION INC. 50998336510 9833 SB PMP STN-JUN 0.00 165,300.00
1011 v900040 07/11/19 5527 PCL CONSTRUCTION INC. 50998336510 9833 PMP STN RTN-JUN 0.00 8,700.00
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 165,300.00
1011 v900041 07/11/19 13 SOLANA BEACH FIREFIGHTER 001 FD DUES PD 07/12/19 0.00 863.50
1011 V900042 07/11/19 5019 TIFFANY WADE 00155005550 MILEAGE~1/01-06/30/19 0.00 23.78
1011 V900043 07/19/19 5504 ALL CITY MANAGEMENT SERV 001 CRSSNG GRD06/02-06/15 0.00 -4,278.56
1011 V900043 07/19/19 5504 ALL CITY MANAGEMENT SERV 001 CRSSNG GRD05/19~06/01 0.00 -3,315.88



PENTAMATION PAGE, NUMBER: 27
DATE: 08/12/2019 CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA ACCTPA21
TIME: 09:34:34 CHECK REGISTER - DISBURSEMENT FUND

SELECTION CRITERIA:
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:

transact.gl_cash=-1011"
2/20

and transact.ck_date between ‘20190622 00:00:00.000’ and ‘20190809 00:00:00.000"

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO ISSUE DT VENDOR NAME BUDGET UNIT = -——=-- DESCRIPTION-~——~— SALES TAX AMOUNT
1011 vo00043 07/19/19 5504 ALL CITY MANAGEMENT SERV 001 CRSSNG GRD05/05-05/18 0.00 -3,182.18
1011 V900043 07/19/19 5504 ALL CITY MANAGEMENT SERV 00165006540 CRSSNG GRD05/05-05/18 0.00 1,713.48
1011 V900043 07/19/19 5504 ALL CITY MANAGEMENT SERV 00165006540 CRSSNG GRD05/19-06/01 0.00 1,785.48
1011 V900043 07/19/19 5504 ALL CITY MANAGEMENT SERV 00165006540 CRSSNG GRD05/05-05/18 0.00 3,182.18
1011 V900043 07/19/19 5504 ALL CITY MANAGEMENT SERV 00165006540 CRSSNG GRD05/19-06/01 0.00 3,315.88
1011 V900043 07/19/19 5504 ALL CITY MANAGEMENT SERV 00165006540 CRSSNG GRD06/02-06/15 0.00 2,303.84
1011 V900043 07/19/19 5504 ALL CITY MANAGEMENT SERV 00165006540 CRSSNG GRD06/02-06/15 0.00 4,278.56
1011 V900043 07/19/19 5504 ALL CITY MANAGEMENT SERV 001 CRSSNG GRD05/05~-05/18 0.00 3,182.18
1011 V900043 07/19/19 5504 ALL CITY MANAGEMENT SERV 001 CRSSNG GRD05/19-06/01 0.00 3,315.88
1011 V900043 07/19/19 5504 ALL CITY MANAGEMENT SERV 001 CRSSNG GRD06/02-06/15 0.00 4,278.56
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 16,579.42
1011 v900044 07/25/19 5129 KAYL,A MOSHKT 00170007100 MMASC MEMBRSHP RNWL 0.00 85.00
1011 V900044 07/25/19 5129 EAYLA MOSHKﬂ 00170007100 CPRS MEMBRSHP 0.00 95.00
TOTAL CHECK . 0.00 180.00
1011 V900045 07/25/19 13 SOLANA BEACH FIREFIGHTER 001 FD DUES PD 07/26/19 0.00 863.50
1011 V900046 08/01/19 1512 WELLS FARGO BANK N.A. 67285008520 PACIFC BND PRN 9/2/19 0.00 15,000.00
1011 v900046 08/01/19 1512 WELLS FARGO BANK N.A. 67185008510 BARB BND INT 9/2/19 0.00 30,023.76
1011 V900046 08/01/19 1512 WELLS FARGO BANK N.A. 67185008510 BARB BND PRN 9/2/19 0.00 45,000.00
1011 V900046 08/01/19 1512 WELLS FARGO BANK N.A. 67285008520 PACIFC BND INT 9/2/19 0.00 10,091.26
1011 V900046 08/01/19 1512 WELLS FARGO BANK N.A. 671 LSS RV FND CSH 9/2/19 0.00 ~136.84
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 99,978.18
1011 v900047 08/01/19 4048 WELLS FARGO CORP TRST SS 67685008560 SSSWR BOND INT 9/2 0.00 10,732.50
1011 v900047 08/01/19 4048 WELLS FARGO CORP TRST SS 67685008560 SSSWR BOND PRIN $/2 0.00 15,000.00
1011 v900047 08/01/19 4048 WELLS FARGO CORP TRST SS 67385008530 MARSOLAN BND INT 9/2 0.00 9,825.00
1011 V900047 08/01/19 4048 WELLS FARGO CORP TRST SS 67385008530 MARSOLAN BND PRIN 9/2 0.00 10,000.00
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 45,557.50
1011 V900048 08/08/19 13 SOLANA BEACH FIREFIGHTER 001 FD DUES PD 08/09/19 0.00 863.50
TOTAL CASH ACCOUNT 0.00 3,608,041.70
TOTAL FUND 0.00 3,608,041.70
TOTAL REPORT 0.00 3,608,041.70



STAFF REPORT
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

Honorable Mayor and City Councilmembers
Gregory Wade, City Manager

MEETING DATE: August 28, 2019
ORIGINATING DEPT: Finance
SUBJECT: Report on Changes Made to the General Fund Adopted

Budget for Fiscal Year 2019/20

BACKGROUND:

Staff provides a report at each Council meeting that lists changes made to the current
Fiscal Year (FY) General Fund Adopted Budget.

The information provided in this Staff Report lists the changes made through July 10,
2019.

DISCUSSION:

The following table reports the revenue, expenditures, and transfers for 1) the Adopted
General Fund Budget approved by Council on June 12, 2019 (Resolution 2019-085) and
2) any resolutions passed by Council that amended the Adopted General Fund Budget.

GENERAL FUND - ADOPTED BUDGET PLUS CHANGES
As of July 10, 2019

Transfers

Action Description Rewenues Expenditures from GF Net Sumplus
Reso 2019-085  Adopted Budget 19,357,000 (19,141,500) (151,100) (1) $ 64,400
(1) Transfers to:
Debt Sendce for Public Facilities 151,100

151,100

CEQA COMPLIANCE STATEMENT:

Not a project as defined by CEQA

FISCAL IMPACT:

N/A

COUNCIL ACTION:

AGENDA ITEM A.3.




August 28, 2019
General Fund Budget Changes -FY 2019
Page 2 of 2

WORK PLAN:

N/A

OPTIONS:

Receive the report.
Do not accept the report

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the City Council receive the report listing changes made to the
FY 2019-2020 General Fund Adopted Budget.

CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Department Recommendation

/[ 7L
/ Gregory Wade, City Manager




STAFF REPORT
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

Honorable Mayor and City Councilmembers

FROM Gregory Wade, City Manager

MEETING DATE: August 28, 2019

ORIGINATING DEPT: City Manager’s Office

SUBJECT: Fiscal Year (FY) 2018-19 Community Grant Recipient

Financial Expenditure Report

BACKGROUND:

On May 4, 2004, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2004-68 approving Council Policy
No. 14, establishing the Community Grant Program and Application Guidelines for the
Community Grant Program. In FY 2018-19, the City Council authorized $30,000 in funding
for thirteen (13) applicants. One additional applicant, the North Coast Repertory Theatre, was
allocated separate funding ($5,000) from the Public Art Reserve Account. Similar to the last
few years, the partnership between the City and Santa Fe Christian Schools (SFC) continued
in an effort to maximize the amount of assistance and coordination of the community grant
recipients. This partnership was instrumental in continuing a more robust and coordinated
effort to assist the many excellent efforts of the various organizations serving the Eden
Gardens community. SFC contributed $10,000 to the Community Grant Program for a total
Budget of $45,000. The following applicants received funding from the program in FY 2018-
19:

Fiscal Year 2018-19 Grant Recipients

1. American Association Of University Women $ 2,000
2. Assistance League Rancho San Dieguito $ 3,000
3. Boys and Girls Clubs of San Dieguito $ 5,000
4. Casa de Amistad $ 5,000
5. Community Resource Center $ 5,000
6. North County Immigration & Citizenship Center $ 2,000
7. Reality Changers $ 5,000
8. San Dieguito River Valley Conservancy $ 2,500
9. Solana Beach Civic & Historical Society $ 2,900
10.Solana Beach Disconnect Collective - Plug $ 2,000
11.Solana Beach Soccer $ 1,600
12.St. James & St. Leo’s $ 4,000
13.North Coast Repertory Theatre* - $ 5,000

*funded from the Reserve Public Arts Account Total: $45,000

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:

AGENDA ITEM A.4.



August 28, 2019
FY 2018-19 Community Grant Expenditure Report
Page 2 of 7

The item before the City Council is to receive and file this Staff Report.

DISCUSSION:

One of the requirements of receiving a grant award is the submittal of a financial report and
receipts for the expenditures of grant funds expended by each of the recipients. Each
recipient has submitted a report detailing their expenditures and the reports were submitted
with varying degrees of detail. Below is a summary of the reports received from the grant
recipients.

1. American Association of University Women (AAUW): The AAUW was awarded
$2,000 for their “Tech Trek” program held at UCSD. The program is designed to help
girls continue their interests in science, math, engineering & technology (STEM)
exploration and learning. AAUW received 6 nominations from Earl Warren Middle
School for this year's camp. Unfortunately, none of the nominations were Solana
Beach residents. Therefore, AAUW did not expend any grant monies and the $2,000
awarded was returned to the City of Solana Beach.

e Refunded — Returned to Solana Beach: ($ 2,000)
Total: $ 2,000

2. Assistance League Rancho San Dieguito: The Assistance League Rancho San
Dieguito was awarded $3,000 for their “Operation School Bell, Clothing Children at
Marshall's Solana Beach” program that assists children of need in local schools.
Students from St. Leo’s Head Start program were chosen to participate in two
shopping events (March 15" and March 19") at Marshalls in Solana Beach. Sixty-
seven (67) pre-schoolers were invited. Fifty-six (56) students attended with a family
member and received $50 to purchase school shoes. The amount spent at Marshalls
for the purchase of school clothes was $2,800 and the remaining $200 was spent on
jackets and sweatshirts as emergency clothing for the Head Start program.

e Marshalls — March 15t: $ 1,500
e Marshalls — March 19t $ 1,500
Total: $ 3,000

3. Boys and Girls Club of San Dieguito: The Boys and Girls Club of San Dieguito
(Club) requested $5,000 for their La Colonia Clubhouse Youth Development and
Mentoring program. The grant request was made to provide enrichment activities for
children and teens for academic and socio-emotional development, as well as fun
summertime activities. The goal is to give the kids in the Eden Garden community a
chance to have a fulfilling summer in a safe, structured environment with positive adult
and peer influences. During summer 2018, grant funds provided program expenses for
summer camp to over 100 youth members from the Solana Beach Community.
Specifically, the grant funds were spent on the following field trips:

e Knott's Berry Farm for 16 Youth (@ $33 each): $ 528
e Camp Pendleton Paintball for 20 Youth (@ $33 each): $ 660



‘ August 28, 2019
FY 2018-19 Community Grant Expenditure Report

Page 3of 7
e SeaWorld Aquatica for 80 Youth (@ $44 each): $ 3,280
e SeaWorld Aquatica for 14 Chaperones (@ $41 each): $ 574
Total: $ 5,042

4. Casa de Amistad: Casa de Amistad requested $5,000 for their “Kinder to College
Initiative.” The Program serves low-income families who do not have access to high
quality preschool programs. During the fall of 2018, Casa de Amistad began using a
data driven model to track imperative milestones throughout a students’ educational
career as an approved method of measurement. The City’s Community Grant funds
were used to invest in a student coordinator to assess students utilizing the STAR
Reading Assessment. During 2018-19 grant cycle, Casa De Amistad served
approximately 260 Solana Beach residents. The waitlist decreased to 50 students
while volunteer participation has increased by 20%. Casa de Amistad has the help of
250 local volunteers. Casa de Amistad’s goal is to close the educational achievement
gap between low-income students and their peers, rewriting the narrative of
generational poverty, and working to ensure kindergarten readiness for each child in
the program. Specifically, the grant funds were spent on the following:

e Personnel costs: $ 5,000.00
Total: $ 5,000.00

5. Community Resource Center: The Community Resource Center was awarded
$5,000 for their Holiday Basket Program. The organization expended their funding in
accordance with their grant to provide holiday baskets that provided assorted food
items for participating households. This program served over 5,600 individuals,
including 3,000 youth and 300 seniors. Participants selected blankets, clothes, toys,
infant and toddler items, bicycles and more. Each family also received a 50 pound
food box with a holiday meal, chicken or turkey, fresh produce, nutritious staples for
two weeks, and pet food and pet toys if needed. Specifically, the $5,000 grant
awarded by the City of Solana Beach went towards the Holiday Basket Program.

6. North County Immigration and Citizenship Center (NCICC): The North County
Immigration and Citizenship Center (NCICC) was awarded $2,000 for its Pathway to
Citizenship Program. During this grant period, NCICC also sought to provide two (2)
Solana Beach residents in the Pathway to Citizenship Program with a $200
scholarship. NCICC was able to award more than 20 scholarships for pro bono
citizenship work. In addition, NCICC assisted 26 new citizens bringing NCICC total for
new citizens to 57 since September 2016. Specifically, grant funds were spent on the
following:

e Pathways to Citizenship Tutor Coordination $1,600.00
e $200 Scholarships to 2 Solana Beach participants  $ 400.00
Total: $2,000.00

7. Reality Changers: The Reality Changers organization was awarded $5,000 to assist
in providing low-income 8M-12" grade students from Solana Beach, seeking to
become first generation college students, with scholarships to attend college. The



August 28, 2019
FY 2018-19 Community Grant Expenditure Report
Page 4 of 7

$5,000 contributed to the salaries for program staff members delivering the College
Town and College Apps Academy Programs in Solana Beach. In the 2018-19 school
year, 24 8" — 11" grade students from Solana Beach participated in the College Town
program, and 8 students were able to attend UCSD’s Academic Connections program,
a 3-week long program that allows students to take college classes and earn college
credit. Additionally, during the 2018-19 school year, 12 high school seniors
participated in College Apps Academy program and earned $430,692 in college
scholarships and aid.

8. San Dieguito River Valley Conservancy: The San Dieguito River Valley
Conservancy was awarded $2,500 to provide free programming for 26 Solana Beach.
youth and supply them with backpacks, journals, patches, snacks/water, and
transportation costs associated with implementing the Watershed Explorers Program.
Specifically, grant funds were spent on the following:

e Supplies $ 1,750
e Transportation $ 750
~ Total: $ 2,500

9. Solana Beach Civic & Historical Society: The Solana Beach Civic and Historical
Society was awarded $2,900 to assist in the digitization of historical archives. The goal
of the project is to make over 100 years of Solana Beach'’s collected history available
online for future generations. During the grant period, the Solana Beach Civic &
Historical Society held volunteer workshop at the Solana Beach Library where 30
volunteers donated approximately 90 hours to review and clip newspaper atticles of
historical value to Solana Beach. Solana Beach Civic & Historical Society worked to
identify archival material, label them and prioritize them in batches. The 4th and 5th
batch were identified and sent to Backstage including several scrapbooks, several
hundred historical newspaper clippings and 2 books on the history of Solana Beach.
Specifically, grant funds were spent on the following:

¢ Insurance $ 100.00
e Seminar on Copyright $ 375.00
e Backstage Library Work $2,275.97
e Mailing and Supplies $ 149.08

Total: $ 2,900.00

10.Solana Beach Disconnect Collective — Plug Into Something Better: The Solana
Beach Disconnect Collective was awarded $2,000 to assist in their Plug Into
Something Better program. The goal of the program is to provide tangible
opportunities for children and families to disconnect from technology and plug into
something better such as community service. During the grant period, Solana Beach
Disconnect Collective’s Plug Into Something Better program held three community
service events, such as cleaning St. Leo’s Aquaponics Garden, cleaning up Annie’s
Trail and showing gratitude to the construction workers who worked on the new
Skyline building. Six to eight Solana Beach families participated in each community
event. Disconnect Collective - Plug into Something Better program, also presented on



11

August 28, 2019
FY 2018-19 Community Grant Expenditure Report
Page 50f 7

three separate occasions during this grant period regarding smart phones, social
media, video games, and the correlation to depression, anxiety and suicide.
Disconnect Collective gave presentations at a happy hour attended by 13 local
mothers and at a National League of Young Men’s meeting in La Jolla where 90
mother’s attended as well as presenting to a Solana Beach kindergarten soccer team
made up of 12 local families. Specifically, grant funds were spent on the following:

e Event Supplies $1,148.22
¢ Marketing Materials $ 114.00
e Legal and Trademark Filing Fees $1,817.95
e Website $ 513.05

Total: $ 3,593.22

.Solana Beach Soccer Club: Solana Beach Soccer Club (SBSC) was awarded

$1,600 to assist in training and certifying coaches in the “Positive Coaching Alliance”
(PCA) concepts. The goal of the project is to train and certify 50 coaches in the “PCA”
way, which promotes character building life lessons. During the grant period, the
SBSC held a 2-hour workshop where a PCA representative trained about 22 SBSC
Coaches — about 25% of the total coaches. Those that attended offered positive
feedback. As a PCA partner, the club also had access to partner-only resources that
SBSC was able to take advantage of, this included emails that were sent to coaches
and families to promote positive PCA messages which enabled SBSC to reach more
than 700 local parents, coaches and players. Specifically, grant funds were spent on
the following:

o 1 PCA workshop

e 40 PCA coach books

¢ 1 Honor The Game Banner
Total: $ 1,600.00

12.St. James & St. Leo Medical/ Dental: St. James & St. Leo’s Medical / Dental was

awarded $4,000 to assist uninsured people of Solana Beach in receiving medical
imaging services. The goal of the project is for uninsured citizens to have access to x-
rays, ultrasounds (US), CT scans, MRIs, and diagnostic mammograms, which assists
in earlier diagnostics. During the grant period, St. James and St. Leo Medical group
assisted 18 Solana Beach residents in receiving various medical tests. Specifically,
grant funds were spent on the following:

e Patient DE received CXR $ 100.00
o Patient CM received US of Breasts $ 200.00
o Patient CM received Mammogram $ 215.00
e Patient JD received C Spine X-ray $ 50.00
o Patient AH received Doppler legs $ 100.00
e Patient CO received Abdominal US $ 100.00
o Patient FH received MRI L-S Spine $ 600.00
e Patient MS received CT Abd w/ contrast $ 275.00



® & o & & o & & ¢ o o © o6 © © © 0 o

Patient CT received X-ray foot
Patient MN received MRI L Spine
Patient MM received X-ray right arm
Patient MC received Abdominal US
Patient ER received Abdominal US
Patient LV received X-ray Shoulder
Patient GM received CXR

Patient AB received Head CT
Patient AH received MRI L Spine
Patient GF received CXR

Patient FM received Foot X-ray
Patient EV received CXR

Patient MR received CT Abd w/ contrast
Patient JC received Hand / Wrist X-ray -

Patient LD received Abdominal US
Patient MS received Knee X-ray
Patient DY received US Leg
Patient AC received Abdominal US

August 28, 2019

FY 2018-19 Community Grant Expenditure Report

R 0 A &R OO R PP L P

50.00
350.00
50.00
90.00
90.00
50.00
50.00
275.00
350.00
50.00
50.00
50.00
275.00
200.00
100.00
50.00
130.00
130.00

Total: $ 4,000.00

Page 6 of 7

Finally, similar to the last few year's, the Council requested that Staff look into funding the
North Coast Repertory Theatre (NCRT) grant proposal through the Public Arts Reserve
Account. For 2018-19 fiscal year, Council requested that the Public Arts Commission (PAC)
consider approving the $5,000 requested by NCRT be funded through the public arts reserve
account. This request was brought before the Public Arts Commission (PAC) and received
unanimous support to recommend funding the request. A brief summary of the program and
costs is provided below:

1. North Coast Repertory Theatre: The North Coast Repertory Theatre requested
funding to underwrite a portion of the expenses for the Theatre School student
production of She Kills Monster: Young Adventures Edition. For this Community Grant
Program cycle, the NCRT requested $5,000 for She kills Monsters, which is a comedic
romp into the world of fantasy role-playing games. The play tells the story of high
schooler Agnes Evans as she deals with the death of her younger sister Tilly. The
main theme of the play is acceptance of death, of other’s differences, and ultimately of
one’s self. Nearly 300 members of the Solana Beach community saw the Theatre
School’s production over a five-day period. The Theatre School serves nearly 2,000
students each year. The total program costs were as follows:

Assistant Director:

Prop Designer:

Costume Designer:
Projections Designer
Stage Manager/AD Mentor
Costumes Materials/Rent:

500
300
$ 750
$ 750
$ 750
$1,013

8 &



August 28, 2019
FY 2018-19 Community Grant Expenditure Report

Page 7 of 7
e Props Materials: $ 415
e Royalties: $ 675
Total: $ 5,153

CEQA COMPLIANCE STATEMENT:

Not a project as defined by CEQA

FISCAL IMPACT:

The FY 2018-19 Adopted Budget authorized $30,000 for the Community Grant Program
($15,000 from EDCO and $15,000 from the General Fund). The funding allocated to the
North Coast Repertory Theatre ($5,000) was appropriated from the Reserve Public Arts
Account to the Contribution to Agencies expenditure account in the Coastal Business/Visitors
TOT fund. The SFC schools allocated $10,000 to the Community Grant Program to complete
the applicant’s requests.

City’s FY 2017/18 Adopted Budget - $30,000
Public Arts Reserve Account - $ 5,000
Santa Fe Christian Schools - $10,000
Total: $45,000
WORK PLAN:
N/A
OPTIONS:

e Approve Staff recommendation
o Approve Staff recommendation with modifications.
e Deny Staff recommendation and direct Staff as needed.

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the City Council accept and file this report.

CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Departmental Recommendation

/"Gregorykv\ﬁ’ad', City Manager



STAFF REPORT
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

Honorable Mayor and City Councilmembers
Gregory Wade, City Manager

MEETING DATE: August 28, 2019
ORIGINATING DEPT: Engineering Department
SUBJECT: Update No. 7 on Actions Taken in Response to the

Emergency Storm Drainpipe Repairs in the Solana
Beach Towne Centre

BACKGROUND:

The City of Solana Beach owns an 84-inch diameter Corrugated Metal Pipe (CMP)
located just west of the Interstate 5 Freeway in the Solana Beach Towne Centre near
San Rodolfo Drive. A failure of the pipe was discovered and, on April 10, 2019, the City
Council declared an emergency under Public Contract Code sections 20168 and 22050.
As part of the Declaration of Emergency, the City Council authorized the City Manager
to take any directly related and immediate action required by the emergency and
directed Staff to report to the City Council regarding the emergency as required by
Public Contract Code section 22050 and Resolution No. 2008-091.

This item is before the City Council for information only to provide Update No. 7 to the
construction project pursuant to section 22050(c) of the Public Contract Code. No action
is required.

DISCUSSION:

Since the last time the project was presented to the City Council on July 10, 2019, the
contractor completed all underground work including the concrete encasement,
corresponding compacted backfill and all invert paving. The site was properly prepared
for final paving and site restoration. However, the property owner requested that the
City hold the final phase of the project until such time when the work associated with the
building restoration is completed. Please note that the building restoration is the
responsibility of the property owner and was not included in the storm drain repair
contract.

COUNCIL ACTION:

AGENDA ITEM A.5.



August 28, 2019
Emergency Storm Drain Repair Report — Update No. 7
Page 2 of 2

Staff is continuing to work closely with the property owners to minimize the construction
impacts and complete this project. The estimated time for building restoration provided
by the property owner is late September-early October. )

CEQA COMPLIANCE STATEMENT:

The project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to
Section 15302(c) of the State CEQA Guidelines.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The initial construction cost associated with this repair is estimated at $750,000.
Additionally, there are costs associated with structural engineering, geotechnical
engineering, field and laboratory testing and field surveying. Staff's estimate for the
professional services is $85,000. There has been no change to the fiscal impact since
the last update when the City Council appropriated $835,000 to the project account in
the City CIP Fund.

WORK PLAN: N/A

OPTIONS:
e Receive this report.

e Provide comments or direction.

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the City Council receive Update No. 7 and provide further
direction, if necessary.

CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Department Recommendation.

/Gregow\VVéd, City Manager




STAFF REPORT
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Councilmembers

FROM: Gregory Wade, City Manager

MEETING DATE: August 28, 2019

ORIGINATING DEPT: Finance

SUBJECT: Consideration of Resolution No. 2019-104 Approving a

Professional Services Agreement with Hinderliter, De Llamas,
and Associates for Sales Tax Information and Audit Services

BACKGROUND:

The City has contracted with Hinderliter, De Llamas, and Asociates (HDL) to provide the City
with sales tax info and audit services since 2000.

This item is before the City Council to consider adoption of Resolution 2019-104 (Attachment

1) approving a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with HDL for Sales Tax Information
and Audit Services (Attachment 2) for five additional years.

DISCUSSION:

Sales tax revenue is the second largest source for the General Fund. It comprises of
approximately 15% of the General Fund’'s revenues. HDL provides the City with detailed
quarterly sales tax information as well as custom reports that allow the City to monitor the
trends of the following geographical areas:

Lomas Santa Fe Plaza
Towne Centre West
Cedros Design District
Highway 101

e ®© o O

The City also receives reports of sales tax generated by industry types and the top 100
businesses. In addition, HDL generates a report of the top 20 deviating businesses which
alerts the City of any potential issues with sales tax revenues.

Along with the compilation of data, HDL provides auditing services to ensure that the City is
receiving the proper allocation from sales tax that is generated in the City. Common errors
that are monitored and corrected include transposition errors, erroneous consolidation of

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:

AGENDA ITEM A.6.



* August 28, 2019
HDL PSA
Page 2 of 2

multiple outlets, misreporting of point-of-sale to the wrong location, delays in reporting new
outlets, misallocating use tax payments to the allocation pools or wrong jurisdiction, and
erroneous fund transfers and adjustments.

If the results of their audit do not produce additional sales tax revenue to the City, HDL
receives no additional income. However, if the audit conducted by HDL results in additional
sales tax revenue to the City then HDL would receive 15% of all new sales tax revenue
generated from the audit.

CEQA COMPLIANCE STATEMENT:

This item is not a project under CEQA.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The proposed PSA with HDL would be for five additional years and shall not exceed $20,000
per agreement year for a total of $100,000 and is appropriated in the FY 2019/20 and FY
2020/21 budget within the Finance Department and will be appropriated in FY 2021/22 through
FY 2023/24.

WORK PLAN:

N/A
OPTIONS:

e Approve Staff recommendation.
e Deny Staff recommendation.

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution 2019-104 authorizing the City
Manager to approve a Professional Services Agreement with HDL for five years to provide
sales tax information and audit services for FY 2019/20 through FY 2023/24 for an amount
not to exceed $20,000 per agreement year for a total of $100,000.

CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Department Reggimmendation

/ regoM Manager

Attachments:

1. Resolution 2019-104 A
2. PSA with Hinderliter, De Liamas and Associates



RESOLUTION 2019-104

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
SOLANA BEACH, CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING THE CITY
MANAGER TO APPROVE THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
AGREEMENT WITH HIDERLITER, DE LLAMAS, AND
ASSOCIATES AND EXAMINIATION OF SALES AND USE
TAX RECORDS

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2, the City of Solana Beach, California,
(“City”) entered into a contract with the State Board of Equalization (“Board”) to perform
all functions incidental to the administration and collection of local sales and use taxes;
and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Solana Beach deems it desirable and
necessary for authorized representatives of the City to examine confidential sales and
use tax records for the City pursuant to that contract; and

WHEREAS, section 7056 of the California Revenue and Taxation Code sets
forth certain requirements and conditions for the disclosure of Board records, and
establishes criminal penalties for unlawful disclosure of information contained in, or
derived from, the sales and use tax records of the Board.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California,
does resolve as follows:

1. That the above recitations are true and correct.

2. That the City Council authorizes the City manager to execute a
Professional Services Agreement with Hiterliter, De Llamas, and
Associates for a five year term to provide sales tax information and audit
services for FY2019/20- FY2023/24 for an amount not to exceed $20,000
per agreement year for a total of $100,000.

3. That the City Manager, the City Treasurer, the Deputy City Manager, or
the Finance Director, or officer or employee of the City designated in
writing by the City Manager to the Board, is hereby appointed to represent
the City with the authority to examine sales and use tax records of the
Board, pertaining to the sales and use taxes collected for the City by the
Board, pursuant to the contract between the City and the Board. The
information obtained by the examination of Board records shall be used
only for purposes related to the collection of City sales and use taxes by
the Board pursuant to that contract.

ATTACHMENT 1



Resolution 2019-104
Sales Tax Services
Page 2 of 2

. 4. That Hinderliter, De Llamas and Associates is hereby designated to
examine the sales and use tax records of the Board pertaining to sales
and use taxes collected for the City by the Board. The person or entity
designated by this section meets all of the following conditions:

(a) Has an existing contract with the City to examine those sales and
use tax records;

(b) Is required by that contract to disclose information contained in, or
derived from, those sales and use tax records only to the officers or
employees authorized in Section 2 of this Resolution to examine
the information.

(c) Is prohibited by that contract from performing consulting services
for a retailer during the term of that contract; and

(d) Is prohibited by that contract from retaining the information
contained in, or from those sales and use tax records, after that
contract has expired.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28" day of August, 2019, at a regularly scheduled
meeting of the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California by the following vote:

AYES: Councilmembers —
NOES: Councilmembers —
ABSTAIN:  Counciimembers —
ABSENT: Councilmembers —

DAVID A. ZITO, Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST:

JOHANNA N. CANLAS, City Attorney ANGELA IVEY, City Clerk



City of Solana Beach

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

FOR PROFESSIONAL SALES TAX ANALYSIS SERVICES

THIS Professional Services Agreement (‘AGREEMENT”) is made and entered into this 157 day of
JULY, 2018 by and between the CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, a municipal corporation ("CITY"), and,
CONSULTANT a partnership, LLC, LLP, California corporation, etc., ("CONSULTANT") (collectively
"“PARTIES").

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to employ a2 CONSULTANT to furnish AUDIT SERVICES
(‘PROFESSIONAL SERVICES") for FINANCIAL AUDIT ("PROJECT™); and

WHEREAS, the CITY has determined that CONSULTANT is qualified by experience and
ability to perform the services desired by CITY, and CONSULTANT is willing to perform such
services, and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT will conduct all the work as described and detailed in this
AGREEMENT to be provided to the CITY.

NOW, THEREFORE, the PARTIES hereto mutually covenant and agree with each other as
follows:

1. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.

1.4.  Scope of Services. The CONSULTANT shall perform the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES as set
forth in the written Scope of Services, attached as Exhibit “A” Scope of Services and Fee, at
the direction of the CITY. CITY shall provide CONSULTANT access to approgriate staff and
resources for the coordination and completion of the projects under this AGREEMENT. For all
work to be performed on site at City Hall, the CITY and CONSULTANT agree that the Scope of
Services begins when the CONSULTANT arrives at City Hall and terminates when the
CONSULTANT leaves City Hall. Travel time {o and from City Hall shall not be considered time
on the job or compensated by the CITY.

1.2.  Project Coordinator. The is hereby designated as the Project Coordinator for CITY and will
monitor the progress and execution of this AGREEMENT. CONSULTANT shall assign & single
Project Director to provide supervision and have overall responsibility for the progress and
execution of this AGREEMENT for CONSULTANT. is hereby designated as the Project
Director for CONSULTANT.

1.3.  City Modification of Scope of Services. CITY may order changes to the Scope of Services
within the general scope of this AGREEMENT consisting of additions, deletions, or other
revisions. If such changes cause a change in the CONSULTANT's cost of, or time required for,
completion of the Scope of Services, an equitable adjustment to CONSULTANT's
compensation and/or contract time shall be made, subject {o the CITY'S approval. All such
changes shall be authorized in writing, executed by CONSULTANT and CITY.

2. DURATION OF AGREEMENT.

2.1.  Term. The term of this AGREEMENT shall be for a period of five (5) years beginning from
the date of execution of the AGREEMENT. Time is of the essence in the performance of
work under this AGREEMENT, unless otherwise specified.

Agreement modified 8/15/2018 Page 1of8 City Attornay spproved template Oct. 2014

ATTACHMENT 2



2.2. Extensions. [_| If marked, the CITY shall have the option fo extend the AGREEMENT for

additional periods or parts thereof for an amount not o exceed per

AGREEMENT year. Extensions shall be in the sole discretion of the City Manager and shall be

based upon CONSULTANT's satisfactory past performance, CITY needs, and appropriation of

funds by the City Council. The CITY shall give written notice to CONSULTANT prior to
exercising the option.

2.3. Delay. Any delay occasioned by causes beyond the control of CONSULTANT may merit an
extension of time for the completion of the Scope of Services. When such delay ocours,
CONSULTANT shall immediately notify the Project Coordinator in writing of the cause and the
extent of the delay, whereupon the Project Coordinator shall ascertain the facts and the extent
of the delay and grant an extension of time for the completion of the PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES when justified by the circumstances.

2.4, City’s Right to Terminate for Default. Should CONSULTANT be in default of any covenant or
condition hereof, CITY may immediately iterminate this AGREEMENT for cause if
CONSULTANT fails to cure the default within ten (10) calendar days of receiving written notice
of the default,

2.5. City’s Right to Terminate without Cause. Without limiting its rights in the event of
CONSULTANT's default, CITY may terminate this AGREEMENT, without cause, by giving
written notice to CONSULTANT. Such termination shall be effective upon receipt of the written
notice. CONSULTANT shall be compensated for all effort and materal expended on behalf of
CITY under the terms of this AGREEMENT, up to the effective date of termination. All personal
property remaining in CITY facilities or on CITY property thirty (30) days after the expiration or
termination of this AGREEMENT shall be, at CITY's election, considered the property of CITY.

3. COMPENSATION.

3.1, Total Amount. The total cost for all work described in the Scope of Services and Fee (Exhibit
“A" shall not exceed ONE HUNDRED THOUSAND dollars ($100,000.00), not to exceed
TWENTY THOUSAND (%20,000.00) per contract year without prior written authorization from
CITY. CONSULTANT shall bill the CITY for work provided and shall present a written request
for such payment monthly.

3.2, Additional Bervices. CITY may, as the need arises or in the svent of an emergency, request
additional services of CONSULTANT. Should such additional services be required, CITY and
CONSULTANT shall agree to the cost prior to commencement of these services.

3.3. Costs. Any costs billed to the CITY shall be in accordance with any terms negotiated and
incorporated herein as part of Exhibit "A” Scope of Services and Fee.

4. IMDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.

4.1, CONSULTANT is, for all purposes arising out of this AGREEMENT, an independent contractor.
The CONSULTANT has and shall retain the right to exercise full control and supervision of all
persons assisting the CONSULTANT in the performance of said services hereunder, the CITY
only being concerned with the finished results of the work being performed. Neither
CONSULTANT nor CONSULTANT's employees shall in any event be entitied to any benefits
to which CITY employees are entitled, including, but not limited to, overtime, retirement
benefits, workers’ compensation benefils, injury leave or other leave benefits. CONSULTANT
is solely responsible for all such matters, as well as compliance with social security and income
tax withholding and all other regulations and laws govemning such matiers.

5. STANDARD OF PERFORMARNCE.

While performing the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, CONSULTANT shall exercise the reasonable
professional care and skill customarily exercised by reputable members of CONSULTANT's profession
practicing in the metropolitan Southern California Area, and will use reasonable diligence and best
judgment while exercising its professional skill and expertise.

Agreement modiied 8/15/2018 Page 29 City Agomey appraved template Qct. 2014



6. WARRANTY OF CONSULTANT'S LICENSE.

CONSULTANT warrants that CONSULTANT is properly licensed with the applicable government
agency(ies) for any PROFESSIONAL SERVICES that require a license. If the CONSULTANT lacks such
license, this AGREEMENT is void and of no effect,

7. AUDIT OF RECORDS.

7.4, At any time duwring normal business hours and as often as may be deemed necessary the
CONSULTANT shall make available to a representative of CITY for examination all of its
records with respect to all matters covered by this AGREEMENT and shall permit CITY to
audit, examine and/or reproduce such records. CONSULTANT shall retain such financial and

program service records for at least four (4) years after termination or final payment under this
AGREEMENT.

7.2.  The CONSULTANT shall include the CITY's right under this section in any and all of their
subconiracts, and shall ensure that these sections are binding upon all subcontractors.

8. CONFIDENTIALITY.

All professional services performed by CONSULTANT, including but not limited to all drafis, data,
correspondence, proposals, reports, research and estimates compiled or composed by CONSULTANT,
pursuant to this AGREEMENT, are for the sole use of the CITY, its agents and employees. Neither the
documents nor their contents shall be released to any third party without the prior written consent of the
CITY. This provision does not apply to information that {a} was publicly known, or otherwise known to
CONSULTANT, at the time that it was disclosed to CONSULTANT by the CITY, (b) subsequently becomes
publicly known through no act or omission of CONSULTANT or (c) otherwise becomes known to
CONSULTANT other than through disclosure by the CITY. Except for any subcontractors that may be
allowed upon prior agreement, neither the documents nor their contents shall be released to any third party
without the prior written consent of the CITY. The sole purpose of this section is to prevent disclosure of
CITY's confidential and proprietary information by CONSULTANT or subcontractors.

8. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.

8.1, CONSULTANT shall at all times comply with all federal, state and local conflict of interest laws,
regulations, and policies applicable to public contracts and procurement practices, including but
not limited to California Government Code Section 81000 et seqg. (Political Reform Act) and
Section 1080 ef seq. CONSULTANT shall immediately disqualify itself and shall not use its
official position to influence in any way any matler coming before the CITY in which the
CONBULTANT has a financial interest as defined in Govemment Code Section 87103,
CONBULTANT represents that it has no knowledge of any financial interests which would
require it {o disqualify itself from any matier on which it might perform services for the CITY.

9.2. I, in performing the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES set forth in this AGREEMENT, the
CONSULTANT makes, or participates in, a “governmental decision” as described in Title 2,
Section 18700.3(a) of the California Code of Regulations, or performs the same or subsiantially
all the sarne dulies for the CITY that would otherwise be performed by a CITY employee
holding a position specified in the department's conflict of interest code, the CONSULTANT
shall be subject to a conflict of interest code requiring the completion of one or more
statements of economic interests disclosing the CONSULTANT's relevant financial interests.

9.3. [ If checked, the CONSULTANT shall comply with all of the reporting requirements of the
Political Reform Act. Specifically, the CONSULTANT shall file a Fair Political Practices
Commission Form 700 (Assuming Office Statement) within thirty (30} calendar days of the
CITY’'s determination that the CONSULTANT is subject to a conflict of interest code. The
CONSULTANT shall afso file a Form 700 (Annual Statement) on or before April 1 of each year
of the AGREEMENT, disclosing any financial interests held during the previous calendar year
for which the CONSULTANT was subject to a conflict of interest code.

Agreement modified 5/8/2018 Page 30f9 Clty Atlomey approved template Oct, 2014



8.4. CITY represents that pursuant to California Government Code Section 1090 ef seq., none of its
elected officials, officers, or employees has an interest in this AGREEMENT.

10. DISPOSITION AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.

10.1. All documents, data, studies, drawings, maps, models, photographs and repoits prepared by
CONSULTANT under this AGREEMENT, whether paper or electronic, shall become the
property of CITY for use with respect to this PROJECT, and shall be turned over fo the CITY
upon completion of the PROJECT or any phase thereof, as contemplated by this
AGREEMENT.

10.2. Contemporaneously with the transfer of documents, the CONSULTANT hereby assigns to the
CITY and CONSULTANT thereby expressly waives and disclaims, any copyright in, and the
right o reproduce, all written material, drawings, plans, specifications or other work prepared
under this AGREEMENT, except upon the CITY's prior authorization regarding reproduction,
which authorization shall not be unreasonably withheld. The CONSULTANT shall, upon
request of the CITY, execute any further document(s) necessary to further effectuate this
waiver and disclaimer.

11. INSURANCE

11.1. CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain for the duration of the AGREEMENT insurance
against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in
connection with the performance of the work hereunder and the results of that work by the
CONSULTANT, their agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors. Insurance shall be
ptaced with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than "A" and “VII" unless
otherwise approved in writing by the CITY's Risk Manager.

11.2. CONSULTANT's liabilities, including but not limited to CONSULTANT's indemnity obligations,
under this AGREEMENT, shall not be desmed limited in any way lo the insurance coverage
required herein. All policies of insurance required hereunder must provide that the CITY is
entitled to thirly (30} days prior written notice of cancellation or non-renewal of the policy or
policies, or ten (10) days prior written notice for cancellation due to non-payment of premium.
Maintenance of specified insurance coverage is a material element of this AGREEMENT.

11.3. Types and Amounts Required. CONSULTANT shall maintain, at minimum, the following
insurance coverage for the duration of this AGREEMENT:

11.3.1. Kcommercial General Liability {CGL). If checked the CONSULTANT shall
maintain CGL Insurance written on an 1SO Occurrence form or aequivalent providing
coverage at least as broad which shall cover liability arising from any and all
personal injury or properly damage in the amount of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence
and subject to an annual aggregate of $2,000,000.00. There shall be no
endorsement or modification of the CGL limiting the scope of coverage for either
insured vs. insured claims or contractual liability. All defense costs shall be outside
the limits of the policy.

11.3.2. Clcommercial Automobile Liahility. If checked the CONSULTANT shall maintain
Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance for all of the CONSULTANT's
automobiles including owned, hired and non-owned automobiles, automobile
insurance written on an SO form CA 00 01 12 90 or a later version of this form or
an equivalent form providing coverage at least as broad for bodily injury and
property damage for a combined single limit of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence.
Insurance certificate shall reflect coverage for any automobile {(any auto),

Agreement modified /82018 Paga 4ol 8 ‘ . City Attomey approved tamplate Oct. 2014



11.3.3. Hworkers' Compensation. If checked the CONSULTANT shall maintain
Worker's Compensation insurance for all of the CONSULTANT's employees who
are subject o this AGREEMENT and to the extent required by applicable state or
federal law, a Workers' Compensation policy providing at minimum $1,000,000.00
employers' liability coverage. The CONSULTANT shall provide an endorsement
that the insurer waives the right of subrogation against the CITY and iis respective
elected officials, officers, employees, agents and representatives.

11.3.4. [IProfessional Liability. If checked the CONSULTANT shall also maintain
Professional Liability (errars and orissions} coverage with a limit of $1,000,000 per
claim and $2,000,000 annual aggregate. The CONSULTANT shall ensure both that
{1} the policy retroactive date is on or before the date of commencement of the
Scope of Services; and (2) the policy will be maintained in force for a period of
three years after substantial completion of the Scope of Services or termination of
this AGREEMENT whichever occurs last. The CONSULTANT agrees that for the
time period defined above, there will be no changes or endorsements to the policy
that increase the CITY's exposure to loss. All defense costs shall be outside the
limits of the policy.

11.4. Deductibles and Seif-Insured Retentions. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions are the
responsibility of the CONSULTANT and must be declared to and approved by the CITY. At the
option of the CITY, either (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-
insured retentions as respects the CITY, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers, or (2)
the CONSULTANT shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to the CITY guaranteeing
payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses.

11.5. Additional Required Provisions. The commercial general liability and automobile liability
policies shall contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

11.8.1. The CITY, its officers, officials, employees, and representatives shall be named as
additional insureds. The CITY's additional insured status must be reflected on
additional insured endorsement form {20 10 1185 or 20 10 1001 and 20 37 1001)
which shall be submitted to the CITY.

11.5.2. The policies are primary and non-contributory o any insurance that may be carried
by the CITY, as reflected in an endorsement which shall be submitted o the CITY.

11.8. Verification of Coverage. CONSULTANT shall furnish the CITY with original certificates and
amendatory endorsements effecting coverage required by this Section 11. The endorsement
should be on forms provided by the CITY or on other than the CITY's forms provided those
endorsements conform to CITY requirements. All certificates and endorsements are {0 be
received and approved by the CITY before work commences. The CITY reserves the right to
require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements
affecting the coverage required by these specifications at any time.

12. INDEMNIFICATION.

CONSULTANT agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the CITY, and its officers, officials, agents
and employees from any and all claims, demands, costs or liabilities that arise out of, or pertain to, or
relate {o the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of CONSULTANT, its employees, agents, and
subcontractors in the performance of services under this AGREEMENT. CONSULTANT's duty to
indemnify under this section shall not include liability for damages for death or bodily injury to persons,
injury to property, or other loss, damage or expense arising from the sole negligence or willful misconduct
by the CITY or iis elected officials, officers, agents, and employees. CONSULTANT's indemnification
obligations shall.not be limited by the insurance provisions of this AGREEMENT. The PARTIES expressly
agrae that any payment, attorney's fees, cosis or expense CITY incurs or makes tc or on behalf of an
injured employee under the CITY's self-administered workers' compensation is included as a loss,
expense, or cost for the purposes of this section, and that this section will survive the expiration or early
termination of this AGREEMENT.

Agreemant modified 5/8/2018 Pagesof 9 City Atternay approved template Get. 2014



13. SUBCONTRACTORS.

13.4. The CONSULTANT’S hiring or retaining of third parties (i.e. subcontractors) to perform services
related to the PROJECT is subject to prior approval by the CITY.

13.2. Al contracts entered into between the CONSULTANT and its subcontractor shail also provide
that each subcontractor shall obtain insurance policies which shall be kept in full force and
effect during any and all work on this PROJECT and for the duration of this AGREEMENT. The
CONSULTANT shall require the subcontractor to obtain, all policies described in Section 11 in
the amounts required by the CITY, which shall not be greater than the amounts required of the
CONSULTANT.

13.3. inany dispute between the CONSULTANT and its subcontractor, the CITY shall not be made a
party to any judicial or administrative proceeding to resolve the dispute. The CONSULTANT
agrees to defend and indemnify the CITY as described in Section 12 of this AGREEMENT
should the CITY be made a party to any judicial or administrative proceeding to resolve any
such dispute.

14. NON-DISCRIMINATION.

CONSULTANT shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex,
race, color, age, religlon, ancestry, national origin, military or veteran status, disability, medical condition,
genetic information, gender expression, marital status, or sexual orientation. CONSULTANT shall take
affirmative action to insure that applicanis are employed and that employees are treated during
employment without regard to their sex, race, color, age, religion, ancestry, national origin, military or
veteran status, disability, medical condition, genetic information, gender expression, marital status, or
sexual orientation and shall make reasonable accommodation to qualified individuals with disabilities or
medical conditions. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading,
demotion, transfer, recruitment, or recruitment advertising, lavoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms
of compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship. CONSULTANT agrees to post in
conspicuous places available to employaes and applicants for employment any nofices provided by CITY
setting forth the provisions of this non-discrimination clause.

15. NOTICES.

All communications to either parly by the other party shall be delivered {o the persons listed below. Any
such wiitten communications by mail shall be conclusively deemed {o have been received by the
addrassee five (8} calendar days after the deposit thersof in the United States mail, postage prepaid and
properly addressed as noted below.

Marie Marron Berkuti, Finance Manager/ Treasurer Andrew Nickerson, President
. Hinderliter, de Llamas and Associates
City of Solana Beach 120 S. State Collage Bivd.,
£35.8. Highway 101 Ste. 200
Solana Beach, CA 82075 Diamond Bar, CA 91765

16. ASSIGNABILITY.

This AGREEMENT and any portion thereof shall not be assigned or transferred, nor shall any of the
CONSULTANT's duties be delegated or sub-contracted, without the express written consent of the CITY,

Agreement madified 5/8/2019 Page 6ol 9 City Atlorney approved template Oct. 2044



17. RESPONSIBILITY FOR EQUIPMENT.

CITY shall not be responsible nor held liable for any damage {o persons or properiy consequent upon the
use, misuse, or failure of any equipment used by CONSULTANT or any of CONSULTANT's employees or
subcontractors, even if such equipment has been fumnished, rented, or loaned to CONSULTANT by CITY.
The acceptance or use of any such equipment by COMSULTANT, CONSULTANT's employees, or
subcontractors shall be construed to mean that CONSULTANT accepts full responsibility for and agrees to
axonerate, indemnify and hold harmless CITY from and against any and all claims for any damage
whatsoever resulting from the use, misuse, or failure of such equipment.

18. CALIFORNIA LAW,; VENUE.

This AGREEMENT shall be construed and interpreted according to the laws of the State of California. Any
action brought {o enforce or interpret any portion of this AGREEMENT shall be brought in the county of
San Diego, California. CONSULTANT hereby waives any and all rights it might have pursuant o California
Code of Civil Procedure Section 394.

19. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS,

The Consultant shall comply with all laws, ordinances, regulations, and policies of the federal, state, and
local governments applicable to this AGREEMENT whether now in force or subsequently enacted. This
includes maintaining a City of Solana Beach Business Certificate.

20. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

This AGREEMENT setis forth the entire understanding of the PARTIES with respect to the subject matters
herein. There are no other understandings, terms or other agreements expressed or implied, oral or
written, except as set forth herein. No change, alteration, or modification of the terms or conditions of this
AGREEMENT, and no verbal understanding of the PARTIES, their officers, agents, or employees shall be
valid unless agreed to in writing by both PARTIES.

21. NO WAIVER.

No failure of either the City or the Consultant to insist upon the strict performance by the other of any
covenant, term or condition of this AGREEMENT, nor any failure fo exercise any right or remedy
consequent upon a breach of any covenant, term, or condition of this AGREEMENT shall constitute a
waiver of any such breach of such covenant, term or condition.

22. SEVERABILITY.

The unenforceability, invalidity, or illegality of any provision of this AGREEMENT shall not render any other
provision unenforceable, invalid, or illegal.

23, DRAFTING AMBIGUITIES,

The PARTIES agree that they are aware that they have the right to be advised by counsel with respect to
the negotiations, terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT, and the decision of whether or not fo seek
advice of counsel with respect to this AGREEMENT is a decision which is the scle responsibility of each
Party. This AGREEMENT shall not be construed in favor of or against either Party by reason of the extent
to which each Parly participated in the drafting of the AGREEMENT.,

24, CONFLICTS BETWEEN TERMS.

If an apparent conflict or inconsistency exists between the main body of this AGREEMENT and the
Exhibits, the main body of this AGREEMENT shall control. If a conflict exists between an applicable
federal, state, or local law, rule, regulation, order, or code and this AGREEMENT, the law, rule, regulation,
order, or code shall control, Varying degrees of siringency among the main body of this AGREEMENT, the
Exhibits, and laws, rules, regulations, orders, or codes are not deemed conflicts, and the most siringent
requirement shall control. Each Party shall notify the other immediately upon the identification of any
apparent conflict or inconsistency concerning this AGREEMENT,

Agreament modified 5/872018 Paga7ofg City Attomey approved template Oct. 2014



25. EXHIBITS INCORPORATED,
All Exhibits referenced in this AGREEMENT are incorporated into the AGREEMENT by this reference.

286. SIGNING AUTHORITY,

26.1. The representative for each Party signing on behalf of a corporation, partnership, joint venture,
association, or governmental entity hereby declares that authority has been obtained to signon -
behalf of the corporation, parinership, joint venture, association, or entity and agrees to hold

the other Party or PARTIES hereto harmless if it is later determined that such authority does
riot exist.

26.2. [ Jif checked, a proper notary acknowledgement of execution by CONSULTANT must be
attached.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES hereto have executed this AGREEMENT the day and year
first hereinabove written.

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, a municipal corporation CONSULTANT, a Corporation

By:

City Manager, Gregory Wade

Andrew Nickerson, President

ATTEST:

City Clerk. Angela lvey

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

Marie Marron Berkuit, Finance Manager/ Treasurer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

City Attorney, Johanna N. Canlas

Agreement modified 5/8/2018 Page 8ol 8 City Altomnay approved emplate Oct. 2014



EXHIBIT A"
SCOPE OF SERVICES AND FEE

Agreement modified 5/8/2018 Page 8ol 9 City Attemey approved template Oct. 2014



SCOPE OF SERVICES / COMPENSATION / CONFIDENTIALITY

A. SALES TAX AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS SERVICES

1.

3.

4.

CONTRACTOR shall establish a special database that identifies the name, address
and quarterly allocations of all sales tax producers within the CITY for the most
current and all quarters back to fiscal year 2000-2001 or earlier, if the CITY has prior
historical sales tax data available on computer readable magnetic media. This
database will be utilized to generate special reports to the CITY on: major sales tax
producers by rank and category, sales tax activity by categories, or business districts,
identification of reporting aberrations, and per capita and outlet comparisons with
regional and statewide sales.

CONTRACTOR shall provide up-dated reporis following each calendar quarter
identifying changes in sales by individual businesses, business groups and categories
and by geographic area. These reports may include, without limitation, quarterly
aberrations due to State audits, fund transfers, and receivables along with late or
double payments, and quarterly reconciliation worksheets to assist with budget
forecasting.

CONTRACTOR shall additionally provide following each calendar quarter a
summary analysis for the CITY to share with Chambers of Commerce, other economic
development interest groups and the public that analyze CITY’S sales tax trends by
major groups, and geographic areas without disclosing confidential information.

CONTRACTOR shall make available to CITY staff CONTRACTOR’s web-based
sales tax computer software program containing sellers permit and quarterly allocation
information for all in-city business outlets registered with the California Department
of Tax and Fee Administration and updated quarterly. This software shall allow CITY
staff to search businesses by street address, account number, business name, business
type and keyword, arrange data by geographic area, and print out a variety of reports.

B. ALLOCATION AUDIT AND RECOVERY SERVICES

. CONTRACTOR shall conduct initial and on-going sales, use, and transactions tax

audit to identify and correct distribution and allocation errors, and to proactively affect
favorable registration, reporting, or formula changes thereby generating previously
unrealized sales, use, and transactions tax income for the CITY and/or recovering
misallocated tax from previously properly registered taxpayers. Common errors that
will be monitored and corrected include, but are not limited to: transposition errors
resulting in misallocations; erroneous consolidation of multiple outlets; formula
errors, misreporting of “point of sale” to the wrong location; delays in reporting new



outlets; misallocating use tax payments to the allocation pools or wrong jurisdiction;
and erroneous fund transfers and adjustments.

. CONTRACTOR shall initiate contacts with state agencies, and sales management and
accounting officials in companies that have businesses where a probability of error
exists to verify whether current tax receipts accurately reflect the local sales activity.
Such contacts will be conducted in a professional and courteous manner.

. Equalization information for the purpose of correcting allocation errors that are
identified and (ii) follow-up with individual businesses and the California Department
of Tax and Fee Administration to promote recovery by the CITY of back or
prospective quarterly payments that may be owing.

. If during the course of its audit, CONTRACTOR finds businesses located in the CITY
that are properly reporting sales and use tax but have the potential for modifying their
operation to provide an even greater share to the CITY, CONTRACTOR may so
advise CITY and work with those businesses and the CITY to encourage such changes.

COMPENSATION

CONTRACTOR shall provide the sales tax and economic analysis Services described
above for a fee of $400.00 per month, commencing with the month of the Effective
Date (hereafter referred to as “monthly fee”). The monthly fee shall be invoiced
quarterly in arrears, and shall be paid by CITY no later than 30 days after the invoice
date. The monthly fee shall increase annually following the month of the Effective
Date by the percentage increase in the “CPI” for the preceding twelve month period.
In no event shall the monthly fee be reduced by this calculation. For purposes of this
Agreement, the “CPI” shall mean the Consumer Price Index - All Urban Consumers
for the surrounding statistical metropolitan area nearest CITY, All Items (1982-84 =
100), as published by the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, or, if
such index should ceased to be published, any reasonably comparable index selected
by CONTRACTOR.

1. CONTRACTOR shall be further paid 15% of all new and recovered sales, use,

-~ and transactions tax revenue received by the CITY as a result, in whole or in part,
of the allocation audit and recovery services described above (hereafier referred
to as “audit fee”), including without limitation, any reimbursement or other
payment from any state fund and any point of sale misallocations.
CONTRACTOR shall provide CITY with an itemized quarterly invoice showing
all formula calculations and amounts due for the audit fee {including, without
limitation, a detailed listing of any corrected misallocations), which shall be paid
by CITY no later than 30 days following the invoice date.

2. The audit fee shall be paid even if CITY assists, works in parallel with, and/or
incurs attorneys’ fees or other costs or expenses in connection with any of the
relevant Services. Among other things, the audit fee applies to state fund transfers



received for back quarter reallocations and monies received in the first eight
consecutive reporting quarters following completion of the allocation audit by
CONTRACTOR and confirmation of corrections by the California Department of
Tax and Fee Administration. CITY shall pay audit fees upon CONTRACTOR’S
submittal of evidence of CONTRACTOR’S work in support of recovery of
subject revenue, including, without limitation, copies of BOE 549-§S petition
forms of any other correspondence between CONTRACTOR and the California
Department of Tax and Fee Administration or the taxpayer.

3. For any increase in the tax reported by businesses already properly making tax
payments to CITY, it shall be CONTRACTOR’s responsibility to support in its
invoices the audit fee attributable, in whole or in part, to CONTRACTOR’s
Services.

C. CONTRACTOR shall invoice CITY for any consulting and other optional Services
rendered to CITY in accordance with above based on the following hourly rates on a
monthly or a quarterly basis, at CONTRACTOR’s option. All such invoices shall be
payable by CITY no later than 30 days following the invoice date. CITY shall not be
invoiced for any consulting Services totaling less than an hour in any month. The
hourly rates in effect as of the Effective Date are as follows:

Principal $325 per hour
Programmer $295 per hour
Senior Analyst $245 per hour
Analyst $195 per hour

CONTRACTOR may change such hourly rates from time to time upon not less than
30 days’ prior written notice to CITY.

D. Any invoices not paid on a due and timely basis shall accrue monthly interest at a rate
equivalent to ten percent (10%) per annum until paid.

CONFIDENTIALITY:; OWNERSHIP/USE OF INFORMATION

Section 7056 of the State of California Revenue and Taxation Code specifically limits the
disclosure of confidential taxpayer information contained in the records of the California
Department of Tax and Fee Administration. Section 7056 specifies the conditions under which a
CITY may authorize persons other than CITY officers and employees to examine State Sales and
Use Tax records. '

The following conditions specified in Section 7056-(b), (1) of the State of California Revenue and
Taxation Code are hereby made part of this Agreement:

A. CONTRACTOR is authorized by this Agreement to examine sales, use or
transactions and use tax records of the California Department of Tax and Fee



Administration provided to CITY pursuant to contract under the Bradley-Burns
Uniform Sales and Use Tax Law Revenue and Taxation Code section 7200 et.seq.

B. CONTRACTOR is required to disclose information contained in, or derived from,
those sales, use or transactions and use tax records only to an officer or employee of
the CITY who is authorized by resolution to examine the information.

C. CONTRACTOR is prohibited from performing consulting services for a retailer, as
defined in California Revenue & Taxation Code Section 6015, during the term of this
Agreement.

D. CONTRACTOR is prohibited from retaining the information contained in, or derived
from those sales, use or transactions and use tax records, after this Agreement has
expired. Information obtained by examination of California Department of Tax and
Fee Administration records shall be used only for purposes related to collection of
local sales and use tax or for other governmental functions of the CITY as set forth
by resolution adopted pursuant to Section 7056 (b) of the Revenue and Taxation
Code. The resolution shall designate the CONTRACTOR as a person authorized to
examine sales and use tax records and certify that this Agreement meets the
requirements set forth above and in Sectiont 7056 (b), (1) of the Revenue and Taxation
Code.

Software _Use. CONTRACTOR hereby provides authorization to CITY to access
CONTRACTOR’S Sales Tax website if CITY chooses to subscribe to the software and reports
option. The website shall only be used by authorized CITY staff. No access will be granted to
any third party without explicit written authorization by CONTRACTOR. CITY shall not sublet,
duplicate, modify, decompile, reverse engineer, disassemble, or attempt to derive the source code
of said software. The software use granted hereunder shall not imply ownership by CITY of said
software, or any right of CITY to sell said sofiware or the use of same, or any right to use said
software for the benefit of others. This software use authorization is not transferable. Upon
termination or expiration of this Agreement, the software use authorization shall expire, and all
CITY staff website logins shall be de-activated.

Proprietary Information. As used herein, the term “proprietary information” means all
information or material that has or could have commercial value or other utility in
CONTRACTOR s business, including without limitation: CONTRACTOR’S (i) computer or data
processing programs; (ii) data processing applications, routines, subroutines, techniques or
systems; desktop or web-based software; (iii) business processes; (iv) marketing plans, analysis
and strategics; and (v) materials and techniques used; as well as the terms and conditions of this
Agreement. Except as otherwise required by law, CITY shall hold in confidence and shall not use
(except as expressly authorized by this Agreement) or disclose to any other party any proprietary
information provided, learned of or obtained by CITY in connection with this Agreement.




STAFF REPORT
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Councilmembers

FROM: Gregory Wade, City Manager

MEETING DATE: August 28, 2019

ORIGINATING DEPT: Engineering Department

SUBJECT: Council Consideration of Resolution 2019-114

Authorizing the City Clerk to File a Notice of Completion
for the Marvista-Canyon-Glenmont Storm Drain

BACKGROUND:

At the July 11, 2018 Council Meeting, the construction contract for the Marvista-Canyon-
Glenmont Storm Drain, Bid 2018-04, was awarded to Scott Michael, Inc. The project
replaced a deteriorated storm drain at 683 Glenmont Drive, extended the storm drain
system up Canyon Drive to the intersection with Marvista, and installed a groundwater
interceptor sub-drain at the same intersection. Resurfacing of the entire street within the
project boundary was included. The project also included repairs to two damaged storm
drain structures on Fresca Street and San Ignacio.

This item is before the City Council to consider adoption of Resolution 2019-114
(Attachment 1) to report the final project costs, accept the project as complete, and to
direct the City Clerk to file a Notice of Completion.

DISCUSSION:

Scott Michael, Inc. completed all work on this project in accordance with the approved
plans and specifications of Bid No. 2018-04 to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. The
City will release the 5% retention, in the amount of $8,132, 35 days after the Notice of
Completion is approved by the City Council.

CEQA COMPLIANCE STATEMENT:

The project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to
Section 15301(c) of the State CEQA Guidelines.

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:

AGENDA ITEM A.7.




August 28, 2019
Marvista-Canyon-Glenmont Storm Drain NOC
Page 2 of 2

FISCAL IMPACT:

The Fiscal Year (FY) 2018/19 Capital Improvement Projects budget included funding for
the Canyon/Marvista Storm Drain in the amount of $250,000, in the City CIP Fund plus
$50,000 in TransNet funding. The City Council previously awarded the $162,614
construction contract and approved a $25,000 construction contingency, for a total
construction budget of $187,614. The City Manager approved one change order for
$1,538, to excavate and repair an unusually shallow sewer lateral damaged during the
sub-drain installation. The final project cost is $164,152 with the City CIP Fund paying
for $125,232 and TransNet paying $38,920 of the total cost. The remaining unused
amount will be returned to the corresponding budget units.

WORK PLAN:

Although this project was not mentioned in the Work Plan, it is consistent with the
Environmental Sustainability section of the Work Plan.

OPTIONS:
¢ Adopt Staff recommendation.

e Deny Staff recommendation and provide direction.

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution 2019-114:

1. Authorizing the City Council to accept as complete the Marvista-Canyon-Glenmont
Storm Drain, Bid 2018-04, performed by Scott Michael, Inc.

2. Authorizing the City Clerk to file a Notice of Completion.

CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Department Recommendation.

/Gregory Walé, City Manager
Attachments:

1.  Resolution No. 2019-114



RESOLUTION 2019-114

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
SOLANA BEACH, CALIFORNIA, ACCEPTING AS
COMPLETE THE  MARVISTA-CANYON-GLENMONT
STORM DRAIN PROJECT, AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY
CLERK TO FILE A NOTICE OF COMPLETION

WHEREAS, the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Budget makes
appropriations to maintain, repair, replace and upgrade the storm drain facilities
throughout the City, and the Fiscal Year (FY) 2018/19 Capital Improvement Projects
budget included the project Storm Drain-Canyon/Marvista; and

WHEREAS, on July 11, 2018, the City Council awarded a construction contract to
Scott Michael, Inc, for the Marvista-Canyon-Glenmont Storm Drain, Bid 2018-04; and

WHEREAS, the Marvista-Canyon-Glenmont Storm Drain Project has been
completed in accordance with the plans and specifications included as part of the public
works contract with Scott Michael, Inc. to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California, does
resolve as follows:

1. That the above recitations are true and correct.

2. That the City Council authorizes the City Engineer to accept as complete
the Marvista-Canyon-Glenmont Storm Drain, Bid 2018-04, performed by
Scott Michael, Inc.

3. That the City Council authorizes the City Clerk to file a Notice of Completion
for the project.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of August 2019, at a regularly scheduled
meeting of the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California by the following vote:

AYES: Councilmembers
NOES: Councilmembers
ABSTAIN: Councilmembers
ABSENT: Counciimembers

DAVID A. ZITO, Deputy Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST:

JOHANNA N. CANLAS, City Attorney ANGELA IVEY, City Clerk

ATTACHMENT 1



STAFF REPORT
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

Honorable Mayor and City Councilmembers
Gregory Wade, City Manager

MEETING DATE: August 28, 2019
ORIGINATING DEPT: Engineering Department
SUBJECT: Consideration of Resolution No. 2019-112 Authorizing the

City Clerk to File a Notice of Completion and Approval of
Change Order No. 3 for the La Colonia Skate Park

BACKGROUND:

The construction contract for the La Colonia Skate Park, Bid No. 2018-01, was awarded
to California Skate Parks on April 25, 2018 and construction of the project started in July
2018. At the February 13, 2019 City Council meeting, Staff provided an update on the
project that included a recommended design change to the spectator seating area
between the Skate Park and the basketball court to allow for access to the newly acquired
property to the north of La Colonia Park and requested approval of the installation of a
water bottle filling station.

This item is before the City Council to consider adoption of Resolution 2019-112
(Attachment 1) to report the final project costs, accept the project as complete, direct the
City Clerk to file a Notice of Completion and for approval of Change Order No. 3.

DISCUSSION:

California Skateparks completed all work on this project in accordance with the approved
plans and specifications of Bid No. 2019-01 to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. The
City will release the 5% retention, in the amount of $54,600, 35 days after the Notice of
Completion is approved by the City Council.

There have been two changes that were already approved by the City Manager and
executed. Change Order No. 1, in the amount of $52,860.57, compensated the contractor
for several items that were inadvertently left out of the original bid item list and
adjustments on the east side of the basketball court to resolve a grade issue. Change

COUNCIL ACTION:

AGENDA ITEM A.8.



August 28, 2019
La Colonia Skate Park — Notice of Completion
Page 2 of 4

Order No. 2, in the amount of $26,645.98, compensated the contractor for changes to the
spectator seating area in between the skate park and basketball court, modifications to
the chain link fence along two sides of the basketball court and installation of drinking
fountain/water bottle filling station. Please note that the drinking fountain/water bottle
filling station, in the amount of $16,569, was not included in the original contract.

As part of this Staff Report, Staff is requesting the City Council to consider approving
Change Order No. 3 (Attachment 2) in the amount of $42,229. This change order would
compensate the contractor for an additional lighting controller to control the new bollards,
new light poles and existing light poles, irrigation for new sod near the old basketball court
and adjustments to the final bid quantities. The final bid quantities were adjusted on some
bid items to accurately reflect what was constructed during the project. The total contract
amount plus the approved contingency is $1,064,064. The total project cost including
Change Order No.’'s 1 and 2 is $1,106,029. Upon execution of Change Order No. 3, the
total construction contract amount will be $1,143,883, which will exceed the total contract
amount plus contingency.

CEQA COMPLIANCE STATEMENT:

As part of Resolution 2017-159, the City Council found the project exempt from CEQA
pursuant to Section 15332 (In-fill Development Projects) of the State CEQA Guidelines.
None of the actions requested constitute a project subject to CEQA review.

FISCAL IMPACT:

A construction contract was awarded to California Skate Parks at the April 25, 2018 City
Council meeting in the amount of $964,864, which included funding for the alternate bids
items such as the EnergiPlant. An additional $100,000 was approved for a construction
contingency to cover unforeseen items during construction. To date, two change orders
were approved by the City Manager and were executed in the amount of $79,507. As
mentioned above, the cost of Change Order No. 3 is $42,229.

Table 2 — Project Costs (not including design)

Item Description Company Cost

Environmental Review Helix Environmental $ 15,684

Construction Support Services Van Dyke Landscape 37,000

_Construction Contract California Skateparks $ 964,064
Change Order No. 1 California Skateparks 52,861
Change Order No. 2 California Skateparks 26,646
Concrete Benches with City Logo | Quick Crete Products 4,347
Construction Signs at Park One Day Signs 593
Recycled Water Line Permit County of San Diego 459
Construction Subtotal $1,048,970
Contract Amount w/ Contingency $1,064,064

Change Order No. 3 California Skateparks $42,229
Subtotal $1,106,293
Total Cost $1,143,883




August 28, 2019
La Colonia Skate Park — Notice of Completion

Page 3 of 4
Table 3 — Project Funding
Funding Source Amount
Donations
- San Diego County Medical Society — 5k run 3,000
- Tony Hawk Foundation 5,000
- Surfing Madonna (2017, 2018, 2019) 60,000
- Skate Day Event 1,451
- Solana Beach Civic and Historical Society 10,000
- Parks & Recreation Commission 2,500
- Coastal Communities Foundation 10,000
- Donor Tile sales 22,538
Remainder of Public Improvement Grant Fund 2,200
Additional appropriation with VDLA for Const. Support 15,000
NRP Grant from County of San Diego 100,000
Designated City CIP Reserves 300,000
Undesignated City CIP Reserves 600,531
Total Revenues $1,132,120

Since the project was initially awarded, an additional donation of $20,000 has been
received from Surfing Madonna Half Marathon. This amount is recommended to be
appropriated as part of Attachment 1. As shown above, there is a budget shortfall of
available funding of approximately $11,763. Staff is recommending that a transfer be
made from the CIP undesignated reserve to cover the shortfall.

WORK PLAN:
The Skate Park at La Colonia Park is consistent with ltem B.2 (La Colonia Park
Improvements) of the Community Character Priorities section of the Fiscal Year (FY)
2019/20 Work Plan.
OPTIONS:

e Adopt Staff recommendation.

o Deny Staff recommendation and provide direction.

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution 2019-112:

1. Authorizing the City Council to accept as complete the La Colonia Skate Park,
Bid No. 2018-01, constructed by California Skateparks.

2. Authorizing the City Clerk to file a Notice of Completion.



August 28, 2019
La Colonia Skate Park — Notice of Completion
Page 4 of 4

. Authorizing the City Manager to sign Change Order No. 3 on behalf of the City.

. Authorizing an appropriation of $20,000 into the donation revenue account and

into the La Colonia Skate Park project in the City CIP fund.

. Appropriating $11,763 from undesignated reserves for Capital Improvement

Program projects into the project account for the La Colonia Skate Park.

. Authorizing the City Treasurer to amend the FY 2019/2020 Adopted Budget

accordingly.

CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Department Recommendation.

Attachments:

1.
2.

Resolution 2019-112
Change Order No. 3



RESOLUTION 2019-112

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
SOLANA BEACH, CALIFORNIA, ACCEPTING AS
COMPLETE THE LA COLONIA SKATE PARK,
AUTHORIZING THE CITY CLERK TO FILE A NOTICE OF
COMPLETION AND APPROVAL OF CHANGE ORDER NO. 3

WHEREAS, a construction contract for the La Colonia Skate Park, Bid No. 2018-
01, was awarded to California Skate Parks on April 25, 2018 and construction of the
project started in July 2018; and

WHEREAS, at the February 13, 2019 City Council meeting, Staff provided an
update on the project that included a recommended design change to the spectator
seating area between the Skate Park and the basketball court to allow for access to the
newly acquired property to the north of La Colonia Park and requested approval of the
installation of a water bottle filling station; and

WHEREAS, there have been two changes that were already approved by the City’
Manager and executed. Change Order No. 1, in the amount of $52,861 compensated
the contractor for several items that were inadvertently left of the original bid item list and
adjustments on the east side of the basketball court to resolve a grade issue. Change
Order No. 2, in the amount of $26,646, compensated the contractor for changes to the
spectator seating area in between the skate park and basketball court, modifications to
the chain link fence along two sides of the basketball court and installation of drinking
fountain/water bottle filling station; and

WHEREAS, Change Order No. 3 would compensate the contractor for an
additional lighting controller to control the new bollards, new light poles and existing light
poles, irrigation for new sod near the old basketball court and adjustments to the final bid
quantities. The final bid quantities were adjusted on some bid items to reflect accurately
what was actual constructed during the project.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California, does
resolve as follows:

1. That the above recitations are true and correct.

2. That the City Council accepts as complete the La Colonia Skate Park, Bid
No. 2018-01, constructed by California Skateparks.

3. That the City Council authorizes the City Clerk to file a Notice of Completion
for the project.

4. That the City Council authorizes the City Manager to sign Change Order
No. 3 on behalf of the City.

ATTACHMENT 1



Resolution 2019-112
La Colonia Skate Park — NOC
Page 2 of 2

5. That the City Council authorizes an appropriation of $20,000 into the
donation revenue account and into the La Colonia Skate Park project in the
City CIP fund,

6. That the City Council appropriates $11,763 from undesignated reserves for
Capital Improvement Program projects into the project account for the La
Colonia Skate Park.

7. That the City Council authorizes the City Treasurer to amend the FY
2019/2020 Adopted Budget accordingly.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of August 2019, at a regularly scheduled
meeting of the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California by the following vote:

AYES: Councilmembers
NOES: Councilmembers
ABSTAIN: Councilmembers
ABSENT: Councilmembers

DAVID A. ZITO, Deputy Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST:

JOHANNA N. CANLAS, City Attorney ANGELA IVEY, City Clerk



PROJECT TITLE: La Colonia Skate Park, Bid No. 2018-01

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER
Date August 7, 2019
Project L.a Colonia Skate Park
Change Order 3 - FINAL
Purchase Order # 18-232

This change order compensates the contractor for the items listed below.

1. Adjustments to Final Bid Quantities — The following bid quantities are increased or decreased as
shown in the table below. The table only reflects the adjustment to the bid quantity, not the total amount
of the bid item.

TOTAL CHANGE TO CONTRACT AMOUNT: $33,435.08

CHANGE TO CONTRACT WORKING DAYS: 0

:1% Description ngsggteitr;ft Unit Price ,{‘_\(c)jjtglstment
25 | Import (within skate park perimeter) - 38.75 $23.20 ($899.00)
26 | Import (5’ beyond skate park perimeter) -11.1 23.20 (257.52)
27 | Cobble Stone 45 18.15 816.75
60 | 3" x 6” White Ceramic Tiles 61 22.50 1,372.50
74 | 6” Concrete Site Paving 441 9.40 4,145.40
82 | Non-Potable Pressure Supply Line 130 8.25 1,072.50
83 | Non-Potable Lateral Line 1,196 6.00 7,176.00
84 | 12/14 Gauge Direct Burial Irrigation Wire 1 720.00 720.00
94 | Pop-Up Rotor 7 55.80 390.60
98 | Drip Emitter & Flexible Riser - 30 28.50 (855.00)
99 | Soil Testing & Amending Planting Areas 10,750 0.90 9,675.00
100 | Fine Grading Planting Areas 10,750 0.85 9,137.50
101 | Lawn Repair/Sod 2,721 0.55 1,496.55
102 | 1-Gal Shrubs/Ground Cover 8 10.30 82.40
105 | 1-Gal Vines 2 75.30 150.60
106 | 24" Box Trees -1 425.00 (425.00)
107 | Planting Mulch (3" Depth) -6 60.70 (364.20)
Total Amount of Adjustments to Bid ltems $33,435.08

La Colonia Skate Park — Change Order No. 3

Page 1 of 2

ATTACHMENT 2



2. Additional lighting controller —Provide and install one new lighting controller to switch and control the
new bollards, existing light poles and new light poles. This item corresponds with California Skateparks,
Inc. Request for Change Order No. 15 that was revised on March 19, 2019 (attached).

TOTAL CHANGE TO CONTRACT AMOUNT: $3,116.56
CHANGE TO CONTRACT WORKING DAYS: 0

3. Irrigation for sod at northeast corner of basketball court — Provide and install additional irrigation for
turf area not identified on the original plans. Work includes fine grading, soil amendments, irrigation
materials and associated labor. This item corresponds with California Skateparks, Inc. Request for
Change Order No. 17 dated April 8, 2019 (attached).

TOTAL CHANGE TO CONTRACT AMOUNT: $5,677.50
CHANGE TO CONTRACT WORKING DAYS: 0

All work related to this change order shall be done in accordance with the Project Special Provisions, the
Project Plans, and the Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction “Greenbook”, 2015 Edition
(Standard Specifications). This change order shall include all labor, materials, tools, equipment and
incidentals as required to complete the work complete and in place. No additional compensation shall be due
to the contractor as a result of this change order.

This change order shall include all general contractor's overhead, extended overhead, profit, incidentals,
bonds and lost time. Contractor shall not be entitled to any additional payments or time extensions beyond
what is detailed in this change order.

Estimated Cost: Increase $42.229.14 Decrease - No Change -

By reason of this change order the time of completion will be extended by __-0- _ days.

Recommended by:

Mohammad Sammak, City Engineer

Approved: CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

Contract Summary
Initial Contract Amount $964.864.00 By:

Gregory Wade, City Manager
Previous Change Orders $79,506.55 Date:
This Change Order $42,229.14 Approved: California Skateparks, Inc.
Total Contract to Date $1.086,599.69 By:
Additional Appropriation Required YES Date:

La Colonia Skate Park — Change Order No. 3
Page 2 of 2



STAFF REPORT
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

Honorable Mayor and City Councilmembers
Gregory Wade, City Manager

MEETING DATE: August 28, 2019
ORIGINATING DEPT: Community Development Department
SUBJECT: Consideration of Resolution 2019-119 to Enter Into

Professional Service Agreements with Pamela Elliott
Landscape Architect for Professional Landscape Review
and Inspection Services, and Resolution 2019-120 to
Enter Into Professional Service Agreements with
GeoPacifica, Inc. and CTE, Inc. for Professional Coastal
Geotechnical Engineering Services

BACKGROUND:

The Community Development Department has utilized third party services to evaluate
coastal and inland bluff-top development plans for geotechnical and structural issues, to
provide “as-needed” on-call coastal geotechnical engineering services, and to conduct
landscape plan review and inspection services for development projects in the City.
These third-party services are paid for by project applicants through developer deposit
accounts.

This item is before Council to authorize agreements with Pamela Elliott Landscape
Architect, GeoPacifica, Inc. and CTE, Inc. for professional landscape plan review and
inspection services and coastal geotechnical engineering services.

DISCUSSION:

The City has contracted with Pamela Elliott Landscape Architect to provide landscape
plan review and inspection services for both City and private development projects for
the past several years. Services include, but are not limited to, review of conceptual
landscape plans and landscape construction drawings for compliance with the City
Water Efficient Landscape Regulations, conduct landscape inspection of completed
landscape projects for final acceptance by the City, and assistance with Municipal Code

COUNCIL ACTION:

AGENDA ITEM A.9.



August 28, 2019
Community Development Agreements
Page 2 of 4

updates to the City’s Water Efficient Landscape Regulations and/or Off-Street Parking
Design Manual. Cost for services are paid for by the Applicants and therefore services
are typically only needed as applications are submitted.

For the past several years, the City has had an agreement with GeoPacifica, Inc. to
furnish professional coastal geotechnical services as needed and third party pass-
through coastal geotechnical review services for various coastal and inland bluff-top
projects on an as-needed basis. That contract expired June 30, 2019. In May 2019,
Staff issued a Request for Proposals for both third party review services and as-needed
professional services. The City received four responses and after due review and
consideration, Staff has determined that GeoPacifica, Inc. and CTE Inc. were the most
qualified and responsive to provide professional coastal geotechnical engineering
services for the City.

In addition to being a highly qualified candidate to provide professional coastal
geotechnical services, continuing services with GeoPacifica, Inc. will provide a level of
continuity for various projects that have already been reviewed by the firm in past.
GeoPacifica Inc. has provided services for multiple municipalities throughout Southern
California and has valuable historical insight to address the philosophical and technical
demands of the California Coastal Commission. Staff believes that the firms experience,
expertise and historical knowledge will provide the continuity on existing projects to
allow further reviews and inspections go as smoothly as possible.

CTE is a full service Geotechnical firm with soils and material testing services. CTE also
has a large number of technicians who are certified and experts in providing special
inspections in a wide range of construction fields such as Fireproofing, Reinforced
Concrete, Masonry, Structural Steel, Nuclear Gage testing, and others. These
additional expertise are very valuable for the City during design, construction and
inspection of City’s Capital Improvement Projects. Staff believes availability of such
services, in addition to a typical third party land development related review services,
will supplement and strengthen Staff's ability to complete more technical projects
utilizing in-house resources.

Staff has prepared two resolutions (Attachments 1 and 2) requesting City Council to
authorize the City Manager to enter into agreements with Pamela Elliott Landscape
Architect, GeoPacifica, Inc., and CTE, Inc.

CEQA COMPLIANCE STATEMENT:

This is not a project under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).

FISCAL IMPACT:

Third party review services are cost neutral in that project applicants pay for these
services at cost plus a 15% administrative fee for Staff oversight and management of
the project. It is anticipated that the cost for as-needed professional coastal



August 28, 2019

Community Development Agreements
Page 3 of 4

geotechnical engineering services and landscape plan review and inspection services
would not exceed ten thousand dollars ($10,000) per contract. Any additional costs
would require further authorization from the City and does not include third party pass-
through expenditures for development projects.

WORK PLAN:

These efforts will further the implementation of Community Character and
Environmental Sustainability Priorities listed in the City’s 2019-2020 Work Plan. Those
priorities include the ongoing protection of beach sand replenishment projects identified
in the Community Character Priority ltems A.2, Local Coastal Program; A.3, Beach
Sand Replenishment and Retention Program; and reducing GHG emissions through
choosing the right trees for the right place in the community in the Environmental
Sustainability Priority Item A.8 Trees.

OPTIONS:

Authorize Staff recommendation.
Do not authorize Staff recommendation.
Provide alternative direction to Staff.

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the City Council:

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2019-119 (Attachment 1) authorizing the City Manager to
execute Professional Services Agreements with Pamela Elliott Landscape
Architect.

2. Adopt Resolution No. 2019-120 (Attachment 2) authorizing the City Manager to
execute Professional Services Agreements with GeoPacifica, Inc. and CTE, Inc.

CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION:

/ rego"r/y Wde, City Manager

Attachments:
1. Resolution No. 2019-119 (Pamela Elliott Landscape Architect)
2. Resolution No. 2019-120 (GeoPacifica Inc. and CTE Inc.)
3. Professional Services Agreement — Pamela Elliott Landscape Architect
4. Professional Services Agreement — Pamela Elliott Landscape Architect Pass

Through



O N o

August 28, 2019
Community Development Agreements
Page 4 of 4

Professional Services Agreement — GeoPacifica, Inc.

Professional Services Agreement — GeoPacifica, Inc. Pass Through
Professional Services Agreement — CTE, Inc.

Professional Services Agreement — CTE, Inc. Pass Through



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-119

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
SOLANA BEACH, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING A
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH
PAMELA ELLIOTT LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT FOR
LANDSCAPE PLAN REVIEW AND INSPECTION
SERVICES

WHEREAS, the Community Development Department has utilized the services of
Pamela Elliott Landscape Architect to provide professional landscape plan review and
inspections services.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Solana Beach does resolve as
follows:

1. That the foregoing recitations are true and correct.

2. That the City Manager is authorized to execute a professional service agreement
with Pamela Elliott Landscape Architect to provide professional landscape plan
review and inspection services.

3. That the City Manager is authorized to execute an Agreement with Pamela Elliott
Landscape Architect for an open-ended dollar amount for third-party pass-
through payments.

4. That the City Council authorizes the City Manager to extend the agreements for
four additional one year terms, at the City’s option.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of August, 2019, at a regularly
scheduled meeting of the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California by the
following vote:

AYES: Councilmembers —
NOES: Councilmembers —
ABSTAIN: Councilmembers —
ABSENT: Councilmembers —

DAVID A. ZITO, Deputy Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST:

JOHANNA N. CANLAS, City Attorney ANGELA IVEY, City Clerk

ATTACHMENT 1



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-120

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
SOLANA BEACH, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING A
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENTS WITH
GEOPACIFICA INC. AND CTE INC. FOR PROFESSIONAL
COASTAL GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING SERVICES

WHEREAS, the Community Development Department is in need of professional
coastal geotechnical engineering services for City projects on an as-needed basis and
for 3 party review on new development projects; and

WHEREAS, in May 2019, the City issued a Requests for Proposals to provide as-
needed and 3™ party professional coastal geotechnical engineering services; and

WHEREAS, the City received four responses to the City’s RFP; and

WHEREAS, after due review and consideration, it was determined that
GeoPacifica Inc. and CTE Inc. were the most qualified and responsive to provide
professional coastal geotechnical engineering services; and

WHEREAS, the City wishes to enter contracts with two highly qualified
geotechnical engineering firms.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Solana Beach does resolve as
follows:

1. That the foregoing recitations are true and correct.

2. That the City Council authorizes the City Manager to execute a professional
service agreement with GeoPacifica, Inc. and CTE, Inc. to provide professional
coastal geotechnical engineering services.

3. That the City Council authorizes the City Manager to execute a professional
service agreement with GeoPacifica, Inc. and CTE, Inc. for an open-ended dollar
amount for third-party pass-through payments for coastal and inland bluff-top
geotechnical review.

4. That the City Council authorizes the City Manager to extend all of the
agreements for four additional one year terms, at the City’s option.

ATTACHMENT 2



Resolution 2019-120
PSA with GeoPacifica & CTE
Page 2 of 2

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of August, 2019, at a regularly
scheduled meeting of the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California by the

following vote:

AYES: Councilmembers -
NOES: Councilmembers —
ABSTAIN: Councilmembers —
ABSENT: Councilmembers —

DAVID A. ZITO, Deputy Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST:

JOHANNA N. CANLAS, City Attorney ANGELA IVEY, City Clerk



City of Solana Beach

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

FOR Third Party Landscape Architect

THIS Professional Services Agreement (‘“AGREEMENT”) is made and entered into this 1st day of
September, 2019 by and between the CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, a municipal corporation (“CITY”), and,
CONSULTANT a sole proprietorship, (‘CONSULTANT") (collectively “PARTIES”).

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to employ a CONSULTANT to furnish professional landscape
review and inspection services (“PROFESSIONAL SERVICES”) for various City projects (“PROJECT");
and '

WHEREAS, the CITY has determined that CONSULTANT is qualified by experience and ability
to perform the services desired by CITY, and CONSULTANT is willing to perform such services; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT will conduct all the work as described and detailed in this
AGREEMENT to be provided to the CITY.

NOW, THEREFORE, the PARTIES hereto mutually covenant and agree with each other as
. follows:

1. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.

1.1.  Scope of Services. The CONSULTANT shall perform the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES as set
forth in the written Scope of Services, attached as Exhibit “A” Scope of Services and Fee, at the
direction of the CITY. CITY shall provide CONSULTANT access to appropriate staff and
resources for the coordination and completion of the projects under this AGREEMENT. For all
work to be performed on site at City Hall, CITY and CONSULTANT agree that the Scope of
Services begins when CONSULTANT arrives at City Hall and terminates when CONSULTANT
leaves City Hall. Travel time to and from City Hall shall not be considered time on the job or
compensated by the CITY.

1.2.

1.3.  Project Coordinator. The Community Development Director is hereby designated as the
Project Coordinator for CITY and will monitor the progress and execution of this AGREEMENT.
CONSULTANT shall assign a single Project Director to provide supervision and have overall
responsibility for the progress and execution of this AGREEMENT for CONSULTANT. Pamela
Elliott is hereby designated as the Project Director for CONSULTANT.

1.4.  City Modification of Scope of Services. CITY may order changes to the Scope of Services
within the general scope of this AGREEMENT consisting of additions, deletions, or other
revisions. If such changes cause a change in the CONSULTANT's cost of, or time required for,
completion of the Scope of Services, an equitable adjustment to CONSULTANT’s compensation
and/or contract time shall be made, subject to the CITY’S approval. All such changes shall be
authorized in writing, executed by CONSULTANT and CITY.

2. DURATION OF AGREEMENT.

2.1.  Term. The term of this AGREEMENT shall be for a period of one (1) year beginning from the
date of execution of the AGREEMENT. Time is of the essence in the performance of work under
this AGREEMENT, unless otherwise specified.

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 ) Page 1 of 12 City Attorney appr ATT ACH M E NT 3



2.2,

2.3.

2.4.

2.5.

Extensions. [ If marked, the CITY shall have the option to extend the AGREEMENT for four
(4) additional one (1) year periods or parts thereof for an amount not to exceed ten thousdand
dollars and ($10,000.00) per AGREEMENT year. Extensions shall be in the sole discretion of
the City Manager and shall be based upon CONSULTANT’s satisfactory past performance, CITY
needs, and appropriation of funds by the City Council. The CITY shall give written notice to
CONSULTANT prior to exercising the option.

Delay. Any delay occasioned by causes beyond the control of CONSULTANT may merit an
extension of time for the completion of the Scope of Services. When such delay occurs,
CONSULTANT shall immediately notify the Project Coordinator in writing of the cause and the
extent of the delay, whereupon the Project Coordinator shall ascertain the facts and the extent
of the delay and grant an extension of time for the completion of the PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES when justified by the circumstances. :

City’s Right to Terminate for Default. Shouid CONSULTANT be in default of any covenant or
condition hereof, CITY may immediately terminate this AGREEMENT for cause if CONSULTANT
fails to cure the default within ten (10) calendar days of receiving written notice of the default.

City’s Right to Terminate without Cause. Without limiting its rights in the event of
CONSULTANT’s default, CITY may terminate this AGREEMENT, without cause, by giving
written notice to CONSULTANT. Such termination shall be effective upon receipt of the written
notice. CONSULTANT shall be compensated for all effort and material expended on behalf of
CITY under the terms of this AGREEMENT, up to the effective date of termination. All personal
property remaining in CITY facilities or on CITY property thirty (30) days after the expiration or
termination of this AGREEMENT shall be, at CITY’s election, considered the property of CITY.

3. COMPENSATION.

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

Total Amount. The total cost for all work described in the Scope of Services and Fee (Exhibit
“A”) shall not exceed ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) without prior written authorization from
CITY. CONSULTANT shall bill the CITY for work provided and shall present a written request for
such payment monthly.

Additional Services. CITY may, as the need arises or in the event of an emergency, request
additional services of CONSULTANT. Should such additional services be required, CITY and
CONSULTANT shall agree to the cost prior to commencement of these services.

Costs. Any costs billed to the CITY shall be in accordance with any terms negotiated and
incorporated herein as part of Exhibit “A” Scope of Services and Fee.

4. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.

4.1.

CONSULTANT is, for all purposes arising out of this AGREEMENT, an independent contractor.
The CONSULTANT has and shall retain the right to exercise full control and supervision of all
persons assisting the CONSULTANT in the performance of said services hereunder, the CITY
only being concerned with the finished resulis of the work being performed. Neither
CONSULTANT nor CONSULTANT’s employees shall in any event be entitled to any benefits to
which CITY employees are entitled, including, but not limited to, overtime, retirement benefits,
workers’ compensation benefits, injury leave or other leave benefits. CONSULTANT is solely
responsible for all such matters, as well as compliance with social security and income tax
withholding and all other regulations and laws governing such matters.

5. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE.

While performing the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, CONSULTANT shall exercise the reasonable
professional care and skill customarily exercised by reputable members of CONSULTANT's profession
practicing in the metropolitan-Southern California Area, and will use reasonable diligence and best judgment
while exercising its professional skill and expertise.

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 2 of 12 City Attorney approved tempiate Sept. 2018



6. WARRANTY OF CONSULTANT’S LICENSE.

CONSULTANT warrants that CONSULTANT is properly licensed with the applicable government
agency(ies) for any PROFESSIONAL SERVICES that require a license. If the CONSULTANT lacks such
license, this AGREEMENT is void and of no effect.

7. AUDIT OF RECORDS.

7.1.

7.2.

At any time during normal business hours and as often as may be deemed necessary the
CONSULTANT shall make available to a representative of CITY for examination all of its records
with respect to all matters covered by this AGREEMENT and shall permit CITY to audit, examine
and/or reproduce such records. CONSULTANT shall retain such financial and program service
records for at least four (4) years after termination or final payment under this AGREEMENT.

The CONSULTANT shall include the CITY's right under this section in any and all of their
subcontracts, and shall ensure that these sections are binding upon all subcontractors.

8. CONFIDENTIALITY AND SECURITY.

8.1.

8.2,

Confidential Work Product. All professional services performed by CONSULTANT, including
but not limited to all drafts, data, correspondence, proposals, reports, research and estimates
compiled or composed by CONSULTANT, pursuant to this AGREEMENT, are for the sole use
of the CITY, its agents and employees. Neither the documents nor their contents shall be
released to any third party without the prior written consent of the CITY. This provision does not
apply to information that (a) was publicly known, or otherwise known to CONSULTANT, at the
time that it was disclosed to CONSULTANT by the CITY, (b) subsequently becomes publicly
known through no act or omission of CONSULTANT or (c) otherwise becomes known to
CONSULTANT other than through disclosure by the CITY. Except for any subcontractors that
may be allowed upon prior agreement, neither the documents nor their contents shall be released
to any third party without the prior written consent of the CITY. The sole purpose of this section
is to prevent disclosure of CITY’s confidential and proprietary information by CONSULTANT or
subcontractors.

Confidentiality. Both parties recognize that their respective employees and agents, in the
course of performance of this AGREEMENT, may be exposed to confidential information and
that disclosure of such information could violate the rights of private individuals and entities,
including the parties and third parties. Confidential information is nonpublic information that a
reasonable person would believe to be confidential and includes, without limitation, personal
identifying information (e.g., social security numbers) and trade secrets, each as defined by
applicable state law, and all other information protected by applicable law (“Confidential
Information”). The party receiving Confidential Information (“Receiving Party”) of the other
(“Disclosing Party”) shall not, and shall cause its employees and agents who are authorized to
receive Confidential Information, not to, use Confidential Information for any purpose except as
necessary to implement, perform or enforce this AGREEMENT or comply with its legal
obligations. Receiving Party will use the same reasonable efforts to protect the Confidential
Information of Disclosing Party as it uses to protect its own proprietary information and data. The
Receiving Party will not disclose or release Confidential Information to any third person without
the prior written consent of the Disclosing Party, except for where required by law or for
authorized employees or agents of the Receiving Party. Prior to disclosing the Confidential
Information to its authorized employees or agents, Receiving Party shall inform them of the
confidential nature of the Confidential Information and require them to abide by the terms of this
AGREEMENT. Receiving Party will promptly notify Disclosing Party if Receiving Party discovers
any improper use or disclosure of Confidential Information and will promptly commence all
reasonable efforts to investigate and correct the causes of such improper use or disclosure. |f
Receiving Party believes the Confidential Information must be disclosed under applicable law,
Receiving Party may do so provided that, to the extent permitted by law, the other parly is given
a reasonable notice and opportunity to contest such disclosure or obtain a protective order.

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 3 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



Confidential Information does not include information that: (i) is or becomes known to the public
without fault or breach of the Receiving Party; (ii) the Disclosing Party regularly discloses to third
parties without restriction on disclosure; or (iii) the Receiving Party obtains from a third party
without restriction on disclosure and without breach of a non-disclosure obligation. Confidential
Information does not include any information that is required to be provided to the public pursuant
to the laws of the United States and/or California such as the California Public Records Act, due
to the nature of CITY being a local governmental agency. The non-disclosure and non-use
obligations of this AGREEMENT will remain in full force with respect to each item of Confidential
Information for a period of ten (10) years after the Receiving Party’s receipt of that item.

8.3.  Security.
8.3.1.

8.3.2.

8.3.3.

Agreement modified 8/22/2019

Implementation. CONSULTANT shall implement commercially reasonable
administrative, technical and physical safeguards designed to: (i) ensure the security
and confidentiality of data and information provided by the CITY or used in
connection with providing services under this AGREEMENT, including data or
information about third parties (“CITY’S Data”); (ii) protect against any anticipated
threats or hazards to the security or integrity of CITY’S Data; and (iii) protect against
unauthorized access to or use of CITY’S Data. CONSULTANT shall review and test
such safeguards on no less than an annual basis.

Network. If CONSULTANT makes CITY’S Data accessible through the Internet or
other networked environment, CONSULTANT shall be solely responsible for all
aspects of Internet use, and shall maintain, in connection with the operation or use
of CITY’S Data, adequate technical and procedural access controls and system
security requirements and devices, necessary for data privacy, confidentiality,
integrity, authorization, authentication and non-repudiation and virus detection and
eradication.

Personal Data. If CONSULTANT processes or otherwise has access to any
personal data or personal information on CITY’s behalf when performing
CONSULTANT’s services and obligations under this AGREEMENT, then: (i} CITY
shall be the data controlier (where “data controller” means an entity which alone or
jointly with others determines purposes for which and the manner in which any
personal data are, or are to be, processed) and CONSULTANT shall be a data
processor (where “data processor’” means an entity which processes the data only
on behalf of the data controller and not for any purposes of its own); (ii) CITY shall
ensure that it has obtained all necessary consents and it is entitled to transfer the
relevant personal data or personal information to CONSULTANT so that
CONSULTANT may lawfully use, process and transfer the personal data and
personal information in accordance with this AGREEMENT on CITY’s behalf in order
for CONSULTANT to provide the services and perform its other obligations under
this AGREEMENT; (iii) CONSULTANT shall process the personal data and personal
information only in accordance with any lawful and reasonable instructions given by
CITY from time to time and in accordance with the terms of this AGREEMENT; and
(iv) each party shall take appropriate technical and organizational measures against
unauthorized or unlawful processing of the personal data and personal information
or its accidental loss, destruction or damage so that, having regard to the state of
technological development and the cost of implementing any measures, the
measures taken ensure a level of security appropriate to the harm that might result
from such unauthorized or unlawful processing or accidental loss, destruction or
damage in relation to the personal data and personal information and the nature of
the personal data and personal information being protected. If necessary, the parties
will cooperate to document these measures taken.

Page 4 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



8.3.4. Information Security. CONSULTANT represents and warrants that its collection,
access, use, storage, disposal and disclosure of Confidential Information accessed
and/or collected from CITY does and will comply with all applicable federal and state
privacy and data protection laws. In the event of any security breach, CONSULTANT
shall: (a) Provide CITY with the name and contact information for an employee who
shall serve as CITY’s primary security contact and shall be available to assist CITY
twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week as a contact in resolving
obligations associated with a security breach; and (b) Notify CITY of a security breach
as soon as practicable, but no later than twenty-four (24) hours after CONSULTANT
becomes aware of it. Immediately following CONSULTANT's notification to CITY of
a security breach, the parties shall coordinate with each other to investigate the
security breach. CONSULTANT agrees to fully cooperate with CITY in CITY'’s
handiing of the matter. CONSULTANT shall use best efforts to immediately remedy
any security breach and prevent any further security breach at CONSULTANT’s own
expense in accordance with applicable privacy rights, laws, regulations and
standards. CONSULTANT agrees to provide, at its expense, up to one year of credit
monitoring services to third parties impacted by any data breach involving the loss of
personally identifiable information.

8.4. Indemnity. CONSULTANT shall defend (with counsel acceptable to CITY), indemnify and hold
CITY harmless from and against all claims, actions, proceedings, losses, costs (including
attorney fees and other charges), liabilities, damages, judgments, settlements, and court
awarded attorney’s fees resulting from, arising out of or related to a security or data breach
unless the breach is proven to be caused solely by CITY. The terms of this section shall survive
termination of this AGREEMENT. For purposes of this provision, “security breach” means any
act or omission that compromises either the security, confidentiality, or integrity of Confidential
Information or the physical, technical, administrative or organizational safeguards put in place by
CONSULTANT or any authorized persons that relate to the protection of the security,
confidentiality or integrity of Confidential Information or a breach or alleged breach of this
AGREEMENT relating to such privacy practices or privacy obligations imposed by any applicable
law.

8.5. Notice and Remedy of Breaches. Each party shall promptly give notice to the other of any
actual or suspected breach by it of any of the provisions of Section 8 of this AGREEMENT,
whether or not intentional, and the breaching party shall, at its expense, take all steps reasonably
requested by the other party to prevent or remedy the breach.

8.6. Enforcement. Each party acknowledges that any breach of any of the provisions of Section 8
of this AGREEMENT may result in irreparable injury to the other for which money damages would
not adequately compensate. If there is a breach, then the injured party shall be entitled, in
addition to all other rights and remedies which it may have, to have a decree of specific
performance or an injunction issued by any competent court, requiring the breach to be cured or
enjoining all persons involved from continuing the breach.

9. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.

9.1. CONSULTANT shall at all times comply with all federal, state and local conflict of interest laws,
regulations, and policies applicable to public contracts and procurement practices, including but
not limited to California Government Code Section 81000 et seq. (Political Reform Act) and
Section 1090 et seq. CONSULTANT shall immediately disqualify itself and shall not use its official
position to influence in any way any matter coming before the CITY in which the CONSULTANT
has a financial interest as defined in Government Code Section 87103. CONSULTANT
represents that it has no knowledge of any financial interests which would require it to disqualify
itself from any matter on which it might perform services for the CITY.

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 5 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



10.

11.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

If, in performing the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES set forth in this AGREEMENT, the
CONSULTANT makes, or participates in, a “governmental decision” as described in Title 2,
Section 18700.3(a) of the California Code of Regulations, or performs the same or substantially
all the same duties for the CITY that would otherwise be performed by a CITY employee holding
a position specified in the department's conflict of interest code, the CONSULTANT shall be
subject to a conflict of interest code requiring the completion of one or more statements of
economic interests disclosing the CONSULTANT's relevant financial interests.

X If checked, the CONSULTANT shall comply with all of the reporting requirements of the
Political Reform Act. Specifically, the CONSULTANT shall file a Fair Political Practices
Commission Form 700 (Assuming Office Statement) within thirty (30) calendar days of the CITY's
determination that the CONSULTANT is subject to a conflict of interest code. The CONSULTANT
shall also file a Form 700 (Annual Statement) on or before April 1 of each year of the
AGREEMENT, disclosing any financial interests held during the previous calendar year for which
the CONSULTANT was subject to a conflict of interest code.

CITY represents that pursuant to California Government Code Section 1090 et seq., none of its
elected officials, officers, or employees has an interest in this AGREEMENT.

DISPOSITION AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.

10.1.

10.2.

All documents, data, studies, drawings, maps, models, photographs and reports prepared by
CONSULTANT under this AGREEMENT, whether paper or electronic, shall become the property
of CITY for use with respect to this PROJECT, and shall be turned over to the CITY upon
completion of the PROJECT or any phase thereof, as contemplated by this AGREEMENT.

Contemporaneously with the transfer of documents, the CONSULTANT hereby assigns to the
CITY and CONSULTANT thereby expressly waives and disclaims, any copyright in, and the right
to reproduce, all written material, drawings, plans, specifications or other work prepared under
this AGREEMENT, except upon the CITY’s prior authorization regarding reproduction, which
authorization shall not be unreasonably withheld. The CONSULTANT shall, upon request of the
CITY, execute any further document(s) necessary to further effectuate this waiver and
disclaimer.

INSURANCE

11.1.

11.3.

CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain for the duration of the AGREEMENT insurance
against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in
connection with the performance of the work hereunder and the results of that work by the
CONSULTANT, their agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors. Insurance shall be
placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than “A” and “VII” unless
otherwise approved in writing by the CITY’s Risk Manager.

CONSULTANT's liabilities, including but not limited to CONSULTANT’s indemnity obligations,
under this AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed limited in any way to the insurance coverage
required herein. All policies of insurance required hereunder must provide that the CITY is
entitled to thirty (30) days prior written notice of cancellation or non-renewal of the policy or
policies, or ten (10) days prior written notice for cancellation due to non-payment of premium.
Maintenance of specified insurance coverage is a material element of this AGREEMENT.

Types and Amounts Required. CONSULTANT shall maintain, at minimum, the following
insurance coverage for the duration of this AGREEMENT:

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 6 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



11.3.1.

11.3.2

11.3.3.

11.3.4.

11.3.5.

XICommercial General Liability (CGL). If checked the CONSULTANT shall
maintain CGL. Insurance written on an 1ISO Occurrence form or equivalent providing
coverage at least as broad which shall cover liability arising from any and all personal
injury or property damage in the amount of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence and subject
to an annual aggregate of $2,000,000.00. There shall be no endorsement or
modification of the CGL limiting the scope of coverage for either insured vs. insured
claims or contractual liability. All defense costs shall be outside the limits of the policy.

XICommercial Automobile Liability. If checked the CONSULTANT shall maintain
Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance for all of the CONSULTANT's
automobiles including owned, hired and non-owned automobiles, automobile
insurance written on an ISO form CA 00 01 12 90 or a later version of this form or an
equivalent form providing coverage at least as broad for bodily injury and property
damage for a combined single limit of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence. Insurance
certificate shall reflect coverage for any automobile (any auto).

XlWorkers' Compensation. If checked the CONSULTANT shall maintain Worker’s
Compensation insurance for all of the CONSULTANT's employees who are subject
to this AGREEMENT and to the extent required by applicable state or federal law, a
Workers' Compensation policy providing at minimum $1,000,000.00 employers'
liability coverage. The CONSULTANT shall provide an endorsement that the insurer
waives the right of subrogation against the CITY and its respective elected officials,
officers, employees, agenis and representatives.

X|Professional Liability. If checked the CONSULTANT shall also maintain
Professional Liability (errors and omissions) coverage with a limit of $1,000,000 per
claim and $2,000,000 annual aggregate. The CONSULTANT shall ensure both that
(1) the policy retroactive date is on or before the date of commencement of the Scope
of Services; and (2) the policy will be maintained in force for a period of three years
after substantial completion of the Scope of Services or termination of this
AGREEMENT whichever occurs last. The CONSULTANT agrees that for the time
period defined above, there will be no changes or endorsements to the policy that
increase the CITY's exposure to loss. All defense costs shall be outside the limits of
the policy.

[CICcyber Liability. If checked the CONSULTANT shall also maintain Cyber Liability
coverage on an occurrence basis with a limit of $2,000,000 per occurrence or claim
and $2,000,000 annual aggregate. Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond
to the duties and obligations as are undertaken by CONSULTANT in this
AGREEMENT and shall include claims involving infringement of intellectual property,
infringement of copyright, trademark, trade dress, invasion of privacy violations,
information theft, damage to or destruction of electronic information, release of
private information, alteration of electronic information, extortion and network
security. The policy shall provide coverage for breach response costs as well as
regulatory fines and penalties as well as credit monitoring expenses with limits
sufficient to respond to such obligations. All defense costs shall be outside the limits
of the policy.

11.4. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions are the
responsibility of the CONSULTANT and must be declared to and approved by the CITY. At the
option of the CITY, either (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured
retentions as respects the CITY, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers, or (2) the
CONSULTANT shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to the CITY guaranteeing
payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses.

11.5. Additional Required Provisions. The commercial general liability and automobile liability .
policies shall contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

Agreement modified 8/22/2019

Page7of12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



11.5.1. The CITY, its officers, officials, employees, and representatives shall be named as
additional insureds. The CITY's additional insured status must be reflected on
additional insured endorsement form (20 10 1185 or 20 10 1001 and 20 37 1001)
which shall be submitted to the CITY.

11.5.2. The policies are primary and non-contributory to any insurance that may be carried
by the CITY, as reflected in an endorsement which shall be submitted to the CITY.

11.6. Verification of Coverage. CONSULTANT shall furnish the CITY with original certificates and
amendatory endorsements effecting coverage required by this Section 11. The endorsement
should be on forms provided by the CITY or on other than the CITY’s forms provided those
endorsements conform to CITY requirements. All certificates and endorsements are to be
received and approved by the CITY before work commences. The CITY reserves the right to
require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements
affecting the coverage required by these specifications at any time.

12. INDEMNIFICATION.

CONSULTANT agrees to indemnify, defend (with counsel acceptable to CITY), and hold harmless the CITY,
and its officers, officials, agents and employees from any and all claims, demands, costs or liabilities that
arise out of, or pertain to, or relate o the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of CONSULTANT,
its employees, agents, and subcontractors in the performance of or failure to perform services or obligations
under this AGREEMENT. CONSULTANT’s duty to indemnify under this section shall not include liability for
damages for death or bodily injury to persons, injury to property, or other loss; damage or expense arising
from the sole negligence or willful misconduct by the CITY or its elected officials, officers, agents, and
employees. CONSULTANT's indemnification obligations shall not be limited by the insurance provisions of
this AGREEMENT. The PARTIES expressly agree that any payment, attorney's fees, costs or expense CITY
incurs or makes to or on behalf of an injured employee under the CITY's self-administered workers'
compensation is included as a loss, expense, or cost for the purposes of this section, and that this section
will survive the expiration or early termination of this AGREEMENT.

13. SUBCONTRACTORS.

13.1. The CONSULTANT’s hiring or retaining of third parties (i.e. subcontractors) to perform services
related to the PROJECT is subject to prior approval by the CITY.

13.2. All contracts entered into between the CONSULTANT and its subcontractor shall also provide
that each subcontractor shall obtain insurance policies which shall be kept in full force and effect
during any and all work on this PROJECT and for the duration of this AGREEMENT. The
CONSULTANT shall require the subcontractor to obtain, all policies described in Section 11 in
the amounts required by the CITY, which shall not be greater than the amounts required of the
CONSULTANT.

13.3. In any dispute between the CONSULTANT and its subcontractor, the CITY shall not be made a
party to any judicial or administrative proceeding to resolve the dispute. The CONSULTANT
agrees to defend and indemnify the CITY as described in Section 12 of this AGREEMENT should
the CITY be made a party to any judicial or administrative proceeding to resolve any such
dispute.

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 8 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



14. NON-DISCRIMINATION.

CONSULTANT shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex,
race, color, age, religion, ancestry, national origin, military or veteran status, disability, medical condition,
genetic information, gender expression, marital status, or sexual orientation. CONSULTANT shall take
affirmative action to insure that applicants are employed and that employees are treated during employment
without regard to their sex, race, color, age, religion, ancestry, national origin, military or veteran status,
disability, medical condition, genetic information, gender expression, marital status, or sexual orientation and
shall make reasonable accommodation to qualified individuals with disabilities or medical conditions. Such
action shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer,
recruitment, or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation,
and selection for training, including apprenticeship. CONSULTANT agrees to post in conspicuous places
available to employees and applicants for employment any notices provided by CITY setting forth the
provisions of this non-discrimination clause.

15. NOTICES.

All communications to either party by the other party shall be delivered to the persons listed below. Any such
written communications by mail shall be conclusively deemed to have been received by the addressee five
(5) calendar days after the deposit thereof in the United States mail, postage prepaid and properly addressed
as noted below.

Joseph Lim, Community Development Director Pamela Elliott
City of Sglana Beach Landscape Architect
635 S. Highway 101 637 Arden Drive
Solana Beach, CA 92075 Encinitas, CA 92024

16. ASSIGNABILITY.

This AGREEMENT and any portion thereof shall not be assigned or transferred, nor shall any of the
CONSULTANT's duties be delegated or sub-contracted, without the express written consent of the CITY.

17. RESPONSIBILITY FOR EQUIPMENT.

CITY shall not be responsible nor held liable for any damage to persons or property consequent upon the
use, misuse, or failure of any equipment used by CONSULTANT or any of CONSULTANT’s employees or
subcontractors, even if such equipment has been furnished, rented, or loaned to CONSULTANT by CITY.
The acceptance or use of any such equipment by CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s employees, or
subcontractors shall be construed to mean that CONSULTANT accepts full responsibility for and agrees to
exonerate, indemnify and hold harmless CITY from and against any and all claims for any damage
whatsoever resulting from the use, misuse, or failure of such equipment.

18. CALIFORNIA LAW; VENUE.

This AGREEMENT shall be construed and interpreted according to the laws of the State of California. Any
action brought to enforce or interpret any portion of this AGREEMENT shall be brought in the county of San
Diego, California. CONSULTANT hereby waives any and all rights it might have pursuant to California Code
of Civil Procedure Section 394.

19. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.

The Consultant shall comply with all laws, ordinances, regulations, and policies of the federal, state, and
local governments applicable to this AGREEMENT whether now in force or subsequently enacted. This
includes maintaining a City of Solana Beach Business Certificate.

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 9 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



20. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

This AGREEMENT sets forth the entire understanding of the PARTIES with respect to the subject matters
herein. There are no other understandings, terms or other agreements expressed or implied, oral or written,
except as set forth herein. No change, alteration, or modification of the terms or conditions of this
AGREEMENT, and no verbal understanding of the PARTIES, their officers, agents, or employees shall be
valid unless agreed to in writing by both PARTIES.

21. NO WAIVER.

No failure of either the City or the Consultant to insist upon the strict performance by the other of any
covenant, term or condition of this AGREEMENT, nor any failure to exercise any right or remedy consequent
upon a breach of any covenant, term, or condition of this AGREEMENT shall constitute a waiver of any such
breach of such covenant, term or condition.

22. SEVERABILITY.

The unenforceability, invalidity, or illegality of any provision of this AGREEMENT shall not render any other
provision unenforceable, invalid, or illegal.

23. DRAFTING AMBIGUITIES.

The PARTIES agree that they are aware that they have the right to be advised by counsel with respect to
the negotiations, terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT, and the decision of whether or not to seek
advice of counsel with respect to this AGREEMENT is a decision which is the sole responsibility of each
Party. This AGREEMENT shall not be construed in favor of or against either Party by reason of the extent
to which each Party participated in the drafting of the AGREEMENT.

24. CONFLICTS BETWEEN TERMS.

If an apparent conflict or inconsistency exists between the main body of this AGREEMENT and the Exhibits,
the main body of this AGREEMENT shall control. If a conflict exists between an applicable federal, state, or
local law, rule, regulation, order, or code and this AGREEMENT, the law, rule, regulation, order, or code
shall control. Varying degrees of stringency among the main body of this AGREEMENT, the Exhibits, and
laws, rules, regulations, orders, or codes are not deemed conflicts, and the most stringent requirement shall
control. Each Party shall notify the other immediately upon the identification of any apparent conflict or
inconsistency concerning this AGREEMENT.

25. EXHIBITS INCORPORATED.
All Exhibits referenced in this AGREEMENT are incorporated into the AGREEMENT by this reference.

26. SIGNING AUTHORITY.

26.1. The representative for each Party signing on behalf of a corporation, partnership, joint venture,
association, or governmental entity hereby declares that authority has been obtained to sign on
behalf of the corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, or entity and agrees to hold the
other Party or PARTIES hereto harmless if it is later determined that such authority does not
exist.

26.2. [X|If checked, a proper notary acknowledgement of execution by CONSULTANT must be
attached.

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 10 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES hereto have executed this AGREEMENT the day and year
first hereinabove written.

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, a municipal CONSULTANT, a Sole Proprietor
corporation
By: By:

City Manager, Gregory Wade Signature

Pamela Elliott, Landscape Architect

ATTEST:

City Clerk. Angela lvey

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

Joseph Lim, Community Development Director

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

City Attorney, Johanna N. Canlas

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 11 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



EXHIBIT “A”
SCOPE OF SERVICES AND FEE

@

Click or tap hers to enleriext,

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 12 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



PASS-THROUGH FEE SCHEDULE

Exhibit “A”

Conceptual Review Landscape Area Estimated Hours Fee
1%t Review {A) 8,000 SF or less 3 $ 450
(B) 8,001 SF - 20,000 SF 4 S 600
(C) 20,001 SF - 40,000 SF 5 S 750
(D) 40,001 SF - 100,000 SF 6 $900
{(E) 100,001 SF - 200,000 SF 7 $ 1,050
(F) 200,001 SF - 400,000 SF 8 $ 1,200
(G) 400,001 SF or more 9 $1,350
2" Review (A) 8,000 SF or less 2 $ 300
(B) 8,001 SF - 20,000 SF 2 $300
(C) 20,001 SF - 40,000 SF 3 $ 450
(D) 40,001 SF - 100,000 SF 3 S 450
(E) 100,001 SF - 200,000 SF 4 S 600
{F) 200,001 SF - 400,000 SF 4 S 600
{G) 400,001 SF or more 4 $ 600
3" Review (A) 8,000 SF or less 2 $ 300
or more (B) 8,001 SF - 20,000 SF 2 S 300
(C) 20,001 SF - 40,000 SF 2 $ 300
{D) 40,001 SF - 100,000 SF 3 S 450
(E) 100,001 SF - 200,000 SF 3 $ 450
(F) 200,001 SF - 400,000 SF 3 S 450
(G) 400,001 SF or more 3 S 450

Construction Drawings

Landscape Area

Estimated Hours

Estimated Cost

1% Review {A) 8,000 SF or less 3 $ 450
(B) 8,001 SF - 20,000 SF 4 S 600
(C) 20,001 SF - 40,000 SF 5 S 750
(D) 40,001 SF - 100,000 SF 6 $ 900
. (E) 100,001 SF - 200,000 SF 7 $ 1,050
(F) 200,001 SF - 400,000 SF 8 $1,200
(G) 400,001 SF or more 9 $1,350
2" Review (A) 8,000 SF or less 2 $ 300
(B) 8,001 SF - 20,000 SF 3 S 450
(C) 20,001 SF - 40,000 SF 4 S 600
(D) 40,001 SF - 100,000 SF 5 S 750
(E) 100,001 SF - 200,000 SF 6 $ 900
(F) 200,001 SF - 400,000 SF 7 $ 1,050
(G) 400,001 SF or more 9 $ 1,350
3" Review (A) 8,000 SF or less 2 $ 300
or more (B) 8,001 SF - 20,000 SF 3 $ 450
(C) 20,001 SF - 40,000 SF 4 S 600
(D) 40,001 SF - 100,000 SF 5 $ 750
(E) 100,001 SF - 200,000 SF 5 $ 750
(F) 200,001 SF - 400,000 SF 6 $ 900
(G) 400,001 SF or more 6 $ 900




Inspections Estimated Hours Estimated Cost
1% Inspection (A) 8,000 SF or less 2 $ 300
(B) 8,001 SF - 20,000 SF 3 $ 450
(C) 20,001 SF - 40,000 SF 3 $ 450
(D) 40,001 SF - 100,000 SF 3 $ 450
(E) 100,001 SF - 200,000 SF 4 S 600
(F) 200,001 SF - 400,000 SF 4 S 600
(G) 400,001 SF or more 5 $750
2" Inspection (A) 8,000 SF or less 2 $ 300
(B) 8,001 SF - 20,000 SF 2 S 300
{C) 20,001 SF - 40,000 SF 3 $ 450
(D) 40,001 SF - 100,000 SF 3 S 450
(E) 100,001 SF - 200,000 SF 3 $ 450
(F) 200,001 SF - 400,000 SF 3 $ 450
(G) 400,001 SF or more 3 S 450
3™ Inspection (A) 8,000 SF or less 2 $ 300
or more (B) 8,001 SF - 20,000 SF 2 $ 300
(C) 20,001 SF - 40,000 SF 2 $300
(D) 40,001 SF - 100,000 SF 3 $ 450
{E) 100,001 SF - 200,000 SF 3 $ 450
(F) 200,001 SF - 400,000 SF 3 $ 450
(G) 400,001 SF or more 3 $ 450

Meetings with Applicant: S 150/hour

*Note: Hourly rate for City Projects $125/hour




City of Solana Beach

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

FOR Third Party Landscape Architect Pass Through

- THIS Professional Services Agreement (‘“AGREEMENT”) is made and entered into this 1st day of
September, 2019 by and between the CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, a municipal corporation (“CITY”), and,
Pameal Elliott Landscape Architect a sole proprietorship, (‘CONSULTANT”) (collectively “PARTIES”).

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to employ a CONSULTANT to furnish third party professional
landscape review and inspection services (“PROFESSIONAL SERVICES”) for private developement
projects (“PROJECT”); and

WHEREAS, the CITY has determined that CONSULTANT is qualified by experience and ability
to perform the services desired by CITY, and CONSULTANT is willing to perform such services; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT will conduct all the work as described and detailed in this
AGREEMENT to be provided to the CITY.

NOW, THEREFORE, the PARTIES hereto mutually covenant and agree with each other as
follows:

1. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.

1.1.  Scope of Services. The CONSULTANT shall perform the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES as set
forth in the written Scope of Services, attached as Exhibit “A” Scope of Services and Fee, at the
direction of the CITY. CITY shall provide CONSULTANT access to appropriate staff and
resources for the coordination and completion of the projects under this AGREEMENT. For all
work to be performed on site at City Hall, CITY and CONSULTANT agree that the Scope of
Services begins when CONSULTANT arrives at City Hall and terminates when CONSULTANT
leaves City Hall. Travel time to and from City Hall shall not be considered time on the job or
compensated by the CITY.

1.2,

1.3. Project Coordinator. The Community Development Director is hereby designated as the
Project Coordinator for CITY and will monitor the progress and execution of this AGREEMENT.
CONSULTANT shall assign a single Project Director to provide supervision and have overall
responsibility for the progress and execution of this AGREEMENT for CONSULTANT. Pamela
Elliott is hereby designated as the Project Director for CONSULTANT.

1.4.  City Modification of Scope of Services. CITY may order changes to the Scope of Services
within the general scope of this AGREEMENT consisting of additions, deletions, or other
revisions. If such changes cause a change in the CONSULTANT’s cost of, or time required for,
completion of the Scope of Services, an equitable adjustment to CONSULTANT’s compensation
and/or contract time shall be made, subject to the CITY’S approval. All such changes shall be
authorized in writing, executed by CONSULTANT and CITY.

2. DURATION OF AGREEMENT.

2.1.  Term. The term of this AGREEMENT shall be for a period of one (1) year beginning from the
date of execution of the AGREEMENT. Time is of the essence in the performance of work under
this AGREEMENT, unless otherwise specified.

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 1 of 12 City Attorney apy ATT ACH M ENT 4



2.2,

2.3.

2.4.

2.5,

Extensions. [X If marked, the CITY shall have the option to extend the AGREEMENT for four
(4) additional one (1) year periods or parts thereof for an amount, funded by pass-through fees
collected from property owners at the time of project application submittal per AGREEMENT
year. Extensions shall be in the sole discretion of the City Manager and shall be based upon
CONSULTANT's satisfactory past performance, CITY needs, and appropriation of funds by the
City Council. The CITY shall give written notice to CONSULTANT prior to exercising the option.

Delay. Any delay occasioned by causes beyond the control of CONSULTANT may merit an
extension of time for the completion of the Scope of Services. When such delay occurs,
CONSULTANT shail immediately notify the Project Coordinator in writing of the cause and the
extent of the delay, whereupon the Project Coordinator shall ascertain the facts and the extent
of the delay and grant an extension of time for the completion of the PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES when justified by the circumstances.

City’s Right to Terminate for Default. Should CONSULTANT be in default of any covenant or
condition hereof, CITY may immediately terminate this AGREEMENT for cause if CONSULTANT
fails to cure the defauit within ten (10) calendar days of receiving written notice of the default.

City’s Right to Terminate without Cause. Without limiting its rights in the event of
CONSULTANT's default, CITY may terminate this AGREEMENT, without cause, by giving
written notice to CONSULTANT. Such termination shall be effective upon receipt of the written
notice. CONSULTANT shall be compensated for all effort and material expended on behalf of
CITY under the terms of this AGREEMENT, up to the effective date of termination. All personal
property remaining in CITY facilities or on CITY property thirty (30) days after the expiration or
termination of this AGREEMENT shall be, at CITY’s election, considered the property of CITY.

3. COMPENSATION.

3.1.

3.2,

3.3.

Total Amount. The total cost for all work described in the Scope of Services and Fee (Exhibit
“A”} shall be for an open ended amount, funded by pass-through fees collected from the property
owners at the time of application submittal. CONSULTANT shall bill the CITY for work provided
and shall present a written request for such payment monthly. .

Additional Services. CITY may, as the need arises or in the event of an emergency, request
additional services of CONSULTANT. Should such additional services be required, CITY and
CONSULTANT shall agree to the cost prior to commencement of these services.

Costs. Any costs billed to the CITY shall be in accordance with any terms negotiated and
incorporated herein as part of Exhibit “A” Scope of Services and Fee.

4. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.

4.1.

CONSULTANT is, for all purposes arising out of this AGREEMENT, an independent contractor.
The CONSULTANT has and shall retain the right to exercise full control and supervision of all
persons assisting the CONSULTANT in the performance of said services hereunder, the CITY
only being concerned with the finished results of the work being performed. Neither
CONSULTANT nor CONSULTANT’s employees shall in any event be entitled to any benefits to
which CITY employees are entitled, including, but not limited to, overtime, retirement benefits,
workers’ compensation benefits, injury leave or other leave benefits. CONSULTANT is solely
responsible for all such matters, as well as compliance with social security and income tax
withholding and all other regulations and laws governing such matters.

5. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE.

While performing the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, CONSULTANT shall exercise the reasonable
professional care and skill customarily exercised by reputable members of CONSULTANT’s profession
practicing in the metropolitan Southern California Area, and will use reasonable diligence and best judgment
while exercising its professional skill and expertise.

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 2 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



6. WARRANTY OF CONSULTANT’S LICENSE.

CONSULTANT warrants that CONSULTANT is properly licensed with the applicable government
agency(ies) for any PROFESSIONAL SERVICES that require a license. If the CONSULTANT lacks such
license, this AGREEMENT is void and of no effect.

7. AUDIT OF RECORDS.

7.1.

7.2

At any time during normal business hours and as often as may be deemed necessary the
CONSULTANT shall make available to a representative of CITY for examination all of its records
with respect to all matters covered by this AGREEMENT and shall permit CITY to audit, examine
and/or reproduce such records. CONSULTANT shall retain such financial and program service
records for at least four (4) years after termination or final payment under this AGREEMENT.

The CONSULTANT shall include the CITY's right under this section in any and all of their
subcontracts, and shall ensure that these sections are binding upon all subcontractors.

8. CONFIDENTIALITY AND SECURITY.

8.1.

8.2,

Confidential Work Product. All professional services performed by CONSULTANT, including
but not limited to all drafts, data, correspondence, proposals, reports, research and estimates
compiled or composed by CONSULTANT, pursuant to this AGREEMENT, are for the sole use
of the CITY, its agents and employees. Neither the documents nor their contents shall be
released to any third party without the prior written consent of the CITY. This provision does not
apply to information that (a) was publicly known, or otherwise known to CONSULTANT, at the
time that it was disclosed to CONSULTANT by the CITY, (b) subsequently becomes publicly
known through no act or omission of CONSULTANT or (c) otherwise becomes known to
CONSULTANT other than through disclosure by the CITY. Except for any subcontractors that
may be allowed upon prior agreement, neither the documents nor their contents shall be released
to any third party without the prior written consent of the CITY. The sole purpose of this section
is to prevent disclosure of CITY’s confidential and proprietary information by CONSULTANT or
subcontractors.

Confidentiality. Both parties recognize that their respective employees and agents, in the
course of performance of this AGREEMENT, may be exposed to confidential information and
that disclosure of such information could violate the rights of private individuals and entities,
including the parties and third parties. Confidential information is nonpublic information that a
reasonable person would believe to be confidential and includes, without limitation, personal
identifying information (e.g., social security numbers) and trade secrets, each as defined by
applicable state law, and all other information protected by applicable law (“Confidential
Information”). The party receiving Confidential Information (“Receiving Party”) of the other
(“Disclosing Party”) shall not, and shall cause its employees and agents who are authorized to
receive Confidential Information, not to, use Confidential Information for any purpose except as
necessary to implement, perform or enforce this AGREEMENT or comply with its legal
obligations. Receiving Party will use the same reasonable efforts to protect the Confidential
Information of Disclosing Parly as it uses to protect its own proprietary information and data. The
Receiving Party will not disclose or release Confidential Information to any third person without
the prior written consent of the Disclosing Party, except for where required by law or for
authorized employees or agents of the Receiving Party. Prior to disclosing the Confidential
Information to its authorized employees or agents, Receiving Party shall inform them of the
confidential nature of the Confidential Information and require them to abide by the terms of this
AGREEMENT. Receiving Party will promptly notify Disclosing Party if Receiving Party discovers
any improper use or disclosure of Confidential Information and will promptly commence all
reasonable efforis to investigate and correct the causes of such improper use or disclosure. If
Receiving Party believes the Confidential Information must be disclosed under applicable law,
Receiving Party may do so provided that, to the extent permitted by law, the other party is given
a reasonable notice and opportunity fo contest such disclosure or obtain a protective order.

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 3 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



Confidential Information does not include information that: (i) is or becomes known to the public
without fault or breach of the Receiving Party; (ii) the Disclosing Party regularly discloses to third
parties without restriction on disclosure; or (iii) the Receiving Party obtains from a third party
without restriction on disclosure and without breach of a non-disclosure obligation. Confidential
Information does not include any information that is required to be provided to the public pursuant
to the laws of the United States and/or California such as the California Public Records Act, due
to the nature of CITY being a local governmental agency. The non-disclosure and non-use
obligations of this AGREEMENT will remain in full force with respect to each item of Confidential
Information for a period of ten (10) years after the Receiving Party’s receipt of that item.

8.3.  Security.
8.3.1.

8.3.2.

8.3.3.

Agreement modified 8/22/2019

Implementation. CONSULTANT shall implement commercially reasonable
administrative, technical and physical safeguards designed to: (i) ensure the security
and confidentiality of data and information provided by the CITY or used in
connection with providing services under this AGREEMENT, including data or
information about third parties (“CITY’S Data”); (ii) protect against any anticipated
threats or hazards to the security or integrity of CITY’S Data; and (iii) protect against
unauthorized access to or use of CITY’S Data. CONSULTANT shall review and test
such safeguards on no less than an annual basis.

Network. If CONSULTANT makes CITY’S Data accessible through the internet or
other networked environment, CONSULTANT shall be solely responsible for all
aspects of Internet use, and shall maintain, in connection with the operation or use
of CITY'S Data, adequate technical and procedural access controls and system
secutity requirements and devices, necessary for data privacy, confidentiality,
integrity, authorization, authentication and non-repudiation and virus detection and
eradication.

Personal Data. [f CONSULTANT processes or otherwise has access to any
personal data or personal information on CITY's behalf when performing
CONSULTANT’s services and obligations under this AGREEMENT, then: (i) CITY
shall be the data controller (where “data controller” means an entity which alone or
jointly with others determines purposes for which and the manner in which any
personal data are, or are to be, processed) and CONSULTANT shall be a data
processor (where “data processor” means an entity which processes the data only
on behalf of the data controller and not for any purposes of its own); {ii) CITY shall
ensure that it has obtained all necessary consents and it is entitled to transfer the
relevant personal data or personal information to CONSULTANT so that
CONSULTANT may lawfully use, process and transfer the personal data and
personal information in accordance with this AGREEMENT on CITY’s behalf in order
for CONSULTANT to provide the services and perform its other obligations under
this AGREEMENT; (iii) CONSULTANT shall process the personal data and personal
information only in accordance with any lawful and reasonable instructions given by
CITY from time to time and in accordance with the terms of this AGREEMENT; and
(iv) each party shall take appropriate technical and organizational measures against
unauthorized or unlawful processing of the personal data and personal information
or its accidental loss, destruction or damage so that, having regard to the state of
technological development and the cost of implementing any measures, the
measures taken ensure a level of security appropriate to the harm that might result
from such unauthorized or unlawful processing or accidental loss, destruction or
damage in relation to the personal data and personal information and the nature of
the personal data and personal information being protected. If necessary, the parties
will cooperate to document these measures taken.

Page 4 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



8.3.4. Information Security. CONSULTANT represents and warrants that its collection,
access, use, storage, disposal and disclosure of Confidential Information accessed
and/or collected from CITY does and will comply with all applicable federal and state
privacy and data protection laws. In the event of any security breach, CONSULTANT
shall: (a) Provide CITY with the name and contact information for an employee who
shall serve as CITY’s primary security contact and shall be available to assist CITY
twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week as a contact in resolving
obligations associated with a security breach; and (b) Notify CITY of a security breach
as soon as practicable, but no later than twenty-four (24) hours after CONSULTANT
becomes aware of it. Immediately following CONSULTANT’s notification to CITY of
a security breach, the parties shall coordinate with each other to investigate the
security breach. CONSULTANT agrees to fully cooperate with CITY in CITY’s
handling of the matter. CONSULTANT shall use best efforts to immediately remedy
any security breach and prevent any further security breach at CONSULTANT’s own
expense in accordance with applicable privacy rights, laws, regulations and
standards. CONSULTANT agrees to provide, at its expense, up to one year of credit
monitoring services to third parties impacted by any data breach involving the loss of
personally identifiable information.

8.4. Indemnity. CONSULTANT shall defend (with counsel acceptable to CITY), indemnify and hold
CITY harmiess from and against all claims, actions, proceedings, losses, costs (including
attorney fees and other charges), liabilities, damages, judgments, settlements, and court
awarded attorney’s fees resuiting from, arising out of or related to a security or data breach
unless the breach is proven to be caused solely by CITY. The terms of this section shall survive
termination of this AGREEMENT. For purposes of this provision, “security breach” means any
act or omission that compromises either the security, confidentiality, or integrity of Confidential
Information or the physical, technical, administrative or organizational safeguards put in place by
CONSULTANT or any authorized persons that relate to the protection of the security,
confidentiality or integrity of Confidential Information or a breach or alleged breach of this
AGREEMENT relating to such privacy practices or privacy obligations imposed by any applicable
law.

8.5. Notice and Remedy of Breaches. Each party shall promptly give notice to the other of any
actual or suspected breach by it of any of the provisions of Section 8 of this AGREEMENT,
whether or not intentional, and the breaching party shall, at its expense, take all steps reasonably
requested by the other party to prevent or remedy the breach.

8.6. Enforcement. Each party acknowledges that any breach of any of the provisions of Section 8
of this AGREEMENT may result in irreparable injury to the other for which money damages would
not adequately compensate. If there is a breach, then the injured party shall be entitled, in
addition to all other rights and remedies which it may have, to have a decree of specific
performance or an injunction issued by any competent court, requiring the breach to be cured or
enjoining all persons involved from continuing the breach.

9. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.

9.1. CONSULTANT shall at all times comply with all federal, state and local conflict of interest laws,
regulations, and policies applicable to public contracts and procurement practices, including but
not limited to California Government Code Section 81000 ef seq. (Political Reform Act) and
Section 1090 et seq. CONSULTANT shall immediately disqualify itself and shall not use its official
position to influence in any way any matter coming before the CITY in which the CONSULTANT
has a financial interest as defined in Government Code Section 87103. CONSULTANT
represents that it has no knowledge of any financial interests which would require it to disqualify
itself from any matter on which it might perform services for the CITY.

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 5 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



10.

11.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

If, in performing the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES set forth in this AGREEMENT, the
CONSULTANT makes, or participates in, a “governmental decision” as described in Title 2,
Section 18700.3(a) of the California Code of Regulations, or performs the same or substantially
all the same duties for the CITY that would otherwise be performed by a CITY employee holding
a position specified in the department's conflict of interest code, the CONSULTANT shall be
subject to a conflict of interest code requiring the completion of one or more statements .of
economic interests disclosing the CONSULTANT’s relevant financial interests.

If checked, the CONSULTANT shall comply with all of the reporting requirements of the
Political Reform Act. Specifically, the CONSULTANT shall file a Fair Political Practices

- Commission Form 700 (Assuming Office Statement) within thirty (30) calendar days of the CITY’s

determination that the CONSULTANT is subject to a conflict of interest code. The CONSULTANT
shall also file a Form 700 (Annual Statement) on or before April 1 of each year of the
AGREEMENT, disclosing any financial interests held during the previous calendar year for which
the CONSULTANT was subiject to a conflict of interest code.

CITY represents that pursuant to California Government Code Section 1090 et seq., none of its
elected officials, officers, or employees has an interest in this AGREEMENT.

DISPOSITION AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.

10.1.

10.2.

All documents, data, studies, drawings, maps, models, photographs and reports prepared by
CONSULTANT under this AGREEMENT, whether paper or electronic, shall become the property
of CITY for use with respect to this PROJECT, and shall be turned over to the CITY upon
completion of the PROJECT or any phase thereof, as contemplated by this AGREEMENT.

Contemporaneously with the transfer of documents, the CONSULTANT hereby assigns to the
CITY and CONSULTANT thereby expressly waives and disclaims, any copyright in, and the right
to reproduce, all written material, drawings, plans, specifications or other work prepared under
this AGREEMENT, except upon the CITY’s prior authorization regarding reproduction, which
authorization shall not be unreasonably withheld. The CONSULTANT shall, upon request of the
CITY, execute any further document(s) necessary to further effectuate this waiver and
disclaimer.

INSURANCE

11.1.

11.2.

11.3.

CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain for the duration of the AGREEMENT insurance
against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in
connection with the performance of the work hereunder and the results of that work by the
CONSULTANT, their agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors. Insurance shall be
placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than “A” and “ViI” unless
otherwise approved in writing by the CITY’s Risk Manager.

CONSULTANT’s liabilities, including but not limited to CONSULTANT’s indemnity obligations,
under this AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed limited in any way to the insurance coverage
required herein. All policies of insurance required hereunder must provide that the CITY is
entitled to thirty (30) days prior written notice of canceliation or non-renewal of the policy or
policies, or ten (10) days prior written notice for cancellation due to non-payment of premium.
Maintenance of specified insurance coverage is a material element of this AGREEMENT.

Types and Amounts Required. CONSULTANT shall maintain, at minimum, the following
insurance coverage for the duration of this AGREEMENT:

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 6 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



11.3.1.

11.3.2.

11.3.3.

11.3.4.

11.3.5.

XICommercial General Liability (CGL). If checked the CONSULTANT shall
maintain CGL Insurance written on an ISO Occurrence form or equivalent providing
coverage at least as broad which shall cover liability arising from any and all personal
injury or property damage in the amount of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence and subject
to an annual aggregate of $2,000,000.00. There shall be no endorsement or
modification of the CGL limiting the scope of coverage for either insured vs. insured
claims or contractual liability. All defense costs shall be outside the limits of the policy.

XICommercial Automobile Liability. If checked the CONSULTANT shall maintain
Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance for all of the CONSULTANT's
automobiles including owned, hired and non-owned automobiles, automobile
insurance written on an ISO form CA 00 01 12 90 or a later version of this form or an
equivalent form providing coverage at least as broad for bodily injury and property
damage for a combined single limit of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence. Insurance
certificate shall reflect coverage for any automobile (any auto).

MXWorkers' Compensation. If checked the CONSULTANT shall maintain Worker's
Compensation insurance for all of the CONSULTANT's employees who are subject
to this AGREEMENT and to the extent required by applicable state or federal law, a
Workers' Compensation policy providing at minimum $1,000,000.00 employers'
liability coverage. The CONSULTANT shall provide an endorsement that the insurer
waives the right of subrogation against the CITY and its respective elected officials,
officers, employees, agents and representatives.

XProfessional Liability. If checked the CONSULTANT shall also maintain
Professional Liability (errors and omissions) coverage with a limit of $1,000,000 per
claim and $2,000,000 annual aggregate. The CONSULTANT shall ensure both that
(1) the policy retroactive date is on or before the date of commencement of the Scope
of Services; and (2) the policy will be maintained in force for a period of three years
after substantial completion of the Scope of Services or termination of this
AGREEMENT whichever occurs last. The CONSULTANT agrees that for the time
period defined above, there will be no changes or endorsements to the policy that
increase the CITY's exposure to loss. All defense costs shall be outside the limits of
the policy.

[ICyber Liability. If checked the CONSULTANT shall also maintain Cyber Liability
coverage on an occurrence basis with a limit of $2,000,000 per occurrence or claim
and $2,000,000 annual aggregate. Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond
to the duties and obligations as are undertaken by CONSULTANT in this
AGREEMENT and shall include claims involving infringement of intellectual property,
infringement of copyright, trademark, trade dress, invasion of privacy violations,
information theft, damage to or destruction of electronic information, release of
private information, alteration of electronic information, extortion and network
security. The policy shall provide coverage for breach response costs as well as
regulatory fines and penalties as well as credit monitoring expenses with limits
sufficient to respond to such obligations. All defense costs shall be outside the limits
of the policy.

11.4. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions are the
responsibility of the CONSULTANT and must be declared to and approved by the CITY. At the
option of the CITY, either (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured
retentions as respects the CITY, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers, or (2) the
CONSULTANT shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to the CITY guaranteeing
payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses.

11.5. Additional Required Provisions. The commercial general liability and automobile liability
policies shall contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

Agreement modified 8/22/2019

Page 7 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



- 11.5.1. The CITY, its officers, officials, employees, and representatives shall be named as
additional insureds. The CITY's additional insured status must be reflected on
additional insured endorsement form (20 10 1185 or 20 10 1001 and 20 37 1001)
which shall be submitted to the CITY.

11.5.2. The policies are primary and non-contributory to any insurance that may be carried
by the CITY, as reflected in an endorsement which shall be submitted to the CITY.

11.6. Verification of Coverage. CONSULTANT shall furnish the CITY with original certificates and
amendatory endorsements effecting coverage required by this Section 11. The endorsement
should be on forms provided by the CITY or on other than the CITY’s forms provided those
endorsements conform to CITY requirements. All certificates and endorsements are to be
received and approved by the CITY before work commences. The CITY reserves the right to
require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements
affecting the coverage required by these specifications at any time. ;

12. INDEMNIFICATION.

CONSULTANT agrees to indemnify, defend (with counsel acceptable to CITY), and hold harmless the CITY,
and its officers, officials, agents and employees from any and all claims, demands, costs or liabilities that
arise out of, or pertain to, or relate o the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of CONSULTANT,
its employees, agents, and subcontractors in the performance of or failure to perform services or obligations
under this AGREEMENT. CONSULTANT’s duty to indemnify under this section shall not include liability for
damages for death or bodily injury to persons, injury to property, or other loss, damage or expense arising
from the sole negligence or willful misconduct by the CITY or its elected officials, officers, agents, and
employees. CONSULTANT's indemnification obligations shall not be limited by the insurance provisions of
this AGREEMENT. The PARTIES expressly agree that any payment, attorney's fees, costs or expense CITY
incurs or makes to or on behalf of an injured employee under the CITY's self-administered workers'
compensation is included as a loss, expense, or cost for the purposes of this section, and that this section
will survive the expiration or early termination of this AGREEMENT.

13. SUBCONTRACTORS.

13.1. The CONSULTANT’s hiring or retaining of third parties (i.e. subcontractors) to perform services
related to the PROJECT is subject o prior approval by the CITY.

13.2. All contracts entered into between the CONSULTANT and its subcontractor shall also provide
that each subcontractor shall obtain insurance policies which shall be kept in full force and effect
during any and all work on this PROJECT and for the duration of this AGREEMENT. The
CONSULTANT shall require the subcontractor to obtain, all policies described in Section 11 in
the amounts required by the CITY, which shall not be greater than the amounts required of the
CONSULTANT.

13.3. In any dispute between the CONSULTANT and its subcontractor, the CITY shall not be made a
party to any judicial or administrative proceeding to resolve the dispute. The CONSULTANT
agrees to defend and indemnify the CITY as described in Section 12 of this AGREEMENT should
the CITY be made a party to any judicial or administrative proceeding to resolve any such
dispute.

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 8 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



14. NON-DISCRIMINATION.

CONSULTANT shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex,
race, color, age, religion, ancestry, national origin, military or veteran status, disability, medical condition,
genetic information, gender expression, marital status, or sexual orientation. CONSULTANT shall take
affirmative action to insure that applicants are employed and that employees are treated during employment
without regard to their sex, race, color, age, religion, ancestry, national origin, military or veteran status,
disability, medical condition, genetic information, gender expression, marital status, or sexual orientation and
shall make reasonable accommodation to qualified individuals with disabilities or medical conditions. Such
action shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer,
recruitment, or recruitment advertising, fayoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation,
and selection for training, including apprenticeship. CONSULTANT agrees to post in conspicuous places
available to employees and applicants for employment any notices provided by CITY setting forth the
provisions of this non-discrimination clause.

15. NOTICES.

All communications to either party by the other party shall be delivered to the persons listed below. Any such
written communications by mail shall be conclusively deemed to have been received by the addressee five
(5) calendar days after the deposit thereof in the United States mail, postage prepaid and properly addressed
as noted below.

Joseph Lim, Community Development Director Pamela Elliott
City of Sc?lana Beach Landscape Architect
635 S. Highway 101 637 Arden Drive
Solana Beach, CA 92075 Encinitas, CA 92024

16. ASSIGNABILITY.

This AGREEMENT and any portion thereof shall not be assigned or transferred, nor shall any of the
CONSULTANT’s duties be delegated or sub-contracted, without the express written consent of the CITY.

17. RESPONSIBILITY FOR EQUIPMENT.

CITY shall not be responsible nor held liable for any damage to persons or property consequent upon the
use, misuse, or failure of any equipment used by CONSULTANT or any of CONSULTANT’s employees or
subcontractors, even if such equipment has been furnished, rented, or loaned to CONSULTANT by CITY.
The acceptance or use of any such equipment by CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT's employees, or
subcontractors shall be construed to mean that CONSULTANT accepts full responsibility for and agrees to
exonerate, indemnify and hold harmless CITY from and against any and all claims for any damage
whatsoever resuiting from the use, misuse, or failure of such equipment.

18. CALIFORNIA LAW; VENUE.

This AGREEMENT shall be construed and interpreted according to the laws of the State of California. Any
action brought to enforce or interpret any portion of this AGREEMENT shall be brought in the county of San
Diego, California. CONSULTANT hereby waives any and all rights it might have pursuant to California Code
of Civil Procedure Section 394.

19. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.

The Consultant shall comply with all laws, ordinances, regulations, and policies of the federal, state, and
local governments applicable to this AGREEMENT whether now in force or subsequently enacted. This
includes maintaining a City of Solana Beach Business Cettificate.

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 9 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



20. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

This AGREEMENT sets forth the entire understanding of the PARTIES with respect to the subject matters
herein. There are no other understandings, terms or other agreements expressed or implied, oral or written,
except as set forth herein. No change, alteration, or modification of the terms or conditions of this
AGREEMENT, and no verbal understanding of the PARTIES, their officers, agents, or employees shall be
valid unless agreed to in writing by both PARTIES.

21. NO WAIVER.

No failure of either the City or the Consultant to insist upon the strict performance by the other of any
covenant, term or condition of this AGREEMENT, nor any failure to exercise any right or remedy consequent
upon a breach of any covenant, term, or condition of this AGREEMENT shall constitute a waiver of any such
breach of such covenant, term or condition.

22. SEVERABILITY.

The unenforceability, invalidity, or illegality of any provision of this AGREEMENT shall not render any other
provision unenforceable, invalid, or illegal.

23. DRAFTING AMBIGUITIES.

The PARTIES agree that they are aware that they have the right to be advised by counsel with respect to
the negotiations, terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT, and the decision of whether or not to seek
advice of counsel with respect to this AGREEMENT is a decision which is the sole responsibility of each
Party. This AGREEMENT shall not be construed in favor of or against either Party by reason of the extent
to which each Party participated in the drafting of the AGREEMENT.

24. CONFLICTS BETWEEN TERMS.

If an apparent conflict or inconsistency exists between the main body of this AGREEMENT and the Exhibits,
the main body of this AGREEMENT shall control. If a conflict exists between an applicable federal, state, or
local law, rule, regulation, order, or code and this AGREEMENT, the law, rule, regulation, order, or code
shall control. Varying degrees of stringency among the main body of this AGREEMENT, the Exhibits, and
laws, rules, regulations, orders, or codes are not deemed conflicts, and the most stringent requirement shall
control. Each Party shall notify the other immediately upon the identification of any apparent conflict or
inconsistency concerning this AGREEMENT.

25. EXHIBITS INCORPORATED.
All Exhibits referenced in this AGREEMENT are incorporated into the AGREEMENT by this reference.

26. SIGNING AUTHORITY.

26.1. The representative for each Party signing on behalf of a corporation, partnership, joint venture,
association, or governmental entity hereby declares that authority has been obtained to sign on
behalf of the corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, or entity and agrees to hold the
other Party or PARTIES hereto harmless if it is later determined that such authority does not
exist.

26.2. [X|If checked, a proper notary acknowledgement of execution by CONSULTANT must be
attached.

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 10 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES hereto have executed this AGREEMENT the day and year
first hereinabove written.

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, a municipal CONSULTANT, a Sole Propretor
corporation
By: By:

City Manager, Gregory Wade Signature

Pamela Elliott, Landscape Architect

ATTEST:

City Clerk. Angela lvey

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

Joseph Lim, Community Development Director

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

City Attorney, Johanna N. Canlas

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 11 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



EXHIBIT “A”
SCOPE OF SERVICES AND FEE

Click or tap here 1o enter texi,

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 12 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



PASS-THROUGH FEE SCHEDULE

Exhibit “A”

Conceptual Review Landscape Area Estimated Hours Fee
1% Review (A) 8,000 SF or less 3 $ 450
(B) 8,001 SF - 20,000 SF 4 $ 600
(C) 20,001 SF - 40,000 SF 5 S 750
(D) 40,001 SF - 100,000 SF 6 S 900
{(E) 100,001 SF - 200,000 SF 7 $ 1,050
(F) 200,001 SF - 400,000 SF 8 $1,200
(G) 400,001 SF or more 9 $1,350
2" Review (A) 8,000 SF or less 2 $ 300
(B) 8,001 SF - 20,000 SF 2 $300
{C) 20,001 SF - 40,000 SF 3 S 450
(D) 40,001 SF - 100,000 SF 3 S 450
{(E) 100,001 SF - 200,000 SF 4 $ 600
(F) 200,001 SF - 400,000 SF 4 $ 600
(G) 400,001 SF or more 4 $ 600
3" Review (A) 8,000 SF or less 2 $ 300
or more {B) 8,001 SF - 20,000 SF 2 S 300
(C) 20,001 SF - 40,000 SF 2 $ 300
(D) 40,001 SF - 100,000 SF 3 $ 450
-(E) 100,001 SF - 200,000 SF 3 $ 450
(F) 200,001 SF - 400,000 SF 3 $ 450
(G) 400,001 SF or more 3 S 450

Construction Drawings

Landscape Area

Estimated Hours

Estimated Cost

1%t Review (A) 8,000 SF or less 3 S 450
(B) 8,001 SF - 20,000 SF 4 S 600
{(C) 20,001 SF - 40,000 SF 5 S 750
(D) 40,001 SF - 100,000 SF 6 $ 900
(E) 100,001 SF - 200,000 SF 7 $ 1,050
(F) 200,001 SF - 400,000 SF 8 $ 1,200
(G) 400,001 SF or more 9 $1,350
2" Review (A) 8,000 SF or less 2 S 300
(B) 8,001 SF - 20,000 SF 3 S 450
{C) 20,001 SF - 40,000 SF 4 S 600
{D) 40,001 SF - 100,000 SF 5 $ 750
{(E) 100,001 SF - 200,000 SF 6 $ 900
(F) 200,001 SF - 400,000 SF 7 $ 1,050
(G) 400,001 SF or more 9 S 1,350
3" Review (A) 8,000 SF or less 2 $ 300
or more (B) 8,001 SF - 20,000 SF 3 S 450
(C) 20,001 SF - 40,000 SF 4 S 600
(D) 40,001 SF - 100,000 SF 5 $ 750
{(E) 100,001 SF - 200,000 SF 5 $ 750
{F) 200,001 SF - 400,000 SF 6 $ 900
( 6 $ 900

G) 400,001 SF or more




Estimated Hours

Inspections Estimated Cost
1%t Inspection (A) 8,000 SF or less 2 $300
(B) 8,001 SF - 20,000 SF 3 $ 450
(C) 20,001 SF - 40,000 SF 3 S 450
(D) 40,001 SF - 100,000 SF 3 $ 450
(E) 100,001 SF - 200,000 SF 4 S 600
(F) 200,001 SF - 400,000 SF 4 $ 600
(G) 400,001 SF or more 5 $ 750
2" Inspection (A) 8,000 SF or less 2 $ 300
(B) 8,001 SF - 20,000 SF 2 S 300
{(C) 20,001 SF - 40,000 SF 3 S 450
(D) 40,001 SF - 100,000 SF 3 S 450
(E) 100,001 SF - 200,000 SF 3 $ 450
(F) 200,001 SF - 400,000 SF 3 $ 450
(G) 400,001 SF or more 3 S 450
3" Inspection (A) 8,000 SF or less 2 S 300
or more (B) 8,001 SF - 20,000 SF 2 $ 300
(C) 20,001 SF - 40,000 SF 2 $ 300
(D) 40,001 SF - 100,000 SF 3 S 450
(E) 100,001 SF - 200,000 SF 3 S 450
{F) 200,001 SF - 400,000 SF 3 S 450
(G) 400,001 SF or more 3 $ 450

Meetings with Applicant: $ 150/hour

*Note: Hourly rate for City Projects $125/hour




City of Solana Beach

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

FOR Third Party Geotechnial Engineering

~ THIS Professional Services Agreement (“AGREEMENT”) is made and entered into this 1st day of
July, 2019 by and between the CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, a municipal corporation (“CITY”), and,
GeoPacifica Inc. a California Corporation, (‘CONSULTANT”) (collectively “PARTIES”).

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to employ a CONSULTANT to furnish professional coastal -
geotechnical engineering services as needed (“PROFESSIONAL SERVICES”) for various City coastal
and inland bluff-top proejcts (“PROJECT”); and

WHEREAS, the CITY has determined that CONSULTANT is qualified by experience and ability
to perform the services desired by CITY, and CONSULTANT is willing to perform such services; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT will conduct all the work as described and detailed in this
AGREEMENT to be provided to the CITY.

NOW, THEREFORE, the PARTIES hereto mutually covenant and agree with each other as
follows:

1. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.

1.1.  Scope of Services. The CONSULTANT shall perform the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES as set
forth in the written Scope of Services, attached as Exhibit “A” Scope of Services and Fee, at the
direction of the CITY. CITY shall provide CONSULTANT access to appropriate staff and
resources for the coordination and completion of the projects under this AGREEMENT. For all
work to be performed on site at City Hall, CITY and CONSULTANT agree that the Scope of
Services begins when CONSULTANT arrives at City Hall and terminates when CONSULTANT
leaves City Hall. Travel time to and from City Hall shall not be considered time on the job or
compensated by the CITY.

1.2

1.3.  Project Coordinator. The Community Development Director is hereby designated as the
Project Coordinator for CITY and will monitor the progress and execution of this AGREEMENT.
CONSULTANT shall assign a single Project Director to provide supervision and have overall
responsibility for the progress and execution of this AGREEMENT for CONSULTANT. James
Knowlton is hereby designated as the Project Director for CONSULTANT.

1.4. City Modification of Scope of Services. CITY may order changes to the Scope of Services
within the general scope of this AGREEMENT consisting of additions, deletions, or other
revisions. If such changes cause a change in the CONSULTANT's cost of, or time required for,
completion of the Scope of Services, an equitable adjustment to CONSULTANT’s compensation
and/or contract time shall be made, subject to the CITY'S approval. All such changes shall be
authorized in writing, executed by CONSULTANT and CITY.

2. DURATION OF AGREEMENT.

2.1. Term. The term of this AGREEMENT shall be for a period of one (1) year beginning from the
date of execution of the AGREEMENT. Time is of the essence in the performance of work under
this AGREEMENT, unless otherwise specified.

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 1 of 12 ~ City Attorney aj ATTACHMENT 5



2.2,

2.3.

2.4.

2.5.

Extensions. [X If marked, the CITY shall have the option to extend the AGREEMENT for four
(4) additional one (1) year periods or parts thereof for an amount not to exceed ten thousdand
dollars and ($10,000.00) per AGREEMENT year. Extensions shall be in the sole discretion of
the City Manager and shall be based upon CONSULTANT’s satisfactory past performance, CITY
needs, and appropriation of funds by the City Council. The CITY shall give written notice to
CONSULTANT prior to exercising the option.

Delay. Any delay occasioned by causes beyond the control of CONSULTANT may merit an
extension of time for the completion of the Scope of Services. When such delay occurs,
CONSULTANT shall immediately notify the Project Coordinator in writing of the cause and the
extent of the delay, whereupon the Project Coordinator shall ascertain the facts and the extent
of the delay and grant an extension of time for the completion of the PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES when justified by the circumstances.

City’s Right to Terminate for Default. Should CONSULTANT be in default of any covenant or
condition hereof, CITY may immediately terminate this AGREEMENT for cause if CONSULTANT
fails to cure the default within ten (10) calendar days of receiving written notice of the default.

City’s Right to Terminate without Cause. Without limiting its rights in the event of
CONSULTANT’s default, CITY may terminate this AGREEMENT, without cause, by giving
written notice to CONSULTANT. Such termination shall be effective upon receipt of the written
notice. CONSULTANT shall be compensated for all effort and material expended on behalf of
CITY under the terms of this AGREEMENT, up to the effective date of termination. All personal
property remaining in CITY facilities or on CITY property thirty (30) days after the expiration or
termination of this AGREEMENT shall be, at CITY’s election, considered the property of CITY.

3. COMPENSATION.

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

Total Amount. The total cost for all work described in the Scope of Services and Fee (Exhibit
“A”) shall not exceed ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) without prior written authorization from
CITY. CONSULTANT shall bill the CITY for work provided and shall present a written request for
such payment monthly.

Additional Services. CITY may, as the need arises or in the event of an emergency, request
additional services of CONSULTANT. Should such additional services be required, CITY and
CONSULTANT shall agree to the cost prior to commencement of these services.

Costs. Any costs billed to the CITY shall be in accordance with any terms negotiated and
incorporated herein as part of Exhibit “A” Scope of Services and Fee.

4. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.

4.1.

CONSULTANT is, for all purposes arising out of this AGREEMENT, an independent contractor.
The CONSULTANT has and shall retain the right to exercise full control and supervision of all
persons assisting the CONSULTANT in the performance of said services hereunder, the CITY.
only being concerned with the finished results of the work being performed. Neither
CONSULTANT nor CONSULTANT’s employees shall in any event be entitled to any benefits to
which CITY employees are entitled, including, but not limited to, overtime, retirement benefits,
workers’ compensation benefits, injury leave or other leave benefits. CONSULTANT is solely
responsible for all such matters, as well as compliance with social security and income tax
withholding and all other regulations and laws governing such matters.

5. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE.

While performing the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, CONSULTANT shall exercise the reasonable
professional care and skill customarily exercised by reputable members of CONSULTANT’s profession
practicing in the metropolitan Southern California Area, and will use reasonable dmgence and best judgment
while exercising its professional skill and expertise.

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 2 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



6. WARRANTY OF CONSULTANT’S LICENSE.

CONSULTANT warrants that CONSULTANT is properly licensed with the applicable government
agency(ies) for any PROFESSIONAL SERVICES that require a license. If the CONSULTANT lacks such
license, this AGREEMENT is void and of no effect.

7. AUDIT OF RECORDS.

7.1,

7.2,

At any time during normal business hours and as often as may be deemed necessary the
CONSULTANT shall make available to a representative of CITY for examination all of its records
with respect to all matters covered by this AGREEMENT and shall permit CITY to audit, examine
and/or reproduce such records. CONSULTANT shall retain such financial and program service
records for at least four (4) years after termination or final payment under this AGREEMENT.

The CONSULTANT shall include the CITY's right under this section in any and all of their
subcontracts, and shall ensure that these sections are binding upon all subcontractors.

8. CONFIDENTIALITY AND SECURITY.

8.1.

8.2.

Confidential Work Product. All professional services performed by CONSULTANT, including
but not limited to all drafts, data, correspondence, proposals, reports, research and estimates
compiled or composed by CONSULTANT, pursuant to this AGREEMENT, are for the sole use
of the CITY, its agents and employees. Neither the documents nor their contents shall be
released to any third party without the prior written consent of the CITY. This provision does not
apply to information that (a) was publicly known, or otherwise known to CONSULTANT, at the
time that it was disclosed to CONSULTANT by the CITY, (b) subsequently becomes publicly
known through no act or omission of CONSULTANT or (c) otherwise becomes known to
CONSULTANT other than through disclosure by the CITY. Except for any subcontractors that
may be allowed upon prior agreement, neither the documents nor their contents shall be released
to any third party without the prior written consent of the CITY. The sole purpose of this section
is to prevent disclosure of CITY’s confidential and proprietary information by CONSULTANT or
subcontractors.

Confidentiality. Both parties recognize that their respective employees and agents, in the
course of performance of this AGREEMENT, may be exposed to confidential information and
that disclosure of such information could violate the rights of private individuals and entities,
including the parties and third parties. Confidential information is nonpublic information that a
reasonable person would believe to be confidential and includes, without limitation, personal
identifying information (e.g., social security numbers) and trade secrets, each as defined by
applicable state law, and all other information protected by applicable law (“Confidential
Information”). The party receiving Confidential Information (“Receiving Party”) of the other
(“Disclosing Party”) shall not, and shall cause its employees and agents who are authorized to
receive Confidential Information, not to, use Confidential Information for any purpose except as
necessary to implement, perform or enforce this AGREEMENT or comply with its legal
obligations. Receiving Party will use the same reasonable efforts to protect the Confidential
Information of Disclosing Party as it uses to protect its own proprietary information and data. The
Receiving Party will not disclose or release Confidential Information to any third person without
the prior written consent of the Disclosing Party, except for where required by law or for
authorized employees or agents of the Receiving Party. Prior to disclosing the Confidential
Information to its authorized employees or agents, Receiving Party shall inform them of the
confidential nature of the Confidential Information and require them to abide by the terms of this
AGREEMENT. Receiving Party will promptly notify Disclosing Party if Receiving Party discovers
any improper use or disclosure of Confidential Information and will promptly commence all
reasonable efforts to investigate and correct the causes of such improper use or disclosure. If
Receiving Party believes the Confidential Information must be disclosed under applicable law,
Receiving Party may do so provided that, to the extent permitied by law, the other party is given
a reasonable notice and opportunity to contest such disclosure or obtain a protective order.

Agreement modified 8/22/2018 Page 3 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



Confidential Information does not include information that: (i) is or becomes known to the public
without fault or breach of the Receiving Party; (ii) the Disclosing Party regularly discloses to third
parties without restriction on disclosure; or (iii) the Receiving Party obtains from a third party
without restriction on disclosure and without breach of a non-disclosure obligation. Confidential
Information does not include any information that is required to be provided to the public pursuant
to the laws of the United States and/or California such as the California Public Records Act, due
to the nature of CITY being a local governmental agency. The non-disclosure and non-use
obligations of this AGREEMENT will remain in full force with respect to each item of Confidential
Information for a period of ten (10) years after the Receiving Party’s receipt of that item.

8.3.  Security.
8.3.1.

8.3.2.

8.3.3.

Agreement modified 8/22/2019

Implementation. CONSULTANT shall implement commercially reasonable
administrative, technical and physical safeguards designed to: (i) ensure the security
and confidentiality of data and information provided by the CITY or used in
connection with providing services under this AGREEMENT, including data or
information about third parties (“CITY’S Data”); (ii} protect against any anticipated
threats or hazards to the security or integrity of CITY’S Data; and (iii) protect against
unauthorized access to or use of CITY’S Data. CONSULTANT shall review and test
such safeguards on no less than an annual basis.

Network. If CONSULTANT makes CITY’S Data accessibie through the Internet or
other networked environment, CONSULTANT shall be solely responsible for all
aspects of Internet use, and shall maintain, in connection with the operation or use
of CITY’S Data, adequate technical and procedural access controls and system
security requirements and devices, necessary for data privacy, confidentiality,
integrity, authorization, authentication and non-repudiation and virus detection and
eradication.

Personal Data. [f CONSULTANT processes or otherwise has access to any
personal data or personal information on CITY’s behalf when performing
CONSULTANT's services and obligations under this AGREEMENT, then: (i) CITY
shall be the data controller (where “data controller” means an entity which alone or
jointly with others determines purposes for which and the manner in which any
personal data are, or are to be, processed) and CONSULTANT shall be a data
processor (where “data processor’ means an entity which processes the data only
on behalf of the data controller and not for any purposes of its own); (i) CITY shall
ensure that it has obtained all necessary consents and it is entitled to transfer the
relevant personal data or personal information to CONSULTANT so that
CONSULTANT may lawfully use, process and transfer the personal data and
personal information in accordance with this AGREEMENT on CITY’s behaif in order
for CONSULTANT to provide the services and perform its other obligations under
this AGREEMENT; (iii) CONSULTANT shall process the personal data and personal
information only in accordance with any lawful and reasonable instructions given by
CITY from time to time and in accordance with the terms of this AGREEMENT; and
(iv) each party shall take appropriate technical and organizational measures against
unauthorized or unlawful processing of the personal data and personal information
or its accidental loss, destruction or damage so that, having regard to the state of
technological development and the cost of implementing any measures, the
measures taken ensure a level of security appropriate to the harm that might result
from such unauthorized or unlawful processing or accidental loss, destruction or
damage in relation to the personal data and personal information and the nature of
the personal data and personal information being protected. If necessary, the parties
will cooperate to document these measures taken.

Page 4 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



8.3.4. Information Security. CONSULTANT represents and warrants that its collection,
access, use, storage, disposal and disclosure of Confidential Information accessed
and/or collected from CITY does and will comply with all applicable federal and state
privacy and data protection laws. In the event of any security breach, CONSULTANT
shall: (a) Provide CITY with the name and contact information for an employee who
shall serve as CITY’s primary security contact and shall be available to assist CITY
twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week as a contact in resolving
obligations associated with a security breach; and (b) Notify CITY of a security breach
as soon as practicable, but no later than twenty-four (24) hours after CONSULTANT
becomes aware of it. Immediately following CONSULTANT's notification to CITY of
a security breach, the parties shall coordinate with each other to investigate the
security breach. CONSULTANT agrees to fully cooperate with CITY in CITY’s
handling of the matter. CONSULTANT shall use best efforts to immediately remedy
any security breach and prevent any further security breach at CONSULTANT’s own
expense in accordance with applicable privacy rights, laws, regulations and
standards. CONSULTANT agrees to provide, at its expense, up to one year of credit
monitoring services to third parties impacted by any data breach involving the loss of
personally identifiable information.

8.4. Indemnity. CONSULTANT shall defend (with counsel acceptable to CITY), indemnify and hold
CITY harmless from and against all claims, actions, proceedings, losses, costs (including
attorney fees and other charges), liabilities, damages, judgments, settlements, and court
awarded attorney’s fees resulting from, arising out of or related to a security or data breach
unless the breach is proven to be caused solely by CITY. The terms of this section shall survive
termination of this AGREEMENT. For purposes of this provision, “security breach” means any
act or omission that compromises either the security, confidentiality, or integrity of Confidential
Information or the physical, technical, administrative or organizational safeguards put in place by
CONSULTANT or any authorized persons that relate to the protection of the security,
confidentiality or integrity of Confidential Information or a breach or alleged breach of this
AGREEMENT relating to such privacy practices or privacy obligations imposed by any applicable
law.

8.5. Notice and Remedy of Breaches. Each party shall promptly give notice to the other of any
actual or suspected breach by it of any of the provisions of Section 8 of this AGREEMENT,
whether or not intentional, and the breaching party shall, at its expense, take all steps reasonably
requested by the other party to prevent or remedy the breach.

8.6. Enforcement. Each party acknowledges that any breach of any of the provisions of Section 8
of this AGREEMENT may result in irreparable injury to the other for which money damages woulid
not adequately compensate. If there is a breach, then the injured party shall be entitled, in
addition to all other rights and remedies which it may have, to have a decree of specific
performance or an injunction issued by any competent court, requiring the breach to be cured or
enjoining all persons involved from continuing the breach.

9. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.

9.1. CONSULTANT shall at all times comply with all federal, state and local conflict of interest laws,
regulations, and policies applicable to public contracts and procurement practices, including but
not limited to California Government Code Section 81000 et seq. (Political Reform Act) and
Section 1090 et seq. CONSULTANT shall immediately disqualify itself and shall not use its official
position to influence in any way any matter coming before the CITY in which the CONSULTANT
has a financial interest as defined in Government Code Section 87103. CONSULTANT
represents that it has no knowledge of any financial interests which would require I’( to disqualify
itself from any matter on which it might perform services for the CITY.

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 ’ B Page 5 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



10.

11.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

If, in performing the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES set forth in this AGREEMENT, the
CONSULTANT makes, or participates in, a “govemnmental decision” as described in Title 2,
Section 18700.3(a) of the California Code of Regulations, or performs the same or substantially
all the same duties for the CITY that would otherwise be performed by a CITY employee holding
a position specified in the department’s conflict of interest code, the CONSULTANT shall be
subject to a conflict of interest code requiring the completion of one or more statements of
economic interests disclosing the CONSULTANT's relevant financial interests.

X If checked, the CONSULTANT shall comply with all of the reporting requirements of the
Political Reform Act. Specifically, the CONSULTANT shall file a Fair Political Practices
Commission Form 700 (Assuming Office Statement) within thirty (30) calendar days of the CITY’s
determination that the CONSULTANT is subject to a conflict of interest code. The CONSULTANT
shall also file a Form 700 (Annual Statement) on or before Aprii 1 of each year of the
AGREEMENT, disclosing any financial interests held during the previous calendar year for which
the CONSULTANT was subject to a conflict of interest code.

CITY represents that pursuant to California Government Code Section 1090 et seq., none of its
elected officials, officers, or employees has an interest in this AGREEMENT.

DISPOSITION AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.

10.1.

10.2.

All documents, data, studies, drawings, maps, models, photographs and reports prepared by
CONSULTANT under this AGREEMENT, whether paper or electronic, shall become the property
of CITY for use with respect to this PROJECT, and shall be turned over to the CITY upon
completion of the PROJECT or any phase thereof, as contemplated by this AGREEMENT.

Contemporaneously with the transfer of documents, the CONSULTANT hereby assigns to the
CITY and CONSULTANT thereby expressly waives and disclaims, any copyright in, and the right
to reproduce, all written material, drawings, plans, specifications or other work prepared under
this AGREEMENT, except upon the CITY’s prior authorization regarding reproduction, which
authorization shall not be unreasonably withheld. The CONSULTANT shall, upon request of the
CITY, execute any further document(s) necessary to further effectuate this waiver and
disclaimer.

INSURANCE

1.1,

11.2.

11.3.

CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain for the duration of the AGREEMENT insurance
against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in
connection with the performance of the work hereunder and the results of that work by the
CONSULTANT, their agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors. Insurance shall be
placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than “A” and “VII” unless
otherwise approved in writing by the CITY’s Risk Manager.

CONSULTANT's liabilities, including but not limited to CONSULTANT’s indemnity obligations,
under this AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed limited in any way to the insurance coverage
required herein. All policies of insurance required hereunder must provide that the CITY is
entitled to thity (30) days prior written notice of cancellation or non-renewal of the policy or
policies, or ten (10) days prior written notice for cancellation due to non-payment of premium.
Maintenance of specified insurance coverage is a material element of this AGREEMENT.

Types and Amounts Required. CONSULTANT shall maintain, at minimum, the following
insurance coverage for the duration of this AGREEMENT:

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 6 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



11.3.1.

11.3.2.

11.3.3.

11.34.

11.3.5.

XICommercial General Liability (CGL). If checked the CONSULTANT shall
maintain CGL Insurance written on an 1ISO Occurrence form or equivalent providing
coverage at least as broad which shall cover liability arising from any and all personal
injury or property damage in the amount of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence and subject
to an annual aggregate of $2,000,000.00. There shall be no endorsement or
modification of the CGL limiting the scope of coverage for either insured vs. insured
claims or contractual liability. All defense costs shall be outside the limits of the policy.

XCommercial Automobile Liability. If checked the CONSULTANT shall maintain
Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance for all of the CONSULTANT's
automobiles including owned, hired and non-owned automobiles, automobile
insurance written on an ISO form CA 00 01 12 90 or a later version of this form or an
equivalent form providing coverage at least as broad for bodily injury and property
damage for a combined single limit of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence. Insurance
certificate shall reflect coverage for any automobile (any auto).

XlWorkers' Compensation. If checked the CONSULTANT shall maintain Worker’s
Compensation insurance for all of the CONSULTANT's employees who are subject
to this AGREEMENT and to the extent required by applicable state or federal law, a
Workers' Compensation policy providing at minimum $1,000,000.00 employers'
liability coverage. The CONSULTANT shall provide an endorsement that the insurer
waives the right of subrogation against the CITY and its respective elected officials,
officers, employees, agents and representatives.

DdProfessional Liability. If checked the CONSULTANT shall also maintain
Professional Liability (errors and omissions) coverage with a limit of $1,000,000 per
claim and $2,000,000 annual aggregate. The CONSULTANT shall ensure both that
(1) the policy retroactive date is on or before the date of commencement of the Scope
of Services; and (2) the policy will be maintained in force for a period of three years
after substantial completion of the Scope of Services or termination of this
AGREEMENT whichever occurs last. The CONSULTANT agrees that for the time
period defined above, there will be no changes or endorsements to the policy that
increase the CITY's exposure to loss. All defense costs shall be outside the limits of
the policy.

[_ICyber Liability. If checked the CONSULTANT shall also maintain Cyber Liability
coverage on an occurrence basis with a limit of $2,000,000 per occurrence or claim
and $2,000,000 annual aggregate. Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond
to the duties and obligations as are undertaken by CONSULTANT in this
AGREEMENT and shall include claims involving infringement of intellectual property,
infringement of copyright, trademark, trade dress, invasion of privacy violations,
information theft, damage to or destruction of electronic information, release of
private information, alteration of electronic information, extortion and network
security. The policy shall provide coverage for breach response costs as well as
regulatory fines and penalties as well as credit monitoring expenses with limits
sufficient to respond to such obligations. All defense costs shall be outside the limits
of the policy.

11.4. Deductibles and Self-insured Retentions. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions are the
responsibility of the CONSULTANT and must be declared o and approved by the CITY. At the
option of the CITY, either (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured
retentions as respects the CITY, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers, or (2) the
CONSULTANT shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to the CITY guaranteeing
payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses.

11.5. Additional Required Provisions. The commercial general liability and automobile liability
policies shall contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

Agreement modified 8/22/2019

Page 7 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



11.5.1. The CITY, its officers, officials, employees, and representatives shall be named as
additional insureds. The CITY's additional insured status must be reflected on
additional insured endorsement form (20 10 1185 or 20 10 1001 and 20 37 1001)
which shall be submitted to the CITY.

- 11.5.2 The policies are primary and non-contributory to any insurance that may be catrried
by the CITY, as reflected in an endorsement which shall be submitted to the CITY.

11.6. Verification of Coverage. CONSULTANT shall furnish the CITY with original cetificates and
amendatory endorsements effecting coverage required by this Section 11. The endorsement
should be on forms provided by the CITY or on other than the CITY’s forms provided those
endorsements conform to CITY requirements. All certificates and endorsements are o be
received and approved by the CITY before work commences. The CITY reserves the right to
require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements
affecting the coverage required by these specifications at any time.

12. INDEMNIFICATION.

CONSULTANT agrees to indemnify, defend (with counsel acceptable to CITY), and hold harmless the CITY,
and its officers, officials, agents and employees from any and all claims, demands, costs or liabilities that
arise out of, or pertain to, or relate o the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of CONSULTANT,
its employees, agents, and subcontractors in the performance of or failure to perform services or obligations
under this AGREEMENT. CONSULTANT's duty to indemnify under this section shall not include liability for
damages for death or bodily injury to persons, injury to property, or other loss, damage or expense arising
from the sole negligence or wiliful misconduct by the CITY or its elected officials, officers, agents, and
employees. CONSULTANT's indemnification obligations shall not be limited by the insurance provisions of
this AGREEMENT. The PARTIES expressly agree that any payment, attorney's fees, costs or expense CITY
incurs or makes to or on behalf of an injured employee under the CITY's self-administered workers'
compensation is included as a loss, expense, or cost for the purposes of this section, and that this section
will survive the expiration or early termination of this AGREEMENT.

13. SUBCONTRACTORS.

13.1. The CONSULTANT’s hiring or retaining of third parties (i.e. subcontractors) to perform services
related 1o the PROJECT is subject to prior approval by the CITY.

13.2. All contracts entered into between the CONSULTANT and its subcontractor shall also provide
that each subcontractor shall obtain insurance policies which shall be kept in full force and effect
during any and all work on this PROJECT and for the duration of this AGREEMENT. The
CONSULTANT shall require the subcontractor to obtain, all policies described in Section 11 in
the amounts required by the CITY, which shall not be greater than the amounts required of the
CONSULTANT.

13.3. In any dispute between the CONSULTANT and its subcontractor, the CITY shall not be made a
party to any judicial or administrative proceeding to resolve the dispute. The CONSULTANT
agrees to defend and indemnify the CITY as described in Section 12 of this AGREEMENT should
the CITY be made a party to any judicial or administrative proceeding to resolve any such
dispute.

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 8 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



14. NON-DISCRIMINATION.

CONSULTANT shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex,
race, color, age, religion, ancestry, national origin, military or veteran status, disability, medical condition,
genetic information, gender expression, marital status, or sexual orientation. CONSULTANT shall take
affirmative action to insure that applicants are employed and that employees are treated during employment
without regard to their sex, race, color, age, religion, ancestry, national origin, military or veteran status,
disability, medical condition, genetic information, gender expression, marital status, or sexual orientation and
shall make reasonable accommodation to qualified individuals with disabilities or medical conditions. Such
action shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer,
recruitment, or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation,
and selection for training, including apprenticeship. CONSULTANT agrees to post in conspicuous places
available to employees and applicants for employment any notices provided by CITY setting forth the
provisions of this non-discrimination clause.

15. NOTICES.

All communications to either party by the other party shall be delivered to the persons listed below. Any such
written communications by mail shall be conclusively deemed to have been received by the addressee five
(5) calendar days after the deposit thereof in the United States mail, postage prepaid and properly addressed
as noted below.

Joseph Lim, Community Development Director James F. Knowlton, President
City of Solana Beach GeoPacifica, Inc.
635 S. Highway 101 2060 Industry Street, Suite 105
Solana Beach, CA 92075 Oceanside, CA 92054

16. ASSIGNABILITY.

This AGREEMENT and any portion thereof shall not be assigned or transferred, nor shall any of the
CONSULTANT’s duties be delegated or sub-contracted, without the express written consent of the CITY.

17. RESPONSIBILITY FOR EQUIPMENT.

CITY shall not be responsible nor held liable for any damage to persons or property consequent upon the
use, misuse, or failure of any equipment used by CONSULTANT or any of CONSULTANT’s employees or
subcontractors, even if such equipment has been furnished, rented, or loaned to CONSULTANT by CITY.
The acceptance or use of any such equipment by CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s employees, or
subcontractors shall be construed to mean that CONSULTANT accepts full responsibility for and agrees to
exonerate, indemnify and hold harmless CITY from and against any and all claims for any damage
whatsoever resulting from the use, misuse, or failure of such equipment.

18. CALIFORNIA LAW; VENUE.

This AGREEMENT shall be construed and interpreted according to the laws of the State of California. Any
action brought to enforce or interpret any portion of this AGREEMENT shall be brought in the county of San
Diego, California. CONSULTANT hereby waives any and all rights it might have pursuant to California Code
of Civil Procedure Section 394.

19. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.

The Consuftant shall comply with all laws, ordinances, regulations, and policies of the federal, state, and
local governments applicable to this AGREEMENT whether now in force or subsequently enacted. This
includes maintaining a City of Solana Beach Business Certificate.

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 : Page 9 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



20. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

This AGREEMENT sets forth the entire understanding of the PARTIES with respect to the subject matters
herein. There are no other understandings, terms or other agreements expressed or implied, oral or written,
except as set forth herein. No change, alteration, or modification of the terms or conditions of this
AGREEMENT, and no verbal understanding of the PARTIES, their officers, agents, or employees shall be
valid unless agreed to in writing by both PARTIES.

21. NO WAIVER.

No failure of either the City or the Consultant to insist upon the strict performance by the other of any
covenant, term or condition of this AGREEMENT, nor any failure to exercise any right or remedy consequent
upon a breach of any covenant, term, or condition of this AGREEMENT shall constitute a waiver of any such
breach of such covenant, term or condition.

22. SEVERABILITY.

The unenforceability, invalidity, or illegality of any provision of this AGREEMENT shall not render any other
provision unenforceable, invalid, or illegal.

23. DRAFTING AMBIGUITIES.

The PARTIES agree that they are aware that they have the right to be advised by counsel with respect to
the negotiations, terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT, and the decision of whether or not to seek
advice of counsel with respect to this AGREEMENT is a decision which is the sole responsibility of each
Party. This AGREEMENT shall not be construed in favor of or against either Party by reason of the extent
to which each Party participated in the drafting of the AGREEMENT.

24. CONFLICTS BETWEEN TERMS.

If an apparent conflict or inconsistency exists between the main body of this AGREEMENT and the Exhibits,
the main body of this AGREEMENT shall control. If a conflict exists between an applicable federal, state, or
local law, rule, regulation, order, or code and this AGREEMENT, the law, rule, regulation, order, or code
shall control. Varying degrees of stringency among the main body of this AGREEMENT, the Exhibits, and
laws, rules, regulations, orders, or codes are not deemed conflicts, and the most stringent requirement shall
control. Each Party shall notify the other immediately upon the identification of any apparent conflict or
inconsistency concerning this AGREEMENT.

25. EXHIBITS INCORPORATED.
All Exhibits referenced in this AGREEMENT are incorporated into the AGREEMENT by this reference.

26. SIGNING AUTHORITY.

26.1. The representative for each Party signing on behalf of a corporation, partnership, joint venture,
association, or governmental entity hereby declares that authority has been obtained to sign on
behalf of the corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, or entity and agrees to hold the
other Party or PARTIES hereto harmless if it is later determined that such authority does not
exist.

26.2. [X|If checked, a proper notary acknowledgement of execution by CONSULTANT must be
attached.

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 10 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES hereto have executed this AGREEMENT the day and year
first hereinabove written.

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, a municipal CONSULTANT, a California Corporation
corporation
By: By:

City Manager, Gregory Wade Signature

James F. Knowlton, President

ATTEST:

City Clerk. Angela lvey

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

Joseph Lim, Community Development Director

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

City Attorney, Johanna N. Canlas

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 11 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



EXHIBIT “A”
SCOPE OF SERVICES AND FEE

Click or fap here 1o enter text,

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 12 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



EXHIBIT A

E. Work Plan

Scope of Work/Work Plan

The Geopacifica project manager and principal in charge will be Mr. James Knowlton
(RCE, CEG). Mr. Knowlton is the authority responsible for assuring that the requirements
identified in the Scope of Work (Exhibit A) have been met. Mr. Knowlton is accountable for
the day-to-day project activiies and for planning, coordinating, scheduling, quality
assurance and meeting assignment timelines, and monitoring budget requirements. It is
noteworthy to identify that Mr. Knowlton is both a registered civil engineer and a certified
engineering geologist; only one of a few hundred in the state with both designations. Mr.
Knowlton will review the soils engineering and the geology of any geotechnical reports;
and perform duties required for civil engineering and geology. As principle
engineer/geologist, Mr. Knowlton is also responsible for keeping the client informed of all
pertinent issues throughout the life of the any project, review or inspections. All project
work is under the supervision of Geopacifica principals when an alternate supervisor or
manager is necessary. As project principal, Mr. Knowlton is responsible for initial project
review and allocation of company resources to satisfy project requirements. Staff
professional inspectors, geologists and engineers from our office will perform engineering
services as needed. As support to Mr. Knowlton other engineer/project managers and civil
engineers are available to provide services to the City of Solana Beach. Those individuals
are: UIf Fageborne (RCE), and Chris Lillback (RCE) and Mike Malone, Senior Project
Manager.

Mr. Knowlton will be available to attend meetings regarding all items identified in the
Scope of Work (Exhibit A) including Council Meetings. It is imperative that the client allow
for a full work day notice regarding meeting attendance. However, this is not a
requirement for any emergency the client may have. In the event of an emergency Mr.
Knowlton is available to the client via mobile phone (760)802-8153.

Mr. Knowlton will communicate monthly by email the status of all projects outstanding with
a brief summary.



F. PRICING

2019 SCHEDULE OFFEES

INVOICES:
Invoices are payable thirty (30) days from presentation. Net 30 days.

PAYEE:

GEOPACIFICA, INC. 3060 Industry St. Suite 105 Oceanside, CA 92054 Office:

760-721-5488 FAX: 760-721-5539
email: geopacifica@sbcglobal.net

SERVICES COST:

” Principal Supervising Civil Engineer/Geologist
” Senior Engineering Construction Inspector

> Engineering Construction Inspector

5 Administration/Reports Processing

Mileage: $00.54

Brief Description of Personnel:

1.

o o A W N

Jim Knowlton, Principal Civil Engineer/Geologist
Principal Client Contact, Manager/Supervisor @
$150.00/hr

Chip Estoffier, Senior Construction Inspector @
$90/hr

. Mike Malone - Senior Civil Engineer, and

alternate Manager/Supervisor @ $135/hr

. Ulf Fageborn, Senior Civil Engineer and alternate

Manage/Supervisor @ $135/hr

. Chris Lillback, Senior Civil Engineer and alternate

Manager/Supervisor @ $135/hr

. Carol Pezzopane Senior Construction Inspector

@ $90.00/hr

$150.00/hr
$ 90.00/hr
$ 80.00/hr
$ 55.00/hr



City of Solana Beach

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

FOR Third Party Geotechnical Engineering Pass Through

THIS Professional Services Agreement (‘AGREEMENT”) is made and entered into this 1st day of
July, 2019 by and between the CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, a municipal corporation (“CITY”), and,
GeoPacifica, Inc. a California Corporation, (‘CONSULTANT”) (collectively “PARTIES”).

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to employ a CONSULTANT to furnish third party pass-through
coastal geotechnical review services (“PROFESSIONAL SERVICES”) for varios coastal and inland
bluff-top projects on an as needed basis (“PROJECT"); and

WHEREAS, the CITY has determined that CONSULTANT is qualified by experience and ability
to perform the services desired by CITY, and CONSULTANT is willing to perform such services; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT will conduct all the work as described and detailed in this
AGREEMENT to be provided to the CITY.

NOW, THEREFORE, the PARTIES hereto mutually covenant and agree with each other as
follows:

1. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.

1.1.  Scope of Services. The CONSULTANT shall perform the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES as set
forth in the written Scope of Services, attached as Exhibit “A” Scope of Services and Fee, at the
direction of the CITY. CITY shall provide CONSULTANT access to appropriate staff and
resources for the coordination and completion of the projects under this AGREEMENT. For all
work to be performed on site at City Hall, CITY and CONSULTANT agree that the Scope of
Services begins when CONSULTANT arrives at City Hall and terminates when CONSULTANT
leaves City Hall. Travel time to and from City Hall shall not be considered time on the job or
compensated by the CITY.

1.2.

1.3.  Project Coordinator. The Community Development Director is hereby designated as the
Project Coordinator for CITY and will monitor the progress and execution of this AGREEMENT.
CONSULTANT shall assign a single Project Director to provide supervision and have overall
responsibility for the progress and execution of this AGREEMENT for CONSULTANT. James
Knowilton, is hereby designated as the Project Director for CONSULTANT.

1.4. City Modification of Scope of Services. CITY may order changes to the Scope of Services
within the general scope of this AGREEMENT consisting of additions, deletions, or other
revisions. If such changes cause a change in the CONSULTANT’s cost of, or time required for,
completion of the Scope of Services, an equitable adjustment to CONSULTANT’s compensation
and/or contract time shall be made, subject to the CITY’S approval. All such changes shall be
authorized in writing, executed by CONSULTANT and CITY.

2. DURATION OF AGREEMENT.

21. Term. The term of this AGREEMENT shall be for a period of one (1) year beginning from the
date of execution of the AGREEMENT. Time is of the essence in the performance of work under
this AGREEMENT, unless otherwise specified.

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 1 of 12 City Attorney app ATTACHMENT 6



2.2,

2.3.

2.4.

2.5,

3.1.

3.2

3.3.

4.1,

Extensions. [X If marked, the CITY shall have the option to extend the AGREEMENT for four
(4) additional one (1) year periods or parts thereof for an open-ended amount, funded by pass-
through fees collected from property owners at the time of project application submittal per
AGREEMENT year. Extensions shall be in the sole discretion of the City Manager and shall be
based upon CONSULTANT's satisfactory past performance, CITY needs, and appropriation of
funds by the City Council. The CITY shall give written notice to CONSULTANT prior to exercising
the option.

Delay. Any delay occasioned by causes beyond the control of CONSULTANT may merit an
extension of time for the completion of the Scope of Services. When such delay occurs,
CONSULTANT shall immediately notify the Project Coordinator in writing of the cause and the
extent of the delay, whereupon the Project Coordinator shall ascertain the facts and the exient
of the delay and grant an extension of time for the completion of the PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES when justified by the circumstances.

City’s Right to Terminate for Defauit. Should CONSULTANT be in default of any covenant or
condition hereof, CITY may immediately terminate this AGREEMENT for cause if CONSULTANT
fails to cure the default within ten (10) calendar days of receiving written notice of the defaulit.

City’s Right to Terminate without Cause. Without limiting its rights in the event of
CONSULTANT’s default, CITY may terminate this AGREEMENT, without cause, by giving
written notice to CONSULTANT. Such termination shall be effective upon receipt of the written

"notice. CONSULTANT shali be compensated for all effort and material expended on behalf of
- CITY under the terms of this AGREEMENT, up to the effective date of termination. All personal

property remaining in CITY facilities or on CITY property thirty (30) days after the expiration or
termination of this AGREEMENT shall be, at CITY’s election, considered the property of CITY.

COMPENSATION. -

Total Amount. The total cost for all work described in the Scope of Services and Fee (Exhibit
“A”) shall be an open-ended amount, funded by pass-through fees collected from property
owners at the time of project application submittal. CONSULTANT shall bill the CITY for work
provided and shall present a written request for such payment monthly.

Additional Services. CITY may, as the need arises or in the event of an emergency, request
additional services of CONSULTANT. Should such additional services be required, CITY and
CONSULTANT shall agree to the cost prior to commencement of these services.

Costs. Any costs billed to the CITY shall be in accordance with any terms negotiated and
incorporated herein as part of Exhibit “A” Scope of Services and Fee.

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.

CONSULTANT is, for all purposes arising out of this AGREEMENT, an independent contractor.
The CONSULTANT has and shall retain the right to exercise full control and supervision of all
persons assisting the CONSULTANT in the performance of said services hereunder, the CITY
only being concerned with the finished results of the work being performed. Neither
CONSULTANT nor CONSULTANT’s employees shall in any event be entitled to any benefits to
which CITY employees are entitled, including, but not limited to, overtime, retirement benefits,
workers’ compensation benefits, injury leave or other leave benefits. CONSULTANT is solely
responsible for all such matters, as well as compliance with social security and income tax
withholding and all other regulations and laws governing such matters.

5. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE.

While performing the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, CONSULTANT shall exercise the reasonable
professional care and skill customarily exercised by reputable members of CONSULTANT’s profession
practicing in the metropolitan Southern California Area, and will use reasonable diligence and best judgment
while exercising its professional skill and expertise.

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 2 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



6. WARRANTY OF CONSULTANT’S LICENSE.

CONSULTANT warrants that CONSULTANT is properly licensed with the applicable government
agency(ies) for any PROFESSIONAL SERVICES that require a license. If the CONSULTANT lacks such
license, this AGREEMENT is void and of no effect.

7. AUDIT OF RECORDS.

7.1.

7.2.

At any time during normal business hours and as often as may be deemed necessary the
CONSULTANT shall make available to a representative of CITY for examination all of its records
with respect to all matters covered by this AGREEMENT and shall permit CITY to audit, examine
and/or reproduce such records. CONSULTANT shall retain such financial and program service
records for at least four (4) years after termination or final payment under this AGREEMENT.

The CONSULTANT shall- include the CITY's right under this section in any and all of their
subcontracts, and shall ensure that these sections are binding upon all subcontractors.

8. CONFIDENTIALITY AND SECURITY.

8.1.

8.2

Confidential Work Product. All professional services performed by CONSULTANT, including
but not limited to all drafts, data, correspondence, proposals, reports, research and estimates
compiled or composed by CONSULTANT, pursuant to this AGREEMENT, are for the sole use
of the CITY, its agents and employees. Neither the documents nor their contents shall be
released to any third party without the prior written consent of the CITY. This provision does not
apply to information that (a) was publicly known, or otherwise known to CONSULTANT, at the
time that it was disclosed to CONSULTANT by the CITY, (b) subsequently becomes publicly
known through no act or omission of CONSULTANT or (c) otherwise becomes known to
CONSULTANT other than through disclosure by the CITY. Except for any subcontractors that
may be allowed upon prior agreement, neither the documents nor their contents shall be released
to any third party without the prior written consent of the CITY. The sole purpose of this section
is to prevent disclosure of CITY’s confidential and proprietary information by CONSULTANT or
subcontractors.

Confidentiality. Both parties recognize that their respective employees and agents, in the
course of performance of this AGREEMENT, may be exposed to confidential information and
that disclosure of such information could violate the rights of private individuals and entities,
including the parties and third parties. Confidential information is nonpublic information that a
reasonable person would believe to be confidential and includes, without limitation, personal
identifying information (e.g., social security numbers) and trade secrets, each as defined by
applicable state law, and all other information protected by applicable law (“Confidential
Information™). The party receiving Confidential Information (“Receiving Party”) of the other
(“Disclosing Party”) shall not, and shall cause its employees and agents who are authorized to
receive Confidential Information, not to, use Confidential Information for any purpose except as
necessary to implement, perform or enforce this AGREEMENT or comply with its legal
obligations. Receiving Party wiil use the same reasonable efforts to protect the Confidential
Information of Disclosing Party as it uses to protect its own proprietary information and data. The
Receiving Party will not disclose or release Confidential Information to any third person without
the prior written consent of the Disclosing Party, except for where required by law or for
authorized employees or agenis of the Receiving Party. Prior to disclosing the Confidential
Information to its authorized employees or agents, Receiving Party shail inform them of the
confidential nature of the Confidential Information and require them to abide by the terms of this
AGREEMENT. Receiving Party will promptly notify Disclosing Party if Receiving Party discovers
any improper use or disclosure of Confidential Information and will promptly commence all
reasonable efforts to investigate and correct the causes of such improper use or disclosure. If
Receiving Party believes the Confidential Information must be disclosed under applicable law,
Receiving Party may do so provided that, to the extent permitted by law, the other party is given
a reasonable notice and opportunity to contest such disclosure or obtain a protective order.

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 3 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



Confidential Information does not include information that: (i) is or becomes known to the public
without fault or breach of the Receiving Party; (ii) the Disclosing Party regularly discloses to third
parties without restriction on disclosure; or (iii) the Receiving Party obtains from a third party
without restriction on disclosure and without breach of a non-disclosure obligation. Confidential
Information does not include any information that is required to be provided to the public pursuant
to the laws of the United States and/or California such as the California Public Records Act, due
to the nature of CITY being a local governmental agency. The non-disclosure and non-use
obligations of this AGREEMENT will remain in full force with respect to each item of Confidential
Information for a period of ten (10) years after the Receiving Party’s receipt of that item.

8.3.  Security.
8.3.1.

8.3.2.

8.3.3.

Agreement modified 8/22/2019

Implementation. CONSULTANT shall implement commercially reasonable
administrative, technical and physical safeguards designed to: (i) ensure the security
and confidentiality of data and information provided by the CITY or used in
connection with providing services under this AGREEMENT, including data or
information about third parties (“CITY’S Data”); (ii) protect against any anticipated
threats or hazards to the security or integrity of CITY’S Data; and (iii) protect against
unauthorized access to or use of CITY’S Data. CONSULTANT shall review and test
such safeguards on no less than an annual basis.

Network. If CONSULTANT makes CITY’'S Data accessible through the Internet or
other networked environment, CONSULTANT shall be solely responsible for all
aspects of Internet use, and shall maintain, in connection with the operation or use
of CITY'S Data, adequate technical and procedural access controls and system
security requirements and devices, necessary for data privacy, confidentiality,
integrity, authorization, authentication and non-repudiation and virus detection and
eradication.

Personal Data. If CONSULTANT processes or otherwise has access to any
personal data or personal information on CITY’s behalf when performing
CONSULTANT's services and obligations under this AGREEMENT, then: (i) CITY
shall be the data controller (where “data controller” means an entity which alone or
jointly with others determines purposes for which and the manner in which any
personal data are, or are to be, processed) and CONSULTANT shall be a data
processor (where “data processor’ means an entity which processes the data only
on behalf of the data controller and not for any purposes of its own); (ii) CITY shall
ensure that it has obtained all necessary consents and it is entitled to transfer the
relevant personal data or personal information to CONSULTANT so that
CONSULTANT may lawfully use, process and transfer the personal data and
personal information in accordance with this AGREEMENT on CITY’s behalf in order
for CONSULTANT to provide the services and perform its other obligations under
this AGREEMENT; (iii) CONSULTANT shall process the personal data and personal
information only in accordance with any lawful and reasonable instructions given by
CITY from time to time and in accordance with the terms of this AGREEMENT; and
(iv) each party shall take appropriate technical and organizational measures against
unauthorized or uniawful processing of the personal data and personal information
or its accidental loss, destruction or damage so that, having regard to the state of
technological development and the cost of implementing any measures, the
measures taken ensure a level of security appropriate to the harm that might result
from such unauthorized or unlawful processing or accidental loss, destruction or
damage in relation to the personal data and personal information and the nature of
the personal data and personal information being protected. If necessary, the parties
will cooperate to document these measures taken.

Page 4 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



8.3.4. Information Security. CONSULTANT represents and warrants that its collection,
access, use, storage, disposal and disclosure of Confidential Information accessed
and/or collected from CITY does and will comply with all applicable federal and state
privacy and data protection laws. In the event of any security breach, CONSULTANT
shall: (a) Provide CITY with the name and contact information for an employee who
shall serve as CITY’s primary security contact and shall be available to assist CITY
twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week as a contact in resolving
obligations associated with a security breach; and (b) Notify CITY of a security breach
as soon as practicable, but no later than twenty-four (24) hours after CONSULTANT
becomes aware of it. Immediately following CONSULTANT’s notification to CITY of
a security breach, the parties shall coordinate with each other to investigate the
security breach. CONSULTANT agrees to fully cooperate with CITY in CITY’s
handling of the matter. CONSULTANT shall use best efforts to immediately remedy
any security breach and prevent any further security breach at CONSULTANT’s own
expense in accordance with applicable privacy rights, laws, regulations and
standards. CONSULTANT agrees to provide, at its expense, up to one year of credit
monitoring services to third parties impacted by any data breach involving the loss of
personally identifiable information.

8.4. Indemnity. CONSULTANT shall defend (with counsel acceptable to CITY), indemnify and hold
CITY harmless from and against all claims, actions, proceedings, losses, costs (including
attorney fees and other charges), liabilities, damages, judgments, settlements, and court
awarded attorney’s fees resulting from, arising out of or related to a security or data breach
unless the breach is proven to be caused solely by CITY. The terms of this section shall survive
termination of this AGREEMENT. For purposes of this provision, “security breach” means any
act or omission that compromises either the secutity, confidentiality, or integrity of Confidential
Information or the physical, technical, administrative or organizational safeguards put in place by
CONSULTANT or any authorized persons that relate to the protection of the security,
confidentiality or integrity of Confidential Information or a breach or alleged breach of this
AGREEMENT relating to such privacy practices or privacy obligations imposed by any applicable
law.

8.5. Notice and Remedy of Breaches. Each party shall promptly give notice to the other of any
actual or suspected breach by it of any of the provisions of Section 8 of this AGREEMENT,
whether or not intentional, and the breaching party shall, at its expense, take all steps reasonably
requested by the other party to prevent or remedy the breach.

8.6. Enforcement. Each party acknowledges that any breach of any of the provisions of Section 8
of this AGREEMENT may result in irreparable injury to the other for which money damages would
not adequately compensate. If there is a breach, then the injured party shall be entitled, in
addition to all other rights and remedies which it may have, to have a decree of specific
performance or an injunction issued by any competent court, requiring the breach to be cured or
enjoining all persons involved from continuing the breach.

9. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.

9.1. CONSULTANT shall at all times comply with all federal, state and local conflict of interest laws,
regulations, and policies applicable to public contracts and procurement practices, including but
not limited to California Government Code Section 81000 et seq. (Political Reform Act) and
Section 1090 et seq. CONSULTANT shall immediately disqualify itself and shall not use its official
position to influence in any way any matter coming before the CITY in which the CONSULTANT
has a financial interest as defined in Government Code Section 87103. CONSULTANT
represents that it has no knowledge of any financial interests which would require it to disqualify
itself from any matter on which it might perform services for the CITY.

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 5 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



9.2. If, in performing the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES set forth in this AGREEMENT, the
CONSULTANT makes, or participates in, a “governmental decision” as described in Title 2,
Section 18700.3(a) of the California Code of Regulations, or performs the same or substantially
all the same duties for the CITY that would otherwise be performed by a CITY employee hoiding
a position specified in the department's conflict of interest code, the CONSULTANT shall be
subject to a conflict of interest code requiring the completion of one or more statements of
economic interests disclosing the CONSULTANT’s relevant financial interests.

9.3. [X If checked, the CONSULTANT shall comply with all of the reporting requirements of the
Political Reform Act. Specifically, the CONSULTANT shall file a Fair Political Practices
Commission Form 700 (Assuming Office Statement) within thirty (30) calendar days of the CITY's
determination that the CONSULTANT is subject to a conflict of interest code. The CONSULTANT
shall also file a Form 700 (Annual Statement) on or before April 1 of each year of the
AGREEMENT, disclosing any financial interests held during the previous calendar year for which
the CONSULTANT was subject to a conflict of interest code.

9.4. CITY represents that pursuant to California Government Code Section 1090 et seq., none of its
elected officials, officers, or employees has an interest in this AGREEMENT.

10. DISPOSITION AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.

10.1.  All documents, data, studies, drawings, maps, models, photographs and reports prepared by
CONSULTANT under this AGREEMENT, whether paper or electronic, shall become the property
of CITY for use with respect to this PROJECT, and shall be turned over to the CITY upon
completion of the PROJECT or any phase thereof, as contemplated by this AGREEMENT.

10.2. Contemporaneously with the transfer of documents, the CONSULTANT hereby assigns to the
CITY and CONSULTANT thereby expressly waives and disclaims, any copyright in, and the right
to reproduce, all written material, drawings, plans, specifications or other work prepared under
this AGREEMENT, except upon the CITY’s prior authorization regarding reproduction, which
authorization shall not be unreasonably withheld. The CONSULTANT shall, upon request of the
CITY, execute any further document(s) necessary to further effectuate this waiver and
disclaimer.

11. INSURANCE

11.1. CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain for the duration of the AGREEMENT insurance
against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property. which may arise from or in
connection with the performance of the work hereunder and the results of that work by the
CONSULTANT, their agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors. Insurance shall be
placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than “A” and “VII” unless
otherwise approved in writing by the CITY’s Risk Manager.

11.2. CONSULTANT's liabilities, including but not limited to CONSULTANT’s indemnity obligations,
under this AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed limited in any way to the insurance coverage
required herein. All policies of insurance required hereunder must provide that the CITY is
entitled to thirty (30) days prior written notice of cancellation or non-renewal of the policy or
policies, or ten (10) days prior written notice for cancellation due to non-payment of premium.
Maintenance of specified insurance coverage is a material element of this AGREEMENT.,

11.3. Types and Amounts Required. CONSULTANT shall maintain, at minimum, the following
insurance coverage for the duration of this AGREEMENT:

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 6 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



11.3.1.

11.3.2.

11.3.3.

11.3.4.

11.3.5.

XICommercial General Liability (CGL). If checked the CONSULTANT shall
maintain CGL Insurance written on an ISO Occurrence form or equivalent providing
coverage at least as broad which shali cover liability arising from any and all personal
injury or property damage in the amount of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence and subject
to an annual aggregate of $2,000,000.00. There shall be no endorsement or
modification of the CGL. limiting the scope of coverage for either insured vs. insured
claims or contractual liability. All defense costs shall be outside the limits of the policy.

XICommercial Automobile Liability. If checked the CONSULTANT shall maintain
Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance for all of the CONSULTANT's
automobiles including owned, hired and non-owned automobiles, automobile
insurance written on an ISO form CA 00 01 12 90 or a later version of this form or an
equivalent form providing coverage at least as broad for bodily injury and propenrty
damage for a combined single limit of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence. Insurance
certificate shall reflect coverage for any automobile (any auto).

XlWorkers' Compensation. If checked the CONSULTANT shall maintain Worker’s
Compensation insurance for all of the CONSULTANT's employees who are subject
to this AGREEMENT and to the extent required by applicable state or federal law, a
Workers' Compensation policy providing at minimum $1,000,000.00 employers'
liability coverage. The CONSULTANT shall provide an endorsement that the insurer
waives the right of subrogation against the CITY and its respective elected officials,
officers, employees, agents and representatives.

XlProfessional Liability. If checked the CONSULTANT shall also maintain
Professional Liability (errors and omissions) coverage with a limit of $1,000,000 per
claim and $2,000,000 annual aggregate. The CONSULTANT shall ensure both that
(1) the policy retroactive date is on or before the date of commencement of the Scope
of Services; and (2) the policy will be maintained in force for a period of three years
after substantial completion of the Scope of Services or termination of this
AGREEMENT whichever occurs last. The CONSULTANT agrees that for the time
period defined above, there will be no changes or endorsements to the policy that
increase the CITY's exposure to loss. All defense costs shall be outside the limits of
the policy.

[CICyber Liability. If checked the CONSULTANT shall also maintain Cyber Liability
coverage on an occurrence basis with a limit of $2,000,000 per occurrence or claim
and $2,000,000 annual aggregate. Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond
to the duties and obligations as are undertaken by CONSULTANT in this
AGREEMENT and shall include claims involving infringement of intellectual property,
infringement of copyright, trademark, trade dress, invasion of privacy violations,
information theft, damage to or destruction of electronic information, release of
private information, alteration of electronic information, extortion and network
security. The policy shall provide coverage for breach response costs as well as
regulatory fines and penalties as well as credit monitoring expenses with limits
sufficient to respond to such obligations. All defense costs shall be outside the limits
of the policy.

11.4. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions are the
responsibility of the CONSULTANT and must be declared to and approved by the CITY. At the
option of the CITY, either (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured
retentions as respects the CITY, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers, or (2) the
CONSULTANT shall provide a financial guaraniee satisfactory to the CITY guaranteeing
payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses.

11.5. Additional Required Provisions. The commercial general liability and automobile liability
policies shall contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

Agreement modified 8/22/2019

Page 7 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



11.5.1. The CITY, its officers, officials, employees, and representatives shall be named as
additional insureds. The CITY's additional insured status must be reflected on
additional insured endorsement form (20 10 1185 or 20 10 1001 and 20 37 1001)
which shall be submiited to the CITY.

11.5.2. The policies are primary and non-contributory to any insurance that may be carried
by the CITY, as reflected in an endorsement which shall be submitted to the CITY.

11.6. Verification of Coverage. CONSULTANT shall furnish the CITY with original certificates and
amendatory endorsements effecting coverage required by this Section 11. The endorsement
should be on forms provided by the CITY or on other than the CITY’s forms provided those
endorsements conform to CITY requirements. All certificates and endorsements are to be
received and approved by the CITY before work commences. The CITY reserves the right to
require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements
affecting the coverage required by these specifications at any time.

12. INDEMNIFICATION.

CONSULTANT agrees to indemnify, defend (with counsel acceptable to CITY), and hold harmless the CITY,
and its officers, officials, agents and employees from any and all claims, demands, costs or liabilities that
arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of CONSULTANT,
its employees, agents, and subcontractors in the performance of or failure to perform services or obligations
under this AGREEMENT. CONSULTANT’s duty to indemnify under this section shall not include liability for
damages for death or bodily injury to persons, injury to property, or other loss, damage or expense arising
from the sole negligence or willful misconduct by the CITY or its elected officials, officers, agents, and
employees. CONSULTANT's indemnification obligations shail not be limited by the insurance provisions of
this AGREEMENT. The PARTIES expressly agree that any payment, attorney's fees, costs or expense CITY
incurs or makes to or on behalf of an injured employee under the CITY's self-administered workers'
compensation is included as a loss, expense, or cost for the purposes of this section, and that this section
will survive the expiration or early termination of this AGREEMENT.

13. SUBCONTRACTORS.

13.1. The CONSULTANT’s hiring or retaining of third parties (i.e. subcontractors) to perform services
related to the PROJECT is subject to prior approval by the CITY.

13.2. Al contracts entered into between the CONSULTANT and its subcontractor shall also provide
that each subcontractor shall obtain insurance policies which shall be kept in full force and effect
during any and all work on this PROJECT and for the duration of this AGREEMENT. The
CONSULTANT shall require the subcontractor to obtain, all policies described in Section 11 in
the amounts required by the CITY, which shall not be greater than the amounts required of the
CONSULTANT.

13.3. In any dispute between the CONSULTANT and its subcontractor, the CITY shall not be made a
party to any judicial or administrative proceeding to resolve the dispute. The CONSULTANT
agrees to defend and indemnify the CITY as described in Section 12 of this AGREEMENT should
the CITY be made a parly to any judicial or administrative proceeding to resolve any such
dispute.

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 8 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



14. NON-DISCRIMINATION.

CONSULTANT shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex,
race, color, age, religion, ancestry, national origin, military or veteran status, disability, medical condition,
genetic information, gender expression, marital status, or sexual orientation. CONSULTANT shall take
affirmative action to insure that applicants are employed and that employees are treated during employment
without regard to their sex, race, color, age, religion, ancestry, national origin, military or veteran status,
disability, medical condition, genetic information, gender expression, marital status, or sexual orientation and
shall make reasonable accommodation to qualified individuals with disabilities or medical conditions. Such
action shall include, but not be limited io the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer,
recruitment, or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation,
and selection for training, including apprenticeship. CONSULTANT agrees to post in conspicuous places
available to employees and applicants for employment any notices provided by CITY setting forth the
provisions of this non-discrimination clause.

15. NOTICES.

All communications to either party by the other party shall be delivered to the persons listed below. Any such
written communications by mail shall be conclusively deemed to have been received by the addressee five
(5) calendar days after the deposit thereof in the United States mail, postage prepaid and properly addressed
as noted below.

Joseph Lim, Community Development Director _ James F. Knowlton, President
City of Solana Beach o GeoPacifica, Inc.
635 S. Highway 101 2060 Industry Street, Suite 105
Solana Beach, CA 92075 Oceanside, CA 92054

16. ASSIGNABILITY.

This AGREEMENT and any portion thereof shall not be assigned or transferred, nor shall any of the
CONSULTANT’s duties be delegated or sub-contracted, without the express written consent of the CITY.

17. RESPONSIBILITY FOR EQUIPMENT.

CITY shall not be responsible nor held liable for any damage to persons or property consequent upon the
use, misuse, or failure of any equipment used by CONSULTANT or any of CONSULTANT'’s employees or
subcontractors, even if such equipment has been furnished, rented, or loaned to CONSULTANT by CITY.
The acceptance or use of any such equipment by CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT's employees, or
subcontractors shall be construed to mean that CONSULTANT accepts full responsibility for and agrees to
exonerate, indemnify and hold harmless CITY from and against any and all claims for any damage
whatsoever resulting from the use, misuse, or failure of such equipment.

18. CALIFORNIA LAW; VENUE.

This AGREEMENT shall be construed and interpreted according to the laws of the State of California. Any
action brought to enforce or interpret any portion of this AGREEMENT shall be brought in the county of San
Diego, California. CONSULTANT hereby waives any and all rights it might have pursuant to California Code
of Civil Procedure Section 394.

19. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.

The Consuitant shall comply with all laws, ordinances, regulations, and policies of the federal, state, and
local governments applicable to this AGREEMENT whether now in force or subsequently enacted. This
includes maintaining a City of Solana Beach Business Cetiificate.

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 9 of 12 : City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



20. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

This AGREEMENT sets forth the entire understanding of the PARTIES with respect to the subject matters
herein. There are no other understandings, terms or other agreements expressed or implied, oral or written,
except as set forth herein. No change, alteration, or modification of the terms or conditions of this
AGREEMENT, and no verbal understanding of the PARTIES, their officers, agents, or empioyees shall be
valid unless agreed to in writing by both PARTIES.

21. NO WAIVER.

No failure of either the City or the Consultant to insist upon the strict performance by the other of any
covenant, term or condition of this AGREEMENT, nor any failure to exercise any right or remedy consequent
upon a breach of any covenant, term, or condition of this AGREEMENT shall constitute a waiver of any such
breach of such covenant, term or condition.

22. SEVERABILITY.

The unenforceability, invalidity, or illegality of any provision of this AGREEMENT shall not render any other
provision unenforceable, invalid, or illegal. ,

23. DRAFTING AMBIGUITIES.

The PARTIES agree that they are aware that they have the right to be advised by counsel with respect to
the negotiations, terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT, and the decision of whether or not to seek
advice of counsel with respect to this AGREEMENT is a decision which is the sole responsibility of each
Party. This AGREEMENT shall not be construed in favor of or against either Party by reason of the extent
to which each Party participated in the drafting of the AGREEMENT.

24. CONFLICTS BETWEEN TERMS.

If an apparent conflict or inconsistency exists between the main body of this AGREEMENT and the Exhibits,
the main body of this AGREEMENT shall control. If a conflict exists between an applicable federal, state, or
local law, rule, regulation, order, or code and this AGREEMENT, the law, ruie, regulation, order, or code
shall control. Varying degrees of stringency among the main body of this AGREEMENT, the Exhibits, and
laws, rules, regulations, orders, or codes are not deemed conflicts, and the most stringent requirement shall
control. Each Party shall notify the other immediately upon the identification of any apparent conflict or
inconsistency concerning this AGREEMENT.

25. EXHIBITS INCORPORATED.
All Exhibits referenced in this AGREEMENT are incorporated into the AGREEMENT by this reference.

26. SIGNING AUTHORITY.

26.1. The representative for each Party signing on behalf of a corporation, partnership, joint venture,
association, or governmental entity hereby declares that authority has been obtained to sign on
behalf of the corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, or entity and agrees to hold the
other Party or PARTIES hereto harmless if it is later determined that such authority does not
exist.

26.2. [X|If checked, a proper notary acknowledgement of execution by CONSULTANT must be
attached.

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 10 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES hereto have executed this AGREEMENT the day and year
first hereinabove written.

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, a municipal CONSULTANT, a California Corporation
corporation
By: By:

City Manager, Gregory Wade Signature

James F. Knowlion, President

ATTEST:

City Clerk. Angela lvey

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

Joseph Lim, Community Development Director

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

City Attorney, Johanna N. Canlas

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 11 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



EXHIBIT “A”
SCOPE OF SERVICES AND FEE

Click or tap here o enfer texd,

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 12 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018



EXHIBIT A

E. Work Plan

Scope of Work/Work Plan

The Geopacifica project manager and principal in charge will be Mr. James Knowlton
(RCE, CEG). Mr. Knowilton is the authority responsible for assuring that the requirements
identified in the Scope of Work (Exhibit A) have been met. Mr. Knowlton is accountable for
the day-to-day project activities and for planning, coordinating, scheduling, quality
assurance and meeting assignment timelines, and monitoring budget requirements. it is
noteworthy to identify that Mr. Knowilton is both a registered civil engineer and a certified
engineering geologist; only one of a few hundred in the state with both designations. Mr.
Knowlton will review the soils engineering and the geology of any geotechnical reports;
and perform duties required for civil engineering and geology. As principle
engineer/geologist, Mr. Knowlton is also responsible for keeping the client informed of all
pertinent issues throughout the life of the any project, review or inspections. All project
work is under the supervision of Geopacifica principals when an alternate supervisor or
manager is necessary. As project principal, Mr. Knowlton is responsible for initial project
review and allocation of company resources to satisfy project requirements. Staff
professional inspectors, geologists and engineers from our office will perform engineering
services as needed. As support to Mr. Knowlton other engineer/project managers and civil
engineers are available to provide services to the City of Solana Beach. Those individuals
are: UIf Fageborne (RCE), and Chris Lillback (RCE) and Mike Malone, Senior Project
Manager.

Mr. Knowlton will be available to attend meetings regarding all items identified in the
Scope of Work (Exhibit A) including Council Meetings. It is imperative that the client aliow
for a full work day notice regarding meeting attendance. However, this is not a
requirement for any emergency the client may have. In the event of an emergency Mr.
Knowlton is available to the client via mobile phone (760)802-8153.

Mr. Knowlton will communicate monthly by email the status of all projects outstanding with
" a brief summary.

10



F. PRICING

2019 SCHEDULE OFFEES

INVOICES:
Invoices are payable thirty (30) days from presentation. Net 30 days.

PAYEE:

GEOPACIFICA, INC. 3060 Industry St. Suite 105 Oceanside, CA 92054 Office:

760-721-5488 FAX: 760-721-5539
email: geopacifica@sbcglobal.net

SERVICES COST:

» Principal Supervising Civil Engineer/Geologist
» Senior Engineering Construction Inspector

> Engineering Construction Inspector

> Administration/Reports Processing

Mileage: $00.54

Brief Description of Personnel:

1.

® o s W N

Jim Knowlton, Principal Civil Engineer/Geologist
Principal Client Contact, Manager/Supervisor @
$150.00/hr

Chip Estoffier, Senior Construction Inspecior @
$90/hr

Mike Malone - Senior Civil Engineer, and
alternate Manager/Supervisor @ $135/hr

UIf Fageborn, Senior Civil Engineer and alternate
Manage/Supervisor @ $135/hr

Chris Lillback, Senior Civil Engineer and alternate
Manager/Supervisor @ $135/hr

. Carol Pezzopane Senior Construction Inspector

@ $90.00/hr

$150.00/hr
$ 90.00/hr
$ 80.00/hr
$ 55.00/hr

1



City of Solana Beach

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

FOR Third Party Geotechnical Engineering

THIS Professional Services Agreement (“AGREEMENT”) is made and entered into this 1st day of
July, 2019 by and between the CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, a municipal corporation (“CITY”), and, CTE
INC. a California Corporation, (‘CONSULTANT”) (collectively “PARTIES”).

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to employ a CONSULTANT to furnish professional coastal
geotechnical engineering services as needed (“PROFESSIONAL SERVICES”) for various City coastal
and inland bluff projects projects (“PROJECT”); and

WHEREAS, the CITY has determined that CONSULTANT is qualified by experience and ability
to perform the services desired by CITY, and CONSULTANT is willing to perform such services; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT will conduct all the work as described and detailed in this
AGREEMENT to be provided to the CITY.

NOW, THEREFORE, the PARTIES hereto mutually covenant and agree with each other as
follows:

1. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.

1.1.  Scope of Services. The CONSULTANT shali perform the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES as set
forth in the written Scope of Services, attached as Exhibit “A” Scope of Services and Fee, at the
direction of the CITY. CITY shall provide CONSULTANT access to appropriate staff and
resources for the coordination and completion of the projects under this AGREEMENT. For all
work to be performed on site at City Hall, CITY and CONSULTANT agree that the Scope of
Services begins when CONSULTANT arrives at City Hall and terminates when CONSULTANT
leaves City Hall. Travel time to and from City Hall shall not be considered time on the job or
compensated by the CITY.

1.2,

1.3.  Project Coordinator. The Community Development Director is hereby designated as the
Project Coordinator for CITY and will monitor the progress and execution of this AGREEMENT.
CONSULTANT shall assign a single Project Director to provide supervision and have overall
responsibility for the progress and execution of this AGREEMENT for CONSULTANT. Tiffany
Hilborn is hereby designated as the Project Director for CONSULTANT.

1.4. City Modification of Scope of Services. CITY may order changes to the Scope of Services
within the general scope of this AGREEMENT consisting of additions, deletions, or other
revisions. If such changes cause a change in the CONSULTANT’s cost of, or time required for,
completion of the Scope of Services, an equitable adjustment to CONSULTANT’s compensation
and/or contract time shall be made, subject to the CITY’S approval. All such changes shall be
authorized in writing, executed by CONSULTANT and CITY.

2. DURATION OF AGREEMENT.

21. Term. The term of this AGREEMENT shall be for a period of one (1) year beginning from the
date of execution of the AGREEMENT. Time is of the essence in the performance of work under
this AGREEMENT, unless otherwise specified.

Agreement modified 8/22/2019 Page 1 of 12 City Attorney apj ATTACHMENT 7



2.2,

2.3.

2.4,

2.5.

3.1.

3.2

3.3.

4.1,

Extensions. [ If marked, the CITY shall have the option to extend the AGREEMENT for four
(4) additional one (1) year periods or parts thereof for an amount not to exceed ten thousdand
dollars and ($10,000.00) per AGREEMENT year. Extensions shall be in the sole discretion of
the City Manager and shall be based upon CONSULTANT's satisfactory past performance, CITY
needs, and appropriation of funds by the City Council. The CITY shall give written notice to
CONSULTANT prior to exercising the option.

Delay. Any delay occasioned by causes beyond the control of CONSULTANT may merit an
extension of time for the completion of the Scope of Services. When such delay occurs,
CONSULTANT shall immediately notify the Project Coordinator in writing of the cause and the
extent of the delay, whereupon the Project Coordinator shall ascertain the facts and the extent
of the delay and grant an extension of time for the completion of the PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES when justified by the circumstances.

City’s Right to Terminate for Default. Should CONSULTANT be in default of any covenant or
condition hereof, CITY may immediately terminate this AGREEMENT for cause if CONSULTANT
fails to cure the default within ten (10) calendar days of receiving written notice of the default.

City’s Right to Terminate without Cause. Without limiting its rights in the event of
CONSULTANT’s default, CITY may terminate this AGREEMENT, without cause, by giving
written notice to CONSULTANT. Such termination shall be effective upon receipt of the written
notice. CONSULTANT shall be compensated for all effort and material expended on behalf of
CITY under the terms of this AGREEMENT, up to the effective date of termination. All personal
property remaining in CITY facilities or on CITY property thirty (30) days after the expiration or
termination of this AGREEMENT shall be, at CITY’s election, considered the property of CITY.

COMPENSATION.

Total Amount. The total cost for all work described in the Scope of Services and Fee (Exhibit
“A”) shall not exceed ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) without prior written authorization from
CITY. CONSULTANT shall bill the CITY for work provided and shall present a written request for
such payment monthly.

Additional Services. CITY may, as the need arises or in the event of an emergency, request
additional services of CONSULTANT. Should such additional services be required, CITY and
CONSULTANT shall agree to the cost prior to commencement of these services.

Costs. Any costs billed to the CITY shall be in accordance with any terms negotiated and
incorporated herein as part of Exhibit “A” Scope of Services and Fee.

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.

CONSULTANT is, for all purposes arising out of this AGREEMENT, an independent contractor.
The CONSULTANT has and shall retain the right to exercise full control and supervision of all
persons assisting the CONSULTANT in the performance of said services hereunder, the CITY
only being concerned with the finished results of the work being performed. Neither
CONSULTANT nor CONSULTANT’s employees shall in any event be entitled to any benefits to
which CITY employees are entitled, including, but not limited to, overtime, retirement benefits,
workers’ compensation benefits, injury leave or other leave benefits. CONSULTANT is solely
responsible for all such matters, as well as compliance with social security and income tax
withholding and all other regulations and laws governing such matters.

5. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE.

While performing the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, CONSULTANT shall exercise the reasonable
professional care and skill customarily exercised by reputable members of CONSULTANT’s profession
practicing in the metropolitan Southern California Area, and will use reasonable diligence and best judgment
while exercising its professional skill and expertise.